United States Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water Washington, DC 20460 EPA-820-R-14-106 September 2014

SEPA Proceedings of the 2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish



Alexandria, Virginia – September 21-24, 2014

SECTION II BIOSKETCHES, ABSTRACTS, PRESENTATIONS, AND QUESTIONS AND Mercury and Legacy Organic Compounds in Fish from U.S. Rivers – A National Perspective24 Safety Testing of Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish after the BP Oil Spill 44 SECTION II-C SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION 52 State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for the Upper Columbia River/Lake State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for the St. Lawrence River Watershed.... 82 Communication of Fish Advisories Between States and Federal Lands: Results from a Survey SECTION II-D SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE - HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH Analytical Methods and Seasonal Variations of Selected Cyanotoxins in Lake, Fish, and Plant Tissue in Nebraska 108 SECTION II-E SESSION 4: RISK ASSESSMENT, EPIDEMIOLOGY, AND TOXICOLOGY ... 130 EPA's Dioxin Reassessment and Toxicity-Equivalence Factors for Dioxin-Like Compounds Co-occurrence of PCBs and Mercury in Fish Tissue: Is There a Case for Additivity Based on National Time Trends in Environmental Exposures and Fish Consumption in U.S. Women of Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Epidemiological Evidence of Fish Consumption, Methylmercury Exposure, and Risk of	
Cardiovascular Diseases in Adults	176
Status of IRIS Update for Organic and Inorganic Mercury	181
SECTION II-F SESSION 5: HEALTH BENEFITS AND RISK MANAGEMENT	187
Introduction	187
Fatty Acid Content in Fish Species from the Great Lakes and Nearby Watersheds	189
Great Lakes Basin Fish Consumption, Vitamin D, Selenium, Fatty Acids, Contaminant	
Distributions and Associations in 154 Wisconsin Anglers	200
Mercury-Nutrient Signatures in Seafood and in Blood of Seafood Consumers	205
Mercury, Selenium, and Selenium: Mercury Ratios in Fish and Risk Management	210
Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption for Cardiovascular Diseases	220
Maternal Fish Intake during Pregnancy and Child Cognition	228
FDA Assessment of Net Effects on Neurodevelopment from Eating Commercial Fish during	g
Pregnancy	240
Risk-Benefit of Consuming Lake Erie Fish	245
Updated Approach for Balancing the Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption on	
Neurodevelopmental Endpoints	251
SECTION II-G SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC	260
Introduction	260
Dissemination of Information about FDA's Seafood-Associated Rhabdomyolysis, Puffer Fis	sh
Poisoning and Ciguatera Fish Poisoning Research Project	262
Consumer Understanding of the Benefits and Risks of Fish Consumption During Pregnancy	r
	266
Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to	070
Increase Consumer Knowledge	272
Communicating Fish Advisory Information to Women of Childbearing Age	279
Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages	286
Fish Advisory Outreach to Urban and Rural Alaska Stakeholders	297
Engaging Healthcare in Environmental Exposure Risk Reduction	303
Fish Consumption for Clinicians: Increasing Knowledge of the Risks and Benefits of Fish a	nd
Evaluating Clinical Screening for Mercury	307
Communicating Information to Reduce Mercury Exposures in Women of Childbearing Age	316
Wrap-up: General Forum Moderator	330
SECTION III APPENDICES	333
APPENDIX A: FINAL PARTICIPANT LIST	335
APPENDIX B: POSTER ABSTRACTS	347

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency would like to thank the steering committee for their support in developing the 2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish. The steering committee included the following individuals:

Jeff Bigler (Chair) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency bigler.jeff@epa.gov

Robert Brodberg California Environmental Protection Agency robert.brodberg@oehha.ca.gov

Razelle Hoffman-Contois Vermont Department of Health razelle.hoffman@state.vt.us

David McBride

Washington State Department of Health dave.mcbride@doh.wa.gov

Pat McCann Minnesota Department of Health patricia.mccann@state.mn.us

Sharee Rusnak Connecticut Department of Public Health sharee.rusnak@ct.gov

Jacqueline Fisher U.S. Environmental Protection Agency fisher.jacqueline@epa.gov

Although the information in this document has been funded wholly or in part by U.S. EPA, it may not necessarily reflect the views of the Agency, and no official endorsement should be inferred.

This document was developed by EnDyna, Inc. under Contract Number EP-W-11-051, Task Order 20, for the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA).

INTRODUCTION

From September 22-24, 2014, representatives of states, U.S. territories, tribes, federal agencies, and other interested organizations and individuals attended the 2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish in Alexandria, Virginia. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) sponsored the Forum.

The 2014 Forum was the twelfth National Fish Forum. The first Forum was convened in 1990, and regular Forums have been held every few years. The location of the Forum has rotated around the country and has included Alexandria, Virginia (1994, 1995, 1997, 1999); Chicago, Illinois (2001); Burlington, Vermont (2002); San Diego, California (2004); Baltimore, Maryland (2005); Portland, Maine (2007); Portland, Oregon (2009); and Alexandria, Virginia (2014).

Early Forums were attended by representatives from states and tribes, but as public interest in fish consumption advisories increased, additional groups became involved. Attendees now include local and national environmental groups, fishing industry representatives, fish marketing firms, fish and shellfish aquaculture groups, members of the medical and allied health communities, the national press, and interested private citizens. In addition, representatives from several other agencies, including the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA), the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), as well as representatives from other countries, routinely participate in the Forum.

The agenda for each Forum is developed by a steering committee, generally composed of representatives of state, tribal, and federal agencies. The agenda was developed to provide a variety of perspectives and approaches to assessing and communicating public health risks associated with consumption of contaminated fish. The Forums present the latest science and public health policies.

Topics for the 2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish included:

- Fish Sampling and Analysis
- Federal, State, and Tribal Advisory Coordination
- Emerging Issue Harmful Algal Blooms and Fish Consumption
- Risk Assessment, Epidemiology, and Toxicology
- Health Benefits and Risk Management
- Communications to the Public

In addition to the technical presentation sessions, a poster session was held to further the exchange of ideas and share state and tribal outreach materials related to fish advisories. States and tribes were also invited to bring samples of their outreach/communication materials for display and distribution at the Forum.

This document contains the proceedings of the Forum, including the agenda, abstracts of presentations, and slides used by the presenters.

For additional information, please contact: Jeff Bigler U.S. Environmental Protection Agency William Jefferson Clinton Building 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW Mail Code: 4305T Washington, DC 20460 Email: bigler.jeff@epa.gov Phone: 202-566-0389

2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish



Alexandria, Virginia / September 22-24, 2014

SECTION I AGENDA

SECTION I AGENDA EPA 2014 NATIONAL FORUM ON CONTAMINANTS IN FISH – AGENDA – PAGE 1

2014 Na Forum Contan in Fish	ational on ninants Image: Second s
Alexandria, Virç	jinia / September 22-24, 2014
Sunday, Septen 5:00pm - 8:00pm	nber 21 Early Registration
<i>Monday, Septer</i> 7:00am - 5:30pm	nber 22 Registration
7:30am - 8:00am	Visit Poster and Outreach Display
8:00am - 8:40am	Welcome and Introductions Elizabeth Southerland, Director Office of Science and Technology U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
SESSION 1: Fish Sampling a Moderator: Rick Greer	nd Analysis ne, Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control
8:40am - 8:45am	Introduction Rick Greene
8:45am - 9:05am	Mercury and Legacy Organic Compounds in Fish from U.S. Rivers – A National Perspective John Wathen, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
9:05am - 9:25am	Perfluorinated Compounds in Fish from U.S. Urban Rivers and the Great Lakes Leanne Stahl, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
9:25am - 9:45am	Identifying Emerging Contaminants for Monitoring in State Fish Programs Beth Murphy, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
9:45am - 10:05am	Safety Testing of Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish after the BP Oil Spill Tim Fitzgerald, Environmental Defense Fund

2014 N	ational Forum on Contaminants in Fish
	Agenda
Monday, Septen	nber 22 continued
10:05am - 10:20am	Question and Answer Session
10:20am - 10:35am	Break
SESSION 2:	
Federal, State, a Moderator: Rick Greer	nd Tribal Advisory Coordination ne. Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control
10:35am - 10:40am	Introduction Rick Greene
10:40am - 11:10am	State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for Cook Inlet
	Bob Gerlach, Alaska Michael Opheim and Tracie Merrill, Seldovia Village Tribe
11:10am - 11:40am	State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories
	Liz Carr, Washington
	Cindy Marchand, Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation
11:40am - 12:10pm	State-Tribal Partnership for Updating the Advisory for Clear Lake
	Sarah Ryan, Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians
12:10pm - 1:40pm	Lunch (on your own)
1:40pm - 2:10pm	State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for the St. Lawrence River Watershed
	Faith Schottenfeld, New York
2:10pm - 2:30pm	Lands: Results from a Survey of 21 Western National Parks
	David Wong, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service
2:30pm - 2:50pm	How EPA Utilizes Fish Advisories as
	Steve Ridenour, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

EPA 20141	National Forum on Contaminants in Fish
	Agenda
Manalau Canta	
Wonday, Septer	mper 22 CONTINUED
2.50pm - 3.05pm	Question and Answer Session
3:05pm - 3:20pm	Break
SESSION 3:	
Emerging Issue Moderator: Amy D. Ky	- Harmful Algal Blooms and Fish Consumption /le, University of California – Berkeley, School of Public Health
3:20pm - 3:40pm	Introduction and Overview: Significance of Cyanotoxins for Human Health <i>Amy D. Kyle</i>
3:40pm - 4:05pm	Analytical Methods and Seasonal Variations of Selected Cyanotoxins in Lake, Fish, and Plant Tissue in Nebraska Dan Snow, University of Nebraska – Lincoln
4:05pm - 4:30pm	Considerations for Fish Advisory Programs for Cyanotoxins in Fish Tom Hornshaw, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
4:30pm - 4:55pm	Cyanotoxin Toxicity: Fish and Human Health Assessment Lesley V. D'Anglada, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
4:55pm - 5:10pm	Question and Answer Session
5:10pm - 5:30pm	Break
5:30pm - 6:00pm	Visit Poster and Outreach Display
Tuesday, Septe	mber 23
7:30am - 5:30pm	Registration
7:30am - 8:00am	Visit Poster and Outreach Display
SESSION 4:	
Risk Assessmer Moderator: Alan Sterr	nt, Epidemiology, and Toxicology
8:00am - 8:05am	Introduction Alan Stern
8:05am - 8:25am	PFOA – PFOS Health Effects: Draft Office of Water Health Assessments Joyce Donohue, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

<i>Tuesday, Septe</i> 8:25am - 8:45am	mber 23 CONTINUED EPA's Dioxin Reassessment and Toxicity-Equivalence Factors for Dioxin-Like Compounds Jeff Swartout, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
8:45am - 9:05am	EPA's Reassessment of the RfD for PCBs: Key Issues to Be Addressed Geniece Lehmann, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
9:05am - 9:25am	Co-occurrence of PCBs and Mercury in Fish Tissue: Is There a Case for Additivity Based on Common Developmental Endpoints? Vince Cogliano, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
9:25am - 9:45am	National Time Trends in Environmental Exposures and Fish Consumption in U.S. Women of Reproductive Age (NHANES 1999-2012) Rebecca Birch, Westat
9:45am - 10:00am	Question and Answer Session
10:00am - 10:15am	n Break
10:15am - 10:35am	Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice Ned Groth, Gelfond Fund
10:35am - 10:55am	Neurodevelopment Effects of Methylmercury Glenn Rice, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
10:55am - 11:15am	Epidemiological Evidence of Fish Consumption, Methylmercury Exposure, and Risk of Cardiovascular Diseases in Adults Jyrki Virtanen, University of Eastern Finland
11:15am - 11:35am	Status of IRIS Update for Organic and Inorganic Mercury Vince Cogliano, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
11:35am - 11:50am	Question and Answer Session
11:50am - 1:00pm	Lunch (on your own)

Tuesday, Sept	ember 23 continued
SESSION 5: Health Benefit: Moderator: Robert B	s and Risk Management rodberg, California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment
l:00pm - 1:05pm	Introduction Robert Brodberg
l:05pm - 1:25pm	Fatty Acid Content in Fish Species from the Great Lakes and Nearby Watersheds Meghan Williams, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources
l:25pm - 1:45pm	Great Lakes Basin Fish Consumption, Vitamin D, Selenium, Fatty Acids, Contaminant Distributions and Associations in 154 Wisconsin Anglers Henry Anderson, Wisconsin Division of Public Health
l:45pm - 2:05pm	Mercury–Nutrient Signatures in Seafood and in Blood of Seafood Consumers Roxanne Karimi, Stony Brook University
2:25pm - 2:45pm	Mercury, Selenium, and Selenium:Mercury Ratios in Fish and Risk Management Joanna Burger, Rutgers University, and Michael Gochfeld
2:45pm - 3:00pm	Question and Answer Session
3:00pm - 3:15pm	Break
3:15pm - 3:35pm	Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption for Cardiovascular Diseases Dariush Mozaffarian, Harvard Medical School, Tufts University
3:35pm - 3:55pm	Maternal Fish Intake during Pregnancy and Child Cognition Emily Oken, Harvard Medical School
3:55pm - 4:15pm	FDA Assessment of Net Effects on Neurodevelopment from Eating Commercial Fish During Pregnancy Phil Spiller, U.S. Food and Drug Administration

EPA 2014 1	National Forum on Contaminants in Fish
	Agenda
Tuesday, Septe	mber 23 CONTINUED
4:15pm - 4:35pm	Risk-Benefit of Consuming Lake Erie Fish Satyendra Bhavsar, Ontario Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change
4:35pm - 5:05pm	Updated Approach for Balancing the Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption on Neurodevelopmental Endpoints Gary Ginsberg, Connecticut Department of Public Health
5:05pm - 5:30pm	Question and Answer Session
Wednesday, Se	ptember 24
7:30am - 1:00pm	Registration
8:00am - 9:00am	Visit Poster and Outreach Display
Communication Moderator: Barbara K 9:00am - 9:05am	s to the Public nuth, Cornell University, Department of Natural Resources Introduction
9:05am - 9:25am	Dissemination of Information about FDA's Seafood-Associated Rhabdomyolysis, Puffer Fish Poisoning and Ciguatera Fish Poisoning Research Project Karen Swajian, U.S. Food and Drug Administration
9:25am - 9:45am	Consumer Understanding of the Benefits and Risks of Fish Consumption During Pregnancy Amy Lando, U.S. Food and Drug Administration
9:45am - 10:05am	Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to Increase Consumer Knowledge Mario Teisl, University of Maine
10:05am - 10:25am	Communicating Fish Advisory Information to Women of Childbearing Age Nancy Connelly, Cornell University
10:25am - 10:45am	1 Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages Bruce Lauber, Cornell University

2014 N	ational Forum on Contaminants in Fish
	Ауелоа
Wednesday, Sep	otember 23 CONTINUED
10:45am - 11:00am	Question and Answer Session
11:00am - 11:15am	Break
11:15am - 11:35am	Fish Advisory Outreach to Urban and Rural Alaska Stakeholders Ali Hamade, Alaska Section of Epidemiology
11:35am - 11:55am	Engaging Healthcare in Environmental Exposure Risk Reduction Michael Hatcher, U.S. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry
11:55am - 12:15pm	Fish Consumption for Clinicians: Increasing Knowledge of the Risks and Benefits of Fish and Evaluating Clinical Screening for Mercury Susan Buchanan, University of Illinois - Chicago
12:15pm - 12:45pm	Communicating Information to Reduce Mercury Exposures in Women of Childbearing Age Pat McCann, Minnesota Department of Health
12:45pm - 1:00pm	Question and Answer Session
1:00pm - Adjourn	Wrap-up: General Forum Moderator Jeff Bigler Office of Science and Technology U.S. Environmental Protection Agency



SECTION II BIOSKETCHES, ABSTRACTS, PRESENTATIONS, AND QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

SECTION II BIOSKETCHS, ABSTRACTS, PRESENTATIONS, AND QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

- II-A Welcome
- II-B Session 1: Fish Sampling and Analysis
- II-C Session 2: Federal, State, and Tribal Advisory Coordination
- II-D Session 3: Emerging Issue Harmful Algal Blooms and Fish Consumption
- II-E Session 4: Risk Assessment, Epidemiology, and Toxicology
- II-F Session 5: Health Benefits and Risk Management
- II-G Session 6: Communications to the Public

SECTION II-A WELCOME

Welcoming Remarks

Elizabeth Southerland, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Elizabeth Southerland has a Ph.D. in Environmental Sciences and Engineering from Virginia Tech University. She is currently the Director of the Office of Science and Technology in the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Office of Water. She is responsible for promulgating best available treatment technology permit limits for industries, developing aquatic life and human health water quality criteria under the Clean Water Act, deriving maximum contaminant level goals and health advisories under the Safe Drinking Water Act, approving or disapproving state water quality standards, and overseeing EPA's national fish advisory and beach contamination programs. Dr. Southerland has also worked in EPA's Superfund Program, the State of Virginia's Water Quality Program, and private consulting.

Welcome Address

Good morning, everyone. I am so happy to be here representing the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and to welcome you to the 12th National Forum on Contaminants in Fish. EPA's Fish Forum brings together representatives and experts from the states, tribes, federal agencies, industry, environmental advocacy groups, community representatives, healthcare organizations, and academia. The goal of the Fish Forum is to present and discuss the latest science and public health policies pertaining to the health risks and benefits of fish consumption. The plenary sessions will include a variety of perspectives and approaches to assessing and communicating public health risks and benefits related to fish consumption. In addition to the sessions, we also have the posters and outreach materials located at the back of the room. This information is available for attendees throughout the Fish Forum.

The first Fish Forum was held in 1990 in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, which was co-sponsored with the American Fisheries Society. I was actually there as well as other "old-timers" who attended back in 1990, including Rick Greene from Delaware, our first moderator this morning; Brian Toal from Connecticut; Tom Hornshaw from Illinois; Henry Anderson from Wisconsin; and Jeff Bigler from EPA's Office of Water who has planned and chaired the Fish Forum since 1994. Did I miss anyone? Subsequent Fish Forums have been held every few years since then.

We have many great presentations ahead, but first I want to thank the 2014 Fish Forum Steering Committee. The committee included Robert Brodberg from the California Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Environmental Health Assessment; Razelle Hoffman-Contois from the Vermont Department of Health; Dave McBride from the Washington State Department of Health; Pat McCann from the Minnesota Department of Health; Sharee Rusnak from the Connecticut Department of Public Health; Jackie Fisher from EPA's Great Lakes National Program Office; and Jeff Bigler from EPA.

First, I'll provide an overview of EPA's fish advisory and fish contamination activities—past, present, and future. Some of our other Agency activities include reduction of bioaccumulative

contaminants in fish and documentation of the nature and extent of fish contaminants. As you know, the Fish Advisory Program has been active at EPA for several decades now. In 1990, at the first Fish Forum, we developed a plan to help EPA identify technical assistance to aid states and tribes in developing and maintaining fish advisory programs. In 1993, EPA developed the first National Listing of Fish Advisories, a compilation of information on locally issued fish advisories and safe eating guidelines. In 1994, we issued the first in a series of comprehensive national technical guidance documents on developing and managing local fish advisories. We also updated the guidance in 1997 and again in 2000.

In 2001, EPA and the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) simultaneously issued fish consumption advice. FDA issued advice that addressed commercial fish and EPA issued advice that addressed locally caught fish. In 2004, EPA and FDA collaborated to jointly issue the public health advisory about mercury in fish and shellfish.

Our studies of fish contaminants have been underway almost as long. In 1998, EPA launched the National Study of Chemical Residues in Lake Fish Tissue. In 2006, EPA began the National Pilot Study of Pharmaceuticals and Personal Care Products in Fish Tissue. In 2008, EPA initiated the 2008-09 National Rivers and Streams Assessment Fish Tissue Study. In 2010, EPA conducted the Great Lakes Human Health Fish Tissue Study under EPA's National Coastal Condition Assessment Fish Tissue Study. In 2013, EPA began the 2013-14 National Rivers and Streams Assessment Fish Fillet Study.

Some of EPA's recent activities in the Fish Advisory Program include the draft joint EPA/FDA National Mercury Advisory, which everyone knows has been out for public comment since June 2014. It is not on the agenda this year because we are in the middle of the comment period. I would strongly encourage everyone to comment at regulations.gov. The date for closure of public comment will be published in a future notice in the Federal Register.

EPA's other activities related to the Fish Advisory Program include the National Listing of Fish Advisories, which we have done annually from 1994 to 2014. The listing was originally developed to assist with providing information to the public. As you know, the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) analyzes fish consumption and blood or serum contaminant data to assess national trends. Last year, EPA released the NHANES report on blood-mercury and fish consumption for women of childbearing age using data from 1999 to 2010. While nationally the blood-mercury levels appeared to decrease significantly and then taper off, overall fish consumption did not appear to change (about two ounces per week). We are currently updating the analysis now to incorporate 2011 and 2012 mercury data. We will be tackling other chemicals next year.

In April 2014, we published a report on fish consumption rates in the United States. The report provided an update to our 2000 fish consumption rates analysis. We are also conducting multiple national and regional studies of fresh water fish contamination related to human health. We added human health fish tissue studies to the National Aquatic Resource Surveys. We have also conducted studies of contaminants of emerging concern (CECs), which developed data on CECs in fish related to human health. In 2009, we published CEC results on pharmaceuticals and personal care products. In 2013, we published CEC results on polybrominated diphenyl ether. In 2014, we published CEC results on perfluorinated compounds.

As we look ahead to the future, we are scheduled to begin implementing the new joint EPA/FDA National Mercury Advisory in 2015. We will be redesigning the National Listing of Fish Advisories beginning this year. After we redesign the National Listing of Fish Advisories, EPA will no longer need to provide the national summary of advisory information online because states and tribes will be maintaining their own advisory websites. This is a big accomplishment for all. Thanks to all the states and tribes that are issuing advisories. EPA believes that pointing people to the state and tribal websites will give the public more accurate and timely information. This will allow EPA to focus on collecting and compiling all the fish tissue data used for making advisory determinations by states and tribes and making that information available to the public all in one place.

EPA will also be focused on analyzing and publishing trends for PFCs, using methods similar to the blood-mercury approach from NHANES. EPA will also draft new national guidance for conducting fish consumption surveys and guidance for assessing the effectiveness of local fish advisories. EPA will release these draft guidance documents for review by all state and tribal advisory programs in 2015.

Elsewhere in the Agency, EPA conducts complementary activities that address fish contaminants, which can be sorted into two general categories: 1) reducing bioaccumulative contaminants in fish and 2) documenting the nature and extent of fish contamination. Some of EPA's activities to reduce bioaccumulative contaminants include reducing discharges to water; reducing emissions to air; reducing contaminant concentrations in soil and sediment; implementing the Great Lakes Binational Toxics Strategy; and addressing persistent, bioaccumulative, and toxic chemicals. Other activities include revisions to human health criteria; monitoring fish in the Great Lakes; and fish monitoring efforts for rivers, lakes, wetlands, and coasts. EPA also routinely evaluates bioaccumulation in fish during review of pesticide registrations.

As you can see, we have been quite busy across the Agency to make fish safer for consumption. EPA intends to continue doing what we can toward this goal. Thank you for coming, and we are looking forward to your participation in the Fish Forum.









Questions and Answers

- Q. Under the Legacy Act, EPA's Great Lakes National Program Office does remediation work in the Great Lakes states. Millions of dollars are spent annually, with most efforts focused on sediment remediation. Could some of the funding be used for purposes beyond sediment remediation? (Fisher)
- A. She is aware of one pilot example within the Superfund program that is focused more on making sure that discharges do not reach sediments.
- Q. As a physician, he sees patients who consume large quantities of fish. These patients are highend vulnerable consumers (greater than 90%) who have elevated mercury levels. They are interested in these high-end vulnerable consumers who are not captured by the numbers in recent research. (Gochfeld)
- A. The research for the 2014 NHANES report used a random statistical analysis and the numbers are for the average consumer. The study design for the national surveys currently does not include looking at subsistence fish consumption. In 2015, EPA expects to issue new draft guidance that will hopefully show state and local agencies how to conduct local or regional research studies on high-end consumers.
- Q. How is EPA going to deal with tribal fish consumption? How should we address suppression of tribal fish consumption?(Burger)
- A. The Spokane Tribe did a survey of high fish consumption rates, and found over 800 grams per day (compared to 20 grams/day for the average consumer). This is just a current snapshot of fishing in tribal waters. It is also important to consider heritage issues for tribes. The new draft guidance will address both heritage issues and suppression of fish consumption issues. In addition, some tribes are pushing for water quality standards.
- Q. What funding will be coming for biomonitoring surveys of fish? (Anderson)
- A. EPA is not currently planning new initiatives for biomonitoring of fish. The mobilization cost for collection of fish is the major part of the total costs for such surveys. EPA's Office of Science and Technology (OST) is piggybacking monitoring efforts onto other studies to reduce mobilization costs. Through this approach, OST can use smaller levels of funding to get additional analyzes done through national surveys and Great Lakes surveys.
- *Comment:* Most of EPA's current funding is going to clean up contaminated sediments and only a relatively small amount to biomonitoring or sampling surveys. (Anderson)
- *Q.* Are there any recent efforts to coordinate internationally on fish advisories? (Anderson)
- A. She is not aware of any EPA effort underway to coordinate internationally. We know that polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) and mercury are global concerns.

- *Comment:* He is not aware of any recent EPA effort to coordinate internationally either. We have to go back and look at the international perspective. (Bigler)
- *Q.* Where can you find information on Superfund remediation efforts? How do you assess cleanup of contaminated sediments? (Marcella Thompson)
- A. Look at EPA's website for information on each Superfund site. The cleanup approach is usually dredging sediments and covering with a cap of clean sediment. However, the water column may still have a higher PCB number than the water quality standard. It may not be technically feasible to meet water quality criteria because of PCB diffusion through sediment into the water. Generally, EPA says the cleanup benefit is that the number of fish meals can be increased versus the previous ban on fish consumption. If you can get one fish meal per month to show that fish consumption is again possible, you have a benefit from the cleanup.

SECTION II-B SESSION 1: FISH SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS

Introduction

Moderator:

Rick Greene, Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control

Biosketch

Dr. Rick Greene works for the Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control. He has managed Delaware's fish contaminant monitoring and advisory program since its inception in 1993 and has been involved in all advisories issued by Delaware. He holds a Ph.D. in Environmental Engineering from the University of Delaware where his research focused on congener-specific partitioning and trophic transfer of PCBs. Dr. Greene's recent work includes the first full-scale remediation project in North America to use direct placement of activated carbon in sediments to sequester PCBs and reduce bioaccumulation.

Presentations

Mercury and Legacy Organic Compounds in Fish from U.S. Rivers – A National Perspective *John Wathen, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency*

Perfluorinated Compounds in Fish from U.S. Urban Rivers and the Great Lakes *Leanne Stahl, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency*

Identifying Emerging Contaminants for Monitoring in State Fish Programs Beth Murphy, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Safety Testing of Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish after the BP Oil Spill *Tim Fitzgerald, Environmental Defense Fund*

Mercury and Legacy Organic Compounds in Fish from U.S. Rivers – A National Perspective

John Wathen, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

John Wathen is the assistant chief of the Fish, Shellfish, Beaches and Outreach Branch in the Standards and Health Protection Division of the Office of Science and Technology in the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Office of Water. Mr. Wathen received his B.A. in Geology from Northeastern University and an M.S. in Earth Sciences from the University of New Hampshire. He worked as a consulting hydrogeologist for 15 years conducting landfill siting and closure investigations, industrial site remediation, and water source protection studies, primarily in northern New England. In 2000, he entered the public sector as Director of the Southern Maine Regional Office of the Maine Department of Environmental Protection, which was the position he held until joining EPA in 2005. He provides management and technical support to the BEACH Act monitoring and advisory program, with current emphasis on predictive modeling for beach advisories and recreational pathogen criteria development. He also supports fish consumption advisories and fish tissue research on persistent contaminants and contaminants of emerging concern and their potential ecological and human health implications. Mr. Wathen is a Maine Certified Geologist, a Registered Geologist in Kentucky, and a Certified Ground Water Professional.

Abstract

Mercury and persistent halogenated organic compounds occur in fish tissue in U.S. lakes, rivers, and streams. Mercury, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), and DDT occurring in fish tissue are the leading cause of fish consumption advisories. EPA's Office of Water and Office of Research and Development collaborated to conduct a statistically based survey of persistent and bioaccumulative contaminants in fish from U.S. rivers. This national fish survey was conducted June through October in 2008 and 2009 within EPA's National Rivers and Streams Assessment (NRSA), a probabilitybased survey designed to assess the condition of the nation's streams and rivers. NRSA field teams applied consistent methods nationwide to collect single 5-fish composite samples consisting of adults of comparable length of the same fish species at 541 randomly selected river locations (\geq 5th order) in the lower 48 states. Largemouth and smallmouth bass were the primary species collected for the study, accounting for 34% and 24% of all fish composites, respectively. Homogenate samples were analyzed for mercury by AA and a suite of approximately 50 organo-halogen compounds including PCBs (21 congeners), polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs) (8 congeners), chlordane, and DDT compounds and degradation products, and other pesticides (aldrin, dieldrin, mirex, and endosulfan) by GC-ECD. Samples were collected from both non-urban (379 sites) and urban locations (162 sites). All samples contained mercury above the quantitation level, and study data indicate that PCBs, PBDEs, chlordane, and DDT compounds occur at quantifiable levels in almost every fish sample collected for the study. Both human health and aquatic life thresholds are applied to fish tissue concentrations of mercury and these four organo-halogen contaminant groups from both urban and non-urban sites and within three eco-regions. In addition, we are examining the percentages of co-occurrence of four organic compound groups at concentrations above the respective contaminant group medians.












Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

Perfluorinated Compounds in Fish from U.S. Urban Rivers and the Great Lakes

Leanne Stahl, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Leanne Stahl is an environmental scientist in the Office of Science and Technology (OST) within the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Office of Water. Since 1999, she has served as the Project Manager for a series of fish contamination studies conducted by OST, including the National Lake Fish Tissue Study, the National Pilot Study of Pharmaceuticals and Personal Care Products in Fish Tissue, the National Rivers and Streams Assessment Fish Tissue Study, and the Great Lakes Human Health Fish Tissue Study, and co-authored five technical journal articles reporting results from these studies. Leanne moved to EPA from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration in 1990 and she worked in coastal and sediment contamination programs during her early years at EPA. Prior to joining federal service, she served as the fisheries specialist for a marine research team at the University of Washington in Seattle.

Abstract

Perfluorinated compounds (PFCs) have recently received scientific and regulatory attention due to their broad environmental distribution, persistence, bioaccumulative potential, and toxicity. Studies suggest that fish consumption may be a source of human exposure to perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) or long-chain perfluorocarboxylic acids. Most fish tissue literature related to PFC contamination focuses on marine fish and waters outside of the United States. To broaden assessments in U.S. fish, EPA conducted a national-scale study of urban rivers under the 2008-09 National Rivers and Streams Assessment (NRSA) and a regional-scale study of the Great Lakes under the 2010 National Coastal Condition Assessment (NCCA) to characterize PFC contamination in freshwater fish. EPA applied an unequal probability design in the NRSA Urban River Study and the NCCA Great Lakes Human Health Fish Tissue Study to randomly select 164 urban river sites and 157 nearshore Great Lakes sites for fish sample collection. Fillet tissue was analyzed for 13 PFCs using high-performance liquid chromatography tandem mass spectrometry. PFCs were detected in 80% of the urban river samples and 100% of the Great Lakes samples. Results showed that PFOS dominated in frequency of occurrence, followed by three longer-chain perfluorocarboxylic acids (perfluorodecanoic acid, perfluoroundecanoic acid, and perfluorododecanoic acid). Maximum PFOS concentrations (wet weight) were 127 and 80 ng/g in urban river and Great Lakes samples, respectively. The study results can be extrapolated to the sampled population of 17,059 kilometers (km) in urban rivers and to a nearshore area of 11,091 km² in the Great Lakes.









- Q. Do you have any data on the co-occurrence of PFCs in fish samples? (Stern)
- A. They have not looked at any data regarding the co-occurrence of PFCs. However, their data showed more than one PFC occurred in some fish tissue samples.
- *Q.* How did you collect the fish samples, specifically what process was used for sampling and what people were used for collecting samples? Did you involve people who actually fish in the sampling process, such as recreational fishers? For example, recreational fishers can be used as citizen scientists. (Bawden)
- A. The sampling was conducted primarily by state crews, who were coordinated by EPA's Office of Wetlands, Oceans and Watersheds (OWOW). Some private crews were also used in the sampling process as well as tribal crews and U.S. Geological Survey staff. OWOW prepared a manual about the standard protocols for sampling and posted it online. All crews had rigorous training on the standard sampling protocols.
- *Comment:* At EPA's Research Triangle Park office in North Carolina, there are two EPA experts who have conducted local studies on PFCs in fish in North Carolina and Alabama. Andrew Lindstrom and Mike Strynar are experts on water and fish monitoring for PFCs. (Stahl)

Identifying Emerging Contaminants for Monitoring in State Fish Programs

Beth Murphy, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Elizabeth Murphy is the program manager for the Great Lakes Fish Monitoring and Surveillance Program (GLFMSP) in the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Great Lakes National Program Office (GLNPO). As program manager for a 30-plus year program, Ms. Murphy is responsible for monitoring and surveillance of historical and emerging contaminants in Great Lakes fish over time and determining the presence of new chemicals in fish tissue. She works very closely with the Great Lakes Consortium for Fish Consumption Advisories, Lakewide Action and Management Plans, Partner Agencies and Programs, and the Environment Canada National Fish Contaminant Monitoring and Surveillance Program to ensure that high quality data is used in decision making and reporting. Additionally, Ms. Murphy has been involved with a variety of education and outreach projects in GLNPO, including the creation of posters and other outreach materials. She made her video debut in a Chicago Emmy nominated Chicago Public Television series, City Science. Ms. Murphy received her B.S. in Environmental Science from North Carolina State University and her M.P.H. in Environmental Public Health from the University of Illinois at Chicago. In a past life, Beth enjoyed traveling the world and photographing it, both above and below the water. Now, she enjoys teaching her children about the Great Lakes and raising them to be good environmental stewards.

Abstract

Emerging contaminant surveillance was added in 2010 as a core function of GLFMSP, an EPA program operated by a cooperative agreement between GLNPO and the Clarkson University Research consortium. The goal of the surveillance is to qualify and quantify, when possible, new chemicals that are present in whole body top predators in Lakes Superior, Michigan, Huron, Erie, and Ontario. Results of this surveillance are becoming available and are summarized by the presentation, including methodology and the research paradigm used to identify chemicals and to share the information with state and tribal advisory programs for prioritization in monitoring.









- Q. Why did you decide to use whole body versus fish fillet samples? Why did you not consider using both of them? (Pinkney)
- A. This program started as an ecological program so they used whole body samples. Later the greater need turned out to be emerging contaminants so they kept using whole body samples.
- *Q.* Did you consider any ongoing data streams from EPA or private sources to identify chemical targets? Are there any current data streams that would identify emerging contaminants? (Kyle)
- A. They have been working with EPA's Office of Science and Technology, which is a good resource. EPA's Great Lakes National Program Office is using a "rifle and shotgun" approach. For the "rifle" approach, they use a targeted search for chemicals or compounds in high production within the Great Lakes region. This approach is based on the Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement. For the "shotgun" approach, they are looking at chemical peaks in samples and trying to identify chemicals or compounds of concern for which they should be following up on with additional monitoring.

Safety Testing of Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish after the BP Oil Spill

Tim Fitzgerald, Environmental Defense Fund

Biosketch

Tim Fitzgerald directs the Environmental Defense Fund sustainable seafood program, and specializes in the intersection of environmental sustainability and public health. Mr. Fitzgerald serves on the board of Ecofish LLC, Seafood Safe LLC, and Gulf Wild, and is an advisor to Fair Trade USA, SeaWeb's Kid Safe Seafood, and the Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission. Mr. Fitzgerald also develops sustainable sourcing policies for retailers, foodservice companies, restaurants, and other major seafood buyers. Mr. Fitzgerald earned his M.Sc. (2002) in Zoology from the University of Hawai'i, and his B.S. (1998) in Biology from Duke University. His graduate research focused on the behavioral ecology and sensory physiology of tropical sharks, making appearances on Discovery Channel's Shark Week and National Geographic Explorer. He is a frequent speaker on conservation and human health issues concerning the U.S. seafood market, and has been featured in the Wall Street Journal, New York Times, and NPR's Fresh Air, in addition to being invited to provide testimony in front of the President's Commission on the BP Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill.

Abstract

The BP Deepwater Horizon oil spill posed a significant threat to the U.S. seafood industry. Invertebrates (shrimp, oyster, crab) and other nearshore species comprised the majority of post-spill testing by federal and state agencies. Deeper water finfish were sampled less frequently, despite population ranges that overlapped with affected waters. We conducted a voluntary testing program with Gulf of Mexico commercial fishermen to ensure the safety of their catch. Seven species of reef fish were tested for polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), a suite of metals, and a constituent of Corexit dispersants. Two percent of samples had detectable levels of benzo(a)-pyrene-equivalents (a combined measure of carcinogenic potency across seven different PAHs), which were still below federal safety thresholds. PAH ratios for these samples suggest pyrogenic contamination – indicating potential sources other than Deepwater Horizon. Metals were largely absent (cadmium, lead) or consistent with levels previously reported (mercury, arsenic). One notable exception was tilefish, which showed mercury concentrations lower than expected. We did not detect dispersant in any of our samples, indicating that it was not present in these species during the study period. Our findings suggest minimal risk to public health from these seafoods as a result of the disaster; however, the most contaminated areas were not sampled through this program.

SESSION 1: FISH SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS Safety Testing of Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish after the BP Oil Spill – Tim Fitzgerald





SESSION 1: FISH SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS Safety Testing of Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish after the BP Oil Spill - Tim Fitzgerald

ed snapper	snapper testing 2010-12	
	<u>Gov't standard</u>	<u>THIS STUDY</u>
PAHs*	35 ppb BaPe	0.00 ppb BaPe
Dispersant*	150 ppm	<0.05 ppm
Arsenic**	87 ppm	0.45 ppm
Cadmium**	2.9 ppm	<0.01 ppm
Mercury**	0.29 ppm	0.13 ppm

* FDA/NOAA Deepwater Horizon Protocol ** EPA National Guidance for Sportfish Advis

Tilefish testing 2010-12

	<u>Gov't standard</u>	THIS STUDY
PAHs*	35 ppb BaPe	0.00 ppb BaPe
Dispersant*	150 ppm	<0.05 ppm
Arsenic**	87 ppm	9.05 ppm
Cadmium**	2.9 ppm	<0.01 ppm
Mercury**	0.29 ppm	0.55 ppm

* FDA/NOAA Deepwater Horizon Protocol ** EPA National Guidance for Sportfish Advisories

Gulf Wild[®]

Comprehensive seafood assurance campaign

- Addresses issues of conservation, safety, traceability, authenticity, marketing
- Voluntary measures that are made possible 🧱 by & complement management
- A new way to respond to fishery disasters



Grouper testing 2010-12

	<u>Gov't standard</u>	THIS STUDY
PAHs*	35 ppb BaPe	0.53 ppb BaPe
Dispersant*	150 ppm	<0.05 ppm
Arsenic**	87 ppm	0.71 ppm
Cadmium**	2.9 ppm	<0.01 ppm
Mercury**	0.29 ppm	0.27 ppm

* FDA/NOAA Deepwater Horizon Protocol ** EPA National Guidance for Sportfish Advisories

MERCURY RESULTS IN COMPARISON

FISH	Hg (this study)	Hg (Karimi et al. 2012)*
Grouper	0.267 ppm (27)	0.395 ppm (662)
Red snapper	0.126 ppm (22)	0.202 ppm (231)
Tilefish	0.550 ppm (4)	1.445 ppm (61)





Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved directly into the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

General Question and Answer Session

- Q. At the Colorado Department of Health and Environment, they are getting resistance from their Department of Natural Resources, Fish and Wildlife biologists who are concerned about starting fish sampling for new contaminants. The Fish and Wildlife biologists are concerned about protecting fisheries (e.g., not depleting fish) and protecting tourism. How can fish be collected and monitored, given these issues? (Richardson)
- A. EPA's Great Lakes National Program Office is a federal program collaborating with other federal programs. However, they collaborate with state departments of natural resources (DNRs) routinely for collecting and monitoring fish for mercury, etc. State DNRs are usually the best fish collectors, but they may want to collect fish for different purposes. In reality, the real hurdle for her program is finding laboratories that can conduct analyses for emerging contaminants. (Murphy)
- *Q.* Because the Colorado Department of Natural Resources will not collect fish, do you have any other suggestions? (Richardson)
- A. A contractor is probably the best solution. Under her program in the Great Lakes region, they have not had success with using citizen scientists to collect fish. (Murphy)
- *Comment:* If you find a location within Colorado where emerging contaminants occur, then your DNR's biologists might provide assistance. That approach might allow you to show a "success story" to mitigate concerns about other issues. (Greene)
- *Q.* Are people continuing to look at the food chain effects when monitoring for oil-related contaminants in Gulf of Mexico fish? You could look at the food chain for oil-related contaminants from crayfish all the way up to the fish eaten by consumers. (Burger)
- A. There is a lot of research analyzing inshore fish that are lower in the food chain and caught from inshore areas in the Gulf of Mexico. He suggested looking for published studies on this research. (Fitzgerald)
- Q. The data about arsenic levels in the Environmental Defense Fund (EDF) study are two times lower than data published in government studies. Why are there differences in these levels? (Ralston)
- A. There was no relevant data in the federal databases for the three marine species researched in the EDF study (i.e., red snapper, grouper, tilefish). EDF tried to compare their results to tissue levels for marine species through fish tissue searches in EPA's National Listing of Fish Advisories, but that database did not have much information on these three marine species. EDF would have liked to make comparisons to existing data, but there was nothing great to compare to. (Fitzgerald)
- Q. At the National Seafood Inspection Laboratory, they have found that you must present data along with the size of fish and also age. He questioned whether using the mean was helpful if you

do not keep track of the size of fish. He urged everyone to keep this in mind when doing sampling and to collect fish of a range of sizes. Also he recommended that it is best to look at individual fish versus composite samples when analyzing fish sampling results. (Lowery)

- A. After the moderator asked Beth Murphy whether she found their data changed with the size of fish, she replied that in their study it was the age of fish—not size—that was important. (Murphy)
- A. After the moderator asked Leanne Stahl whether EPA could plot data based on the length of fish, she replied that EPA has that data. (Stahl)
- A. The full data set of the EDF study is online. (Fitzgerald)
- Q. You need to be mindful of your approach, and the approach for linking results to the consumer's health is difficult. Some data can get complex and the results may get misleading, especially when presented in laymen's terms. Focusing on popular fish and the size of fish may help communicate with the public. (Bhavsar)
- A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.

SECTION II-C SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION

Introduction

Moderator:

Rick Greene, Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control

Biosketch

Dr. Rick Greene works for the Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control. He has managed Delaware's fish contaminant monitoring and advisory program since its inception in 1993 and has been involved in all advisories issued by Delaware. He holds a Ph.D. in Environmental Engineering from the University of Delaware where his research focused on congener-specific partitioning and trophic transfer of PCBs. Dr. Greene's recent work includes the first full-scale remediation project in North America to use direct placement of activated carbon in sediments to sequester PCBs and reduce bioaccumulation.

Presentations

State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for Cook Inlet Bob Gerlach, Alaska; Michael Opheim and Tracie Merrill, Seldovia Village Tribe

State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for the Upper Columbia River/Lake Roosevelt *Liz Carr, Washington; Cindy Marchand, Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation*

State-Tribal Partnership for Updating the Advisory for Clear Lake Margy Gassel, California; Sarah Ryan, Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians

State-Tribal Partnership for Updating the Advisories for the St. Lawrence River Watershed *Faith Schottenfeld, New York; Tony David, Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe*

Communication of Fish Advisories Between States and Federal Lands: Results from a Survey of 21 Western National Parks David Wong, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service

How EPA Utilizes Fish Advisories as Institutional Controls at Superfund Sites *Steve Ridenour, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency*

State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for Cook Inlet

Bob Gerlach, Alaska; Michael Opheim and Tracie Merrill, Seldovia Village Tribe

Biosketch

Robert F. Gerlach

Dr. Robert F. Gerlach works for the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation as the Alaska State Veterinarian. He is responsible for animal health regulations, animal disease surveillance, managing the state's Fish Monitoring Program, and is the state's Fish Advisory Program Coordinator. Dr. Gerlach received his B.S. in Veterinary Science from the Pennsylvania State University and graduated with a Doctor of Veterinary Medicine from the University of Pennsylvania. He was attending veterinarian and post-doctoral fellow at the Lovelace Respiratory Research Institute in Albuquerque, New Mexico. In 1987, he moved to Alaska and worked in private practice until being hired by the state to manage the state's Fish Monitoring Program. Working with state and federal partners, in addition to commercial, recreational, and subsistence fisherman, over 7,800 finfish and invertebrates have been collected and analyzed for environmental contaminants. The data generated by the program is used by the Alaska Department of Health and Social Services to develop fish consumption advice for Alaska residents.

Michael Opheim

Michael Opheim is of Aleut descent and currently resides in Seldovia, Alaska. Michael grew up harvesting from the land and sea with family members. Similar to most young Alaska men, he spent nine years as a commercial fisherman. He became the Environmental Coordinator for the Seldovia Village Tribe (SVT) in 2003. As the Environmental Coordinator, he is responsible for administration and management of the Indian General Assistance Program and other environmental projects. Under his leadership, the SVT Environmental Office has flourished bringing essential environmental projects to Seldovia that benefit the entire community. Mr. Opheim finds his best days are those days that allow him time in the field doing what he loves best. As the Environmental Coordinator, he has been able to travel throughout the state, establishing contacts and friends throughout tribal communities. Michael believes that we are stewards of our natural resources, and works to ensure those resources are available for future generations.

Tracie Merrill

Tracie Merrill has worked as the Environmental Assistant for the SVT in Seldovia, Alaska, since 2009. She is responsible for assisting SVT's Environmental Coordinator in field work for the various environmental projects and programs being undertaken by the tribe: data entry, analysis, and management; technical report writing; and assisting in grant proposal writing. Ms. Merrill received her M.S. in Marine Biology from the University of Alaska – Fairbanks in 2008 and her B.S. in Marine Biology from the University of Maine – Machias in 2004. Prior to working for SVT, she worked as an Avian Science Technician, Marine Science Instructor, Naturalist, Fisheries Observer, and at a marine mammal stranding center and an aquarium in New Jersey.

Abstract

SVT's Environmental Coordinator and Assistant will discuss: 1) a Fish Consumption Assessment undertaken for four villages in Cook Inlet, Alaska (Seldovia, Port Graham, Nanwalek, and Tyonek) between 2011 and 2012 to determine current fish and shellfish consumption rates of tribal members as well as consumption rates of other selected traditional foods, 2) results of this assessment, and 3)

collaboration with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) in this assessment as well as tissue sampling of sockeye salmon within Cook Inlet for contaminants in partnership with ADEC's Fish Tissue Monitoring Program.

SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for Cook Inlet - Bob Gerlach 2014 EPA National Forum on **Contaminants in Fish Coordinating Efforts in** the Last Frontier Population 640,000 229 Federally Recognized Tribes **Bob Gerlach** 3 million lakes 12,000 rivers 33,000 Spanning 3 different seas: Arctic Ocean, Pacific Ocean, Bering Sea 33,000 miles of coastline **Buck Furin** AK Dept of Environmental Conservation Sources of Environmental Fish Monitoring Program: **General Survey of Alaskan Fishes:** Contaminants • Commercial, Subsistence, Recreational species Local <u>Collaborative Effort for sample collection</u> • Natural Geologic sources, forest fire · Federal and State agencies, commercial, recreational and • Cities and Industrial production subsistence fish harvest Military Sites Outreach of data results • Resource Extraction- mines, oil exploration Selected coastal sites: • Remote communities and villages Long Range Transport Adjacent to anthropogenic activities: • Atmospheric cities, discharges/runoff • Ocean Currents Historic mining sites • Animal migration • Commercial transport **Analyze Finfish and Invertebrates:** Areas Fish were Collected for the **Fish Monitoring Program** Evaluate contaminant levels in skinless fillet and whole fish Russic from freshwater, estuaries and Alask marine environments 60* 55*1 Data is used to: Determine if there are any areas, species, or contaminants 50*1 that warrant more in-depth sampling and evaluation. · Provide Alaskan residents with information to make an Total Samples ~ 7,800 informed dietary decision based on Risks and Benefits of eating. Alaskan Fish State wide and local advisories. • 2014 Updated Fish Consumption Advice for Alaskans Number of Fish Samples per Region

SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for Cook Inlet – Bob Gerlach

Fish Monitoring Program			
ATKA MACKEREL	10		
BURBOT	27		
CAPELIN	45		
CHAR-ARCTIC + DOLLY VARDEN	50		
CRABS	368		
CISCO	47		
CLAMS, COCKLES, CHITON,SEA	379		
COD	195		
EULACHON (Candlefish)	35		
GEODUCK	132		
GRAYLING	47		
GREENLING	45		
HALIBUT	1919		
HERRING	32		
IRISH LORD-RED	19		
IRISH LORD-YELLOW	14		
LAMPREY	10		
LINGCOD	230		
MUSSELS, BLUE	44		
NORTHERN PIKE	572		
OCTOPUS-SQUID	12		

OYSTERS-SCALLOPS	141
POLLOCK	195
ROCKFISH-BLACK	79
ROCKFISH-DUSKY	66
PACIFIC OCEAN PERCH	83
ROCKFISH-YELLOWEYE	116
ROCKFISH SPECIES	66
SABLEFISH	249
SALMON-CHINOOK	479
SALMON-CHUM	302
SALMON-PINK	188
SALMON-RED	401
SALMON-SILVER	664
SAND LANCE	47
SHARK	111
SPINY DOGFISH	52
SHEEFISH	16
SKATE	186
SOLE, FLOUNDER	30
STICKLEBACK, SCULPIN	121
TROUT-LAKE	124
WHITEFISH	142

ADEC Division of Water Triennial Review



- Recent studies have determined that the Fish Consumption Rate used in the current Human Health Criteria formula may not accurately reflect consumption rates in certain parts of Alaska
- Stakeholders have called for ADEC to review and revise the Human Health Criteria
- ADEC is working with many tribal organizations and communities to establish consumption rates

Assessment of Contaminants in Subsistence Foods



•Analytes of interest:

- Trace elements: THg, MeHg, As, Cd, Cu, Pb, Se
- > Organochlorine pesticides (18), Toxaphene, PCBs, PBDEs
- Data will be added to ADEC existing database
- Snapshot of contaminants in important subsistence foods
- Guidance for future work in Cook Inlet

State Tribal Partnership with Cook Inlet Tribal Villages

Communities of Seldovia, Port Gram, Nanwalek



Assessment of Contaminants in Subsistence Foods of Cook Inlet

•Collaborative effort to design, collect and analyze fish

- samples
- Existing fish contaminant data for the area was provided

•ADEC involvement includes:

- > Assistance in drafting QAPP
- Sampling SOP
- Shipping and analytical analysis



Complex Issue:

- Varied sources of Environmental Contaminants
- Site specific and regional differences
- Possible Impacts on ecosystem health
 - Water quality
- Animal health food quality
- Public health
- Benefits of subsistence diet
- Need for monitoring to determine presence and evaluate trends
- Need for clear information to the public







SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for Cook Inlet – Michael Opheim and Tracie Merrill

- · Top three sources of fish:
 - 80.8% of all respondents obtained their fish by personally harvesting the fish themselves and/or through family members
 9.7% from friends
 - 4.8% from ceremonies
- Most popular fish cooking methods were smoking, canning, panfrying, and baking



Okay, tribal members eat a lot of fish but what's in our fish?

- Funded by an EPA IGAP unmet needs grant to test 36 whole body sockeye salmon caught within Cook Inlet for contaminants- suppose to have happened this summer (2014) but by time QAPP approved, missed sockeye salmon runs so ???....
- Salmon will be tested through ADEC's fish tissue monitoring program following their protocols and documentation— analyzing free of charge for us
- Two samplers hired from each village to collect samples
 9 samples collected from around each village (4 villages)
 composite samples made up of three whole body fish homogenized

- Collaboration with ADEC, EPA, and other tribes (outside of partner tribes)
- Peer reviewing
- Have given numerous presentations
- Shared assessment documents
- Working closely with the Sun'aq Tribe of Kodiak
- - permitting for oil and gas development and production in Cook Inlet

What we have done so far:

- Lined up samplers
- Purchased supplies and got kits assembled
- Got QAPP approved
- Worked with ADEC (they have been great) to develop QAPP, sampling design, and methods
- Researched available contaminant data for fish and
- shellfish collected within Cook Inlet
- Created SOPs for samplers

Acknowledgements: BIG THANKS TO:

- The Columbia River Basin tribes and Columbia River Inter-Tribal Fish Commission
- IGAP staff and Tribal council members of Port Graham, Nanwalek, and Tyonek
- Interviewers and samplers
- All the Tribal members who participated in assessment
- EPA
- ADEC especially for helping us with our QAPP, project
- design, and lab analysis
- Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC)

QUESTIONS???

Michael Opheim, SVT Environmental Coordinator 907-435-3247 mopheim@svt.org

Tracie Merrill, SVT Environmental Assistant 907-435-3261 tmerrill@svt.org



Note: No questions were asked.

State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for the Upper Columbia River/Lake Roosevelt

Liz Carr, Washington; Cindy Marchand, Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation

Biosketch

Liz Carr

Liz Carr is the Fish Advisories Program Coordinator for the Office of Environmental Health, Safety, and Toxicology at the Washington State Department of Health. She received her B.S. in Marine Biology and M.S. in Environmental Studies from The Evergreen State College. She developed Washington State's Healthy Fish Guide using a social marketing approach that helps guide the public to eat fish high in health benefits and low in contaminants identified by toxicologists. With over 15 years' experience coordinating marine-related scientific research projects and environmental and public health programs, she is interested in the intersection of science, advocacy, policy, program development, and public education.

Cindy Marchand

Cindy Marchand is the CERCLA Coordinator for the Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation Office of Environmental Trust Boundary Waters Program. She is a graduate of Eastern Washington University receiving a B.A. in Interdisciplinary Studies with an emphasis in Business Administration, Economics, and Anthropology. Ms. Marchand works on the Remedial Investigation/Feasibility (RI/FS) Study on the Upper Columbia River/Lake Roosevelt Site in Washington State. She was the lead on the Upper Columbia River Tribal Consumption and Resource Use Study, the largest tribal survey ever conducted.

Abstract

RI/FS studies dating back to 2001, including the Upper Columbia River Tribal Consumption and Resource Use Study, are yielding critical information for visitors and residents wishing to safely swim, play, fish, and enjoy Lake Roosevelt. This session will demonstrate how federal, state, and tribal government and local groups partnered to summarize human health information resulting in unique fish advisory information and an in-progress survey to determine the effectiveness of these outreach materials that promote our common goal: to keep people eating fish.








2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish - Proceedings / Page 66





Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved along to the next speaker on this panel.

State-Tribal Partnership for Updating the Advisory for Clear Lake

Margy Gassel, California; Sarah Ryan, Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians

Biosketch

Margy Gassel

Dr. Margy Gassel is a Research Scientist with the California Environmental Protection Agency's Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA). She received a Bachelor's degree in Biology from the University of Tennessee, Knoxville, and a Master's degree and Ph.D. in Integrative Biology from the University of California at Berkeley. Dr. Gassel has worked with the Fish, Ecotoxicology, and Water Section since 1994, evaluating the health risks and benefits from fish consumption and developing and issuing advisories. She is involved in sampling design; fish consumption surveys; community outreach, education, and collaboration; and developing graphic presentations of advisory messages. In 2009, Dr. Gassel represented her agency on a marine debris research expedition to the North Pacific Gyre ("Great Pacific Garbage Patch") to investigate the role of marine debris in food web contamination.

Sarah Ryan

Sarah Ryan has worked for the Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians since September 2001 and has been the Environmental Director since 2006. She has a degree in Government from the College of William and Mary in Virginia and has obtained various certifications for the environmental protection activities that she performs on a regular basis. Ms. Ryan has worked closely with tribal members, the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Board, and U.S. EPA Region 9 on water quality issues and fish consumption issues. This work includes algal toxin testing and water chemistry parameters and pesticide monitoring on Clear Lake and its tributaries, nutrient and mercury TMDL implementation measures on Clear Lake, and programmatic and policy development on regional water quality issues.

Abstract

Clear Lake is a large natural lake located in the California Coast Range in Lake County, California. The Northern California Coast Range is naturally rich in mercury and other ores, and the Clear Lake Mining District in Lake County was one of the primary mercury producing districts in the late 1800s. Lake County is home to several bands of Pomo Indians and other Native Americans. The Elem Indian Colony of Pomo Indians is located adjacent to the Sulphur Bank Mercury Mine on the eastern shore of Clear Lake. OEHHA first provided advice for eating fish from Clear Lake in 1987 based on findings of mercury in fish collected from the lake. Since the original advisory was issued, further studies of mercury in Clear Lake were done, and OEHHA updated the advisory in 2005 and 2009. Like OEHHA's other advisories, however, only typical sport fish species were included in the advisory. Despite requests from the Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians to include traditional tribal foods in the guidelines for Clear Lake, OEHHA was unable to obtain the necessary data until 2013. Once these data were received, OEHHA updated the advisory with input from tribal members. The updated advisory for Clear Lake now also includes species of interest to the tribe, such as clams. This accomplishment would not have been possible without collaboration with the tribal representatives.



STATE-TRIBAL PARTNERSHIP FOR **UPDATING THE** ADVISORY FOR CLEAR LAKE

Margy Gassel, Ph.D. California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) Sarah Ryan

Environmental Protection Department, Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians



Clear Lake, California



Clear Lake Volcanic Field

- •Contains seven volcanic vents 10,000 to 2.5 million years old
- The Clear Lake Basin was shaped by volcanic eruptions, subsidence, and landslides over the last 1-2 million years
- •Clear Lake has generally been located in the same area





Cinnabar





Mount Konocti rises above Clear Lake, Nov. 2008

Nature's Mysterious Laboratory. Howard Hot & Gold Mineral Springs,

<text><text><text><text><text><text>

Hot and Cold Iron, Hot and Cold Magnesia, Petassium, Cold Sulphur, Celd Boras, Cold Alum, Sodium, Cold Silica, and Spathing Cold Soda. These well-known springs as hosted in the southern ortenaity of Sulpher

statery, Lattry Later master from the barrier from Cognosing to Freen Station, at the high phil passenges are set by the Howard Sprange along, thereby eaching arrows leveling that Principles (Okland, Skernstatte or Woolland, in the more The charges are result by the Dyrewick for banch, so constant lath. Grnkm with a complete analysis of the offerent springs will be mark us applications. The charges are results of the offerent springs will be mark us applications with a complete analysis of the offerent springs will be mark us applications.

Por further particulars, address PHIL, SIEBEN, PROPRIETOR, Lake County, Col



2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish — Proceedings / Page 72





8/17/2013

Advisory History at Clear Lake

- •1987: OEHHA's first advisory for eating fish from Clear Lake
- 2005: OEHHA updated the Clear Lake advisory using data compiled to develop a Total Daily Maximum Load (TMDL)
- 2009: OEHHA updated its fish advisories and applied Advisory Tissue Levels to all advisories
- •2014: Clear Lake advisory updated to include species of interest to Tribe

USEPA Remediation

- Erosion control measures to stabilize the shoreline waste pile
- Removal of the contaminated soil from residential yards in the Elem Tribal Colony
- Construction of surface water controls to prevent overflows of contaminated water to Clear Lake
- Proper closure and abandonment of three geothermal wells at the mine property
- Contaminated mine waste removal from roadways and adjacent areas
- Installation of a test cap in Oaks Arm to cover contaminated sediments

State-Tribal Collaboration

- •Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians
- Tribe approached state with concerns about species of interest to the Tribe
- Requested OEHHA include species of interest in advisory
- Sarah Ryan and John Gichuki provided detailed information on Native American Traditional Lake Foods
- Historical and current consumption from Tribal elders, confirmed with younger members

Tribal Correspondence

"A large number of fish species, mussels, clams (and even some aquatic birds) that form significant ingredient in the protein supply to the tribal members were somehow left out in the fish advisory"

"Harvests from the lake may not directly target fish but could be a combination of fish, clams, mussels and some other aquatic organisms including birds and plants"

Main staple eaten year round - fish

- Fish (Sha) 10 lbs per family/2-3 lbs per day Blackfish (extinct) Hitch (extinct) not to be confused with Chai Ah-ah-sha (extinct) yellow cat Sha-pal (extinct) like steelhead Dee-tah (extinct) like crappe Sun Perch (extinct) Bluegill Trout Bass Catfish
- Whole fish baked or dried traditionally.
- · Still consumed, although currently at smaller amounts.

Other Traditional Foods

Mudhens (American coots)

Eaten twice a week, 1 per person when available Still consumed by a few Tribal members Eggs (Xkoh) crane, duck, mudhen, grebe, etc. As much as one could gather, as often as possible Still consumed by a few Tribal members

Clams (August, September, October) 3-4 lbs per family per day (when desired) At the present time, children collect as many clams through the summer to be cooked at home every day boiled to open, floured and deep fried Ducks (September – November) When desired

Still consumed by a few Tribal members

List of Aquatic Organisms

- 1. Golden clam (Corbicula fluminea)
- 2. Pink Heelpsplitter- Potamilus alatus (Mussel)
- 3. Tule perch (Hysterocarpus traskii traskii)
- 4. Prickly sculpin (Cottus asper)
- 5. California roach (Lavinia symmetricus)
- 6. Clear lake split-tail (Pogonichthys ciscoides)
- 7. Threadfin shad (Dorosoma petenense)
- 8. Inland silverside (Menidia beryllina)
- 9. Mosquito fish (Gambusia affinis)
- 10. Mudhens (Ducks)

List of Aquatic Organisms 2

- 1. Golden clam (Corbicula fluminea) 🤎
- 2. Pink Heelpsplitter- Potamilus alatus (Mussel)
- 3. Tule perch (Hysterocarpus traskii traskii)
- 4. Prickly sculpin (Cottus asper)
- 5. California roach (Lavinia symmetricus)
- 6. Clear lake split-tail (Pogonichthys ciscoides)
- 7. Threadfin shad (Dorosoma petenense)
- 8. Inland silverside (Menidia beryllina)
- 9. Mosquito fish (Gambusia affinis) 🥌
- 10. Mudhens (Ducks)

Other Traditional Foods continued

Tules

Unable to get amount eaten. Still consumed. Stalks eaten April – May Roots eaten June – July Cattails

New shoots eaten during the spring

Obtaining Data Needed to Address Tribal Consumption

- Long-term mercury studies (1988-2004) at Clear Lake by University of California at Davis researchers
- •2013: OEHHA received dataset
- Mussels, clams, crayfish, prickly sculpin, threadfin shad, inland silversides, and juvenile sport fish
- Historical data from other programs (sport fish)
 Supplemented with new sport fish data (NLFTS and SWAMP)

Advisory Protocol Modifications

- Species—OEHHA previously did not evaluate and include small forage fish
- •Whole fish—OEHHA generally advises eating the fillet only
- •Tribal review—the Tribe asked to review the advisory report prior to its release



Mercury Contamination

"Although Clear Lake is one of the most mercurycontaminated lakes in the world, biota do not exhibit methylmercury concentrations as high as would be predicted based on the gross level of mercury loading."

Suchanek et al. Ecological Applications, 18(8) Supplement, 2008, pp. A12–A28

<section-header><list-item><list-item><list-item>



STATE-TRIBAL PARTNERSHIP FOR UPDATING THE ADVISORY FOR CLEAR LAKE

Margy Gassel, Ph.D. California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) Sarah Ryan Environmental Protection Department, Big Valley Rancheria Band of Pomo Indians

> Sacramento River and San Joaquin River Basin, Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, Region 5



Clear Lake



Clear Lake is the Largest, Natural Freshwater Lake in California

•Core samples of the lake's sediments taken by indicate that the lake is at least 480,000 years old.

•100 miles of shoreline

•Surface area of 43,785 acres, 1,155,000 acre-foot capacity

•Average depth is 27 feet, max is 60 feet







Sarah Ryan, Big Valley Band of Pomo Indians sryan@ big-valley.net 707-262-5277 x105

Note: There were no questions because the moderator adjourned the session for the lunch break.

State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for the St. Lawrence River Watershed

Faith Schottenfeld, New York; Tony David, Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe

Biosketch

Faith Schottenfeld

Dr. Faith Schottenfeld has been with the New York State Department of Health for 30 years, currently serving as Director of the Outreach and Education Group in the Center for Environmental Health. She has a Bachelor's degree from The University at Albany, a Master's degree from Cornell University, and a Doctorate in Education from Teachers College, Columbia University. Dr. Schottenfeld's particular area of interest is environmental risk communication. She works with a team of scientists and educators to create messages and materials that help people understand the complexities of fish advisories and the healthier options for consuming sport fish.

Anthony David

Anthony (Tony) David is the Program Manager of Water Resources for the Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe Environment Division at the Mohawk Territory of Akwesasne, located on the banks of the St. Lawrence River. While attending Cornell University, Mr. David developed a comprehensive risk framework for understanding the indirect costs of managing risk for indigenous communities, and presented this research at the 2005 Fish Forum. From 2006-2011, Mr. David served as a tribal representative on the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Tribal Science Council – a group dedicated to working with EPA to improve the communication of science issues in Indian Country. During this time, Mr. David focused on risk analysis issues and was invited to speak at a regional EPA Cumulative Risk Assessment Workshop in Chicago, Illinois, in 2009; and was a coinstructor for a training session on risk perception at the 2010 Tribal Science Council National Conference. Mr. David administers projects for his tribe dealing with water quality monitoring and standards, wetlands protection, fisheries population assessment, contaminant monitoring, and fish advisories.

Abstract

The Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe is beginning a period of recovery stemming from the abrupt loss of subsistence practices due to widespread releases of pollutants from three Superfund sites on the St. Lawrence River. Reductions in fish and game residues after over 30 years of monitoring are creating opportunities for tribal members to reclaim some aspects of long-held traditional hunting and fishing practices. The Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe, in collaboration with the New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH), developed an advisory program to educate the tribal community on the risks and benefits of consuming locally caught fish and game. Program components, including baseline surveys, were designed to assess existing consumption preferences, practices, and perceptions. Concepts and draft materials were honed in community focus groups, at community events, and in follow-up surveys. State and tribal partners worked closely throughout the project period, supported by funds from EPA's Great Lakes Restoration Initiative. Presenters will focus on both the process and products of this collaborative effort.







SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION State-Tribal Partnership for Developing Advisories for the St. Lawrence River Watershed – Faith Schottenfeld and Tony David

Perception Strategies

Develop FAQ

- Common Misperceptions
 Fish: bottom feeders most
- contaminated%
- Game: ALL contaminated %
- Disease/parasites = contaminated 🛠
- Provide access to science and present in <u>understa</u>ndable way
- Perception influences behavior!



Advisory Update

Recovery of Tribal Resources

- St. Lawrence River Natural Resource Damage Claim settled for >\$20M – Including Master/apprentice program for cultural and environmental knowledge transmission
- Superfund remediation continues
- Preliminary step for reclaiming traditional practices

Reflections on the collaboration

- Mutual trust and respect built over time
- Products that meet the needs and reflect the thinking of the SRMT Environment Division and broader community
- Opportunity for the State to work with a tribal community and enhance understanding of advisory messages and materials
- Successful and effective community participatory model
- Listening, not telling or imposing
- Credibility and "community currency" key for success

Note: No questions were asked.

Communication of Fish Advisories Between States and Federal Lands: Results from a Survey of 21 Western National Parks

David Wong, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service

Biosketch

Commander David Wong, M.D., is Chief of the Epidemiology Branch of the National Park Service, Office of Public Health in Albuquerque, New Mexico. His primary duties include responding to outbreaks and human disease case reports, developing surveillance systems, and coordinating parkbased public health programs and research activities. He provides technical assistance, if requested, to U.S. Department of the Interior bureaus on potential public health issues related to contaminants in fish. Dr. Wong received his M.D. from Duke University. He completed his pediatrics residency at the Children's Hospital of Philadelphia and then joined the Epidemic Intelligence Service fellowship at Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

Abstract

This presentation summarizes results from a 2014 survey of selected national park employees who are involved with disseminating information on fish consumption advisories to visitors. The survey was distributed only to the 21 western national parks that participated in the 2008–2012 Mercury in Fish study conducted by the U.S. Geological Survey and the National Park Service. Topics covered include attitudes and practices regarding how parks obtain information on fish advisories from states and how this information is shared with visitors.

SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION

Communication of Fish Advisories Between States and Federal Lands: Results from a Survey of 21





SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION

Communication of Fish Advisories Between States and Federal Lands: Results from a Survey of 21





SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION

Communication of Fish Advisories Between States and Federal Lands: Results from a Survey of 21

Exclusive Jurisdiction— Excerpts from Respondent Comments

"As our park is an "exclusive jurisdiction" park, there is considerable confusion about how fish consumption advisories should be declared and how that information should be disseminated to the public."

"As a park with exclusive jurisdiction, we develop our own advisories/brochures on Hg for distribution to the public. We then communicate this information to our state partners so they can include it in the statewide fish consumption guidance brochure."

Exclusive Jurisdiction— Excerpts from Respondent Comments (continued)

"The State has no jurisdiction over fish in the park, so studies conducted are NPS and/or other agency funded. However, the State is responsible for issuing fish consumption advisories. We reference the state's websites for further information on fish consumption advisories."

Limitations

- Small sample size
 May not be representative of all national parks
- Did not survey State agencies, Tribes, or the general public
 - One-sided perspective
- Answers may be biased from recent USGS/NPS study and press release

Next Steps

- Continue dialogue between State agencies, national parks, and other federal lands
- Consider working group to address exclusive jurisdiction issues and develop best practices for issuing and sharing information on advisories
- Comprehensive survey of all national parks that allow fishing

Conclusions

- States are the primary resource/partner for parks re: fish advisories
- Although parks and States work closely, communication processes can be improved
- Exclusive jurisdiction issues are handled differently by parks and should be specifically addressed
- Targeted outreach to national parks and other federal lands may be warranted

Acknowledgments

- NPS Office of Public Health
 Sean Motl
 - Danielle Buttke
- NPS Air Resources Division
 Colleen Flanagan Pritz
- NPS Water Resources Division
 John Wullschleger
- NPS Biological Resource Management Division
 Kirsten Leong

SESSION 2: FEDERAL, STATE, AND TRIBAL ADVISORY COORDINATION Communication of Fish Advisories Between States and Federal Lands: Results from a Survey of 21 Western National Parks – David Wong		
	Questions?	

- Q. Regarding the issue of national parks with exclusive jurisdiction, and waters that flow through such national parks, who has responsibility for water quality standards and who has jurisdiction over waters within such national parks? (Mike Ell)
- A. The states have primacy for water quality issues everywhere. For fish, the decision about federal or state responsibility is up to the park. For public health issues, the National Park Service treats everything as concurrent jurisdiction. For example, the hantavirus outbreak in Yosemite National Park was addressed by federal and state public health officials. Based on their preliminary survey results, he thinks that national parks are doing things differently for various fish and health issues and that the National Park Service may need to develop guidance.
- Q. In your survey, person visits was not addressed in person days. Park visitors do not live there so will probably visit only a few days and not consume that much fish. He recommended that the National Park Service consider communicating with employees who live there and provide them with information about fish advisories and fishing. (Groth)
- A. He agreed with those comments.

How EPA Utilizes Fish Advisories as Institutional Controls at Superfund Sites

Steve Ridenour, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Steve Ridenour has worked for the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) headquarters in the Construction and Post-Construction Management Branch for the Superfund Program since September 2008. His primary responsibilities include institutional controls policy. He is an author on several of EPA's latest guidance efforts: five-year review policy and data sponsorship, and EPA Region 5 post-construction coordination. Mr. Ridenour's experience with fish contaminants includes his work as the Institutional Controls Team Leader and his coordination with the EPA Region 5 office on the technical review of sediment sites addressed under the Superfund program within that region. Mr. Ridenour holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Rutgers University and a Master's degree in Public Policy from Johns Hopkins University.

Abstract

This session will discuss how EPA generally relies upon fish advisories implemented at the state or local level as institutional controls (ICs) at some Superfund sites. The session will detail the considerations that the Superfund Program uses in selecting fish advisories as ICs at sites and how EPA can work collaboratively with state and local governments to help implement them. Several examples on the use of fish advisories at Superfund sites will be presented to illustrate the application of such fish advisories.





- *Q.* At the University of North Carolina Chapel Hill, Institute for the Environment, they are working on programs to communicate risk information from fish advisories that vary among multiple fish species and fish advisories that vary by water body. Has this been considered? (Bawden)
- A. The moderator answered by suggesting that many of the panelists could address this more general question, and decided to hold that question until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.
- Q. In New York, they know that fish consumption advisories are not very effective with non-English speaking populations or low-income populations who are catching subsistence fish. How does EPA address this at Superfund sites? (Richter)
- A. He mentioned that EPA's fish/shellfish advisories at Superfund sites are not enforceable. EPA has tried to address this issue and get smarter in issuing fish advisories in different languages to communicate with different populations. The Fox River Superfund Site in Wisconsin is a good example of where studies show that fishing and fish consumption still occurs. The Palos Verdes Shelf Superfund Site in California has a fishing ban, so it is a special example.
- Q. What type of evaluation has EPA done on the effectiveness of fish advisories as institutional controls at Superfund sites, especially where fish consumption still occurs? From the states' perspective, it seems that EPA has not done an overall evaluation of the effectiveness of such institutional controls. (Richter)
- A. At the national level, EPA has general guidance, but the specific institutional controls are handled at the state and local level for each Superfund site.
- *Comment:* He emphasized that EPA should be looking at this issue more thoroughly. From the states' perspective, more specific guidance on developing effective institutional controls with fish advisories at Superfund sites is really needed. (Richter)
General Question and Answer Session

- Q. How many Superfund sites have institutional controls with fish advisories? (Kyle)
- A. There are 39 Superfund sites with specific fish/shellfish advisories as part of institutional controls. The EPA Fact Sheet available in the back of meeting room lists those 39 sites, which are among the 72 large contaminated sediment sites in the Superfund program. (Ridenour)
- *Q.* For the 72 Superfund sites with contaminated sediments, for how many of them does EPA actually know that people are not fishing at those sites? (Greene)
- A. EPA does have evidence that people are still fishing at some of these Superfund sites. EPA is starting to evaluate fish/shellfish advisories more. However, institutional controls have not traditionally been the focus of the Superfund program. EPA knows they have a long way to go with developing institutional controls and making them effective. (Ridenour)
- Q. At the Lower Duwamish Waterway Superfund Site in Seattle, there are ethnically diverse populations. The Washington State Department of Health as well as King County have found there are not enough funds during site remediation to communicate with the public about risk during remediation. Also as state and local agencies, they have found more emphasis is needed on monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of fish advisories at Superfund sites. How can we be part of the risk communication during remediation?(Carr)
- A. EPA needs to think about institutional controls earlier in the process before developing the remedy. (Ridenour)
- Q. As the EPA Region 10 risk assessor for the Lower Duwamish Waterway Superfund Site, he knows there are many diverse populations. EPA will be looking at perceived risks and benefits along with fish catch and consumption. EPA will be collecting information and using that to shape institutional controls. (Kissinger)
- A. Yes, EPA can do scoping at Superfund sites early before developing the remedy and that should be used for developing a fish/shellfish advisory. It is important to spend more effort on monitoring the effectiveness of institutional controls with fish/shellfish advisories. (Ridenour)
- *Comment:* When there is fish consumption and contaminated sediments, the earlier you get involved the better. (Greene)
- Q. EPA needs to update the Palos Verdes signage in their presentation, because they actually have a new sign at the Palos Verdes Shelf Superfund Site now. That sign now has more fish species listed as well as mercury. He considers the Palos Verde Shelf Superfund site as a "Cadillac site," with much higher funding than other Superfund sites with contaminated sediments. At Palos Verdes, they have people out on the piers on a daily basis for public outreach handing out materials and answering questions. However, people are still fishing there. These people have learned something about fish contamination and some people throw White Croaker back into the

water. It is difficult to do behavioral surveys to measure whether people are really changing their behavior, because such surveys are hard to do and cost a lot of money. (Brodberg)

- A. Yes, EPA will look into updating that Palos Verdes signage in this presentation. (Ridenour)
- *Q.* She referred back to her earlier question about whether communication of risk information from fish advisories that vary among multiple fish species and fish advisories that vary by water body has been considered. There have been extensive evaluations of fish consumption advisories, but at a local level. However, there have not been any evaluations of outreach efforts. (Bawden)
- Q. Are you asking about developing messages for fish consumption advisories?(Greene)
- *Q.* She recapped that her question was—how do you communicate multiple fish consumption advisories by species and location? (Bawden)
- A. You can have an advisory for one fish meal per month in this water body and two fish meals per month at another nearby water body. There will always be "lumpers and splitters" with different approaches. "Lumpers" will tend to simplify the language in fish advisories. (Greene)
- A. The Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe tested multiple different approaches to communicate fish advisories. Their situation is complex because they are located at the confluence of different water bodies and at the confluence of Quebec, Ontario, and New York State. They also have two different Mohawk tribal governments on different sides of the international border. Dealing with different jurisdictions has been difficult and stalled the process. They have issued their own fish advisory that is similar to what other jurisdictions have issued. (Anthony David)

SECTION II-D SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE – HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION

Moderator:

Amy D. Kyle, University of California – Berkley, School of Public Health

Biosketch

Dr. Amy D. Kyle has a broad background in environmental health and policy with a particular interest in children and in persistent pollutants. At the University of California, Berkeley, she is the leader of a multi-disciplinary team working on methods for assessing and addressing cumulative impacts in communities, Director of Research Translation for an interdisciplinary research program in environmental health sciences and technology, founder of the Project on Science and Policy for Health and Environment, and co-investigator at the Center for Excellence in Environmental Public Health Tracking and the Center for Integrative Research on Childhood Leukemia and the Environment. Her research is about how science is interpreted in policy, the translation of scientific results and knowledge for policy and stakeholder audiences, and children's environmental health. Dr. Kyle teaches science students about public policy and how to participate in discussions that involve non-technical audiences. She works with many community-based organizations, nongovernmental organizations, executive and legislative agencies, and academic partners. She was a founding member of the State Environmental Health Collaborative and works with many state environmental protection and public health agencies. She served for five years as Deputy Commissioner for the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation, and previously worked for three governors on a variety of environmental, health, and natural resources issues. She received an M.P.H. and a Ph.D. in Environmental Health Sciences and Policy from the University of California, Berkeley, and a B.A. in Environmental Sciences from Harvard College. She was elected as Councilor to the Environment Section of the American Public Health Association and currently serves on the federally chartered Children's Health Protection Advisory Committee. She was an author of one of the first reports to point out the importance of contaminants in fish for women and children, in 1997.

Presentations

Introduction and Overview: Significance of Cyanotoxins for Human Health *Amy D. Kyle, University of California – Berkeley, School of Public Health*

Analytical Methods and Seasonal Variations of Selected Cyanotoxins in Lake, Fish, and Plant Tissue in Nebraska Dan Snow, University of Nebraska – Lincoln

Considerations for Fish Advisory Programs for Cyanotoxins in Fish Tom Hornshaw, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency

Cyanotoxin Toxicity: Fish and Human Health Assessment Lesley D'Anglada, U.S. Environment Protection Agency

Introduction and Overview: Significance of Cyanotoxins for Human Health

Amy D. Kyle, University of California – Berkeley, School of Public Health

Biosketch

Dr. Amy D. Kyle has a broad background in environmental health and policy with a particular interest in children and in persistent pollutants. At the University of California, Berkeley, she is the leader of a multi-disciplinary team working on methods for assessing and addressing cumulative impacts in communities, Director of Research Translation for an interdisciplinary research program in environmental health sciences and technology, founder of the Project on Science and Policy for Health and Environment, and co-investigator at the Center for Excellence in Environmental Public Health Tracking and the Center for Integrative Research on Childhood Leukemia and the Environment. Her research is about how science is interpreted in policy, the translation of scientific results and knowledge for policy and stakeholder audiences, and children's environmental health. Dr. Kyle teaches science students about public policy and how to participate in discussions that involve non-technical audiences. She works with many community-based organizations, nongovernmental organizations, executive and legislative agencies, and academic partners. She was a founding member of the State Environmental Health Collaborative and works with many state environmental protection and public health agencies. She served for five years as Deputy Commissioner for the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation, and previously worked for three governors on a variety of environmental, health, and natural resources issues. She received an M.P.H. and a Ph.D. in Environmental Health Sciences and Policy from the University of California, Berkeley, and a B.A. in Environmental Sciences from Harvard College. She was elected as Councilor to the Environment Section of the American Public Health Association and currently serves on the federally chartered Children's Health Protection Advisory Committee. She was an author of one of the first reports to point out the importance of contaminants in fish for women and children, in 1997.

Abstract

This presentation will introduce the session as a whole. It will define harmful algal blooms; focus on cyanotoxins and summarize what is known about where they come from; introduce potential health concerns; review types of approaches to monitor for or predict blooms that can lead to production of the toxins; present a synopsis of data about concentrations reported in fish; and pose a question about whether traditional approaches to monitoring, risk assessment, and advisories for chemicals would be effective for this kind of episodic phenomenon.





SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE – HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION Introduction and Overview: Significance of Cyanotoxins for Human Health – Amy Kyle

Advisories by states

- Mostly contact recreation | drinking water
- Concern for dogs and cows (more sensitive)



Children and pets are at increased risk for exposure because of their size and level of activity. Dogs, in particular, can quickly experience symptoms of microcystis exposure and can die within an hour.

The toxins produced by microcystis cannot be removed by boiling, filtering or treating the water with camping-style filters, health officials warn. People who draw in-home water directly from Willamette are advised to use an alternative water source because private treatment systems are not proven effective at removing algae toxins.

No public drinking water systems draw water from the portion of the Willamette River affected by the health advisory.

Oregon health officials recommend that people who choose to eat fish from waters where algae blooms are present remove all fat, skin and organs before cooking, because toxins are more likely to collect in these tissues.

Public health officials also advise that people not eat freshwater clams or mussels from affected water, and that Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife regulations do not allow the harvest of these shellfish from freshwater sources. Crayfish muscle can be eaten, but internal organs and liquid fat should be discarded.

|--|

Key points

- Agents get into fish
 - Complex data and issues of analytics
- Are the concentrations of concern?
 - Can we tell? Is there bioaccumulation?
- Blooms are episodic
 - How to construct and support timely response?

Note: As the first presenter and moderator for this panel, she announced that she would take no questions about her presentation and moved directly to the next presentation.

Analytical Methods and Seasonal Variations of Selected Cyanotoxins in Lake, Fish, and Plant Tissue in Nebraska

Dan Snow, University of Nebraska – Lincoln

Biosketch

Dr. Daniel Snow is the Director of Laboratory Services at the Water Sciences Laboratory, a part of the Nebraska Water Center and Robert B. Daugherty Water for Food Institute, and a Research Associate Professor in the School of Natural Resources at the University of Nebraska. He holds a Ph.D. from the University of Nebraska, a M.S. degree from Louisiana State University, and a B.S. from Missouri State. Over the past 25 years, his research interests and experience has focused on environmental analytical chemistry and the development of new analytical methods, primarily using chromatography in conjugation with mass spectrometry, for organic and inorganic contaminants in aquatic systems. He also has extensive experience in measurement and use of stable and radioactive isotope tracers in hydrology and geochemistry. Some of his most recent work has examined the occurrence of cyanotoxins in Nebraska lakes and reservoirs, aquatic plants, and fish tissue.

Abstract

Cyanotoxins are naturally-occurring chemicals that have neurotoxic, hepatotoxic, and dermally irritating substances produced by a wide variety of cyanobacteria, or blue-green algae. These compounds can occur in wide range of environmental samples including water, fish, and aquatic and even terrestrial plants. Over the past 10-15 years, awareness of their occurrence in specific environments and compartments has grown through increased monitoring using a wide variety of analytical methods including enzyme-linked immunoassay (ELISA), and more selective instrumental methods ranging from high pressure liquid chromatography (HPLC) with fluorescence, ultraviolet and mass spectrometric detection, and gas chromatography-mass spectrometry detection. Very often selective pre-concentration, extraction, and chemical conversion procedures are required to enhance sensitivity and specificity of any methods, especially in complex plant and animal tissue. Solid phase extraction (SPE) coupled with liquid chromatography and fluorescence detection (HPLC/FD), and liquid chromatography-mass spectrometry (LC/MS/MS) has been used to monitor this occurrence of microcystins and compared to results determined with ELISA monitoring in Nebraska lakes to determine their seasonal variability and help predict where advisories must be posted for recreational use. Many of the reservoirs where microcystins are also regularly found are also appear to be locations likely to produce neurotoxic compounds such as anatoxin-a, as well as the non-protein amino acids β-methylamino-L-alanine (BMAA) and 2,4-diaminobutyric (DABA). The results of these studies suggest that additional research is needed to understand the human health consequences and potential significance of their occurrence.









- Q. Did your study look at fish tissue or whole fish? (Richardson)
- A. Fish tissue.

Considerations for Fish Advisory Programs for Cyanotoxins in Fish

Tom Hornshaw, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Tom Hornshaw is the manager of the Toxicity Assessment Unit of the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, joining the IEPA in 1985. In addition to directing the IEPA toxicologists, he provides toxicological expertise for human and environmental health risk assessments; acceptable levels of chemicals in soil, water, air, and fish; and development of rules and regulations. He is the Agency's representative to the Great Lakes Consortium for Fish Consumption Advisories, and is the Chair of the multi-agency Illinois Fish Contaminant Monitoring Program. Dr. Hornshaw obtained B.S. and M.S. degrees in Fisheries Biology from Michigan State University, and he holds a dual Ph.D., also from Michigan State, in Animal Science and Environmental Toxicology.

Abstract

Harmful Algal Blooms (HABs) are becoming more frequent in Illinois lakes, and detrimental effects on human and environmental health are possible due to exposure to cyanotoxins. This presentation will briefly discuss the IEPA's experience with HABs, and our efforts to establish a HAB Program. It will also provide recommendations for users of lakes experiencing a HAB about the safety of eating fish and other activities such as swimming, boating, skiing, and watering a garden.

SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE – HARMF Considerations for Fish Advisory Progra CONSIDERATIONS FOR FISH ADVISORY PROGRAMS FOR CYANOTOXINS IN FISH Thomas C. Hornshaw, Ph.D Manager, Toxicity Assessment Unit Illinois EPA	UL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION ams for Cyanotoxins in Fish – Tom Hornshaw WHO GUIDANCE VALUES FOR RECREATIONAL EXPOSURES TO CYANOBACTERIA & MC • Low risk: <20,000 cells/ml or <10 ug/l • Moderate risk: 20,000-100,000 cells/ml or 10- 20 ug/l • High risk: 100,000-10,000,000 cells/ml or 20- 2,000 ug/l • Very high risk: >10,000,000 cells/ml or >2,000 ug/l
 2005, OUR INTRODUCTION TO HABS Otter L. bloom introduces us to algal toxins Samples sent to phycologist, finds 305,356 cells/ml, primarily Cylindro Lake Assn. gets results, asks for advice We advise caution, Assn. cancels regatta (later toxin analysis finds no toxins) Other sites sampled, 5 >100,000 cells/ml, 1 >1 M cells/ml, MC max = 8.0 ug/l 	2005-10 MC SUMMARY 2005: 12 samples, 0.09-8.00 ug/l, avg=1.78 ug/l 2006: 10 samples, 0.15-8.20 ug/l, avg=2.35 ug/l 2007: 165 samples, 0.12-10.77 ug/l, avg=0.75 ug/l 2008: 179 samples, 0.15-17.47 ug/l, avg= 0.64 ug/l No 2009 samples 2010 Clinton L. false alarm – dog dies & girl gets sick, DNR issues advisory, but no bloom & MC range <0.2- 1.6 ug/l; death & sickness found to be heat-related
 2011 – MICROCYSTIN TEST KITS IEPA began using "Abraxis Microcystin Dipstick for Recreational Water" Test Kits. Quick results in ranges of 0, 0-1.0, 1.0-2.5, 2.5-5.0, and 5.0-10.0 ug/L Microcystin. One-year shelf life, ~\$24/test A very useful tool! So far whenever we've had laboratory Microcystin analyzed where we've also used a test kit, test kit results were corroborated. 2011 MC results again low concern, and then 	1-Lake Le-Aqua-Na, July 10, 2012



SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE - HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION Considerations for Fish Advisory Programs for Cyanotoxins in Fish – Tom Hornshaw BAF DATA, (continued 1) BAF DATA, (continued 2) • Adamovsky et al., 2007: 9-wk pond study (avg • Ohio EPA: Grand Lake St. Mary black crappies MC=17 ug/l) with common & silver carp 2011 samples: water conc. range 5.6-34.2 • Common carp avg=9.8 ug/kg, BAF=0.58, max=29 ug/l, crappie max=65.4 ug/kg, BAF range 1.91ug/kg, BAF=1.7 11.6 Silver carp avg=10.6 ug/kg, BAF=0.62, max=19 2012 samples: water conc. range 30-45 ug/l, ug/kg, BAF=1.1 crappie max=25.7 ug/kg, BAF range 0.57-0.86 • Depuration study: MC <DL after 1 wk in silver carp & 2 wk in common carp (also cites studies Note: L. Ontario crappie max=1.9ug/kg, with half-lives of 8 d for snails and 3-4.8 d for water=0.9 ug/l, BAF=2.11 clams) ADDITIONAL MC BAF DATA ADDITIONAL MC DEPURATION DATA Barry et al., 2011: carp BAF=14 (Mexican lake • Smith & Haney 2006: 50% decrease in sunfish with persistent bloom) muscle after 15 days Papadimitriou et al., 2012: carp BAF=3.7 (Aug) and 5.9 (Nov) (eutrophic Greek lake) • Dyble et al., 2011: 99% decrease in juvenile y. • Amrani et al., 2014: carp BAF~11.3 and eel perch muscle after 16 hours (single dose) BAF~1.1 (adjusted for dry wgt.; Algerian lake) Singh and Asthana, 2014: carp BAF=0.16, catfish • Lance et al., 2014: 58% decrease in stickleback >150 g BAF=1.54, and catfish <150 g BAF=1.96 muscle after 5 days (Indian lake) Note: Carp BAF range (5 studies) 0.16-14, 2 OMs SWIM IN THE WATER? SKI ON THE WATER? · Even low MC concs. can cause sensitive Water sprays can produce toxin-containing people to have allergic response aerosols if water conc. is high • Increasing conc.=increasing symptoms • Inhaling &/or swallowing aerosols can cause (eye/nose irrit., rash/hives, blisters) headaches, nausea, sore throat, and • Follow WHO Guidance of 20 ug/l to protect respiratory problems against symptoms Eye & nose irritation possible Don't swim when scum/bloom present Don't boat, water ski, tube, etc. when · Wait 2 weeks after scum/bloom is gone scum/bloom is present Wait 2 weeks after scum/bloom is gone

SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE – HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION Considerations for Fish Advisory Programs for Cyanotoxins in Fish – Tom Hornshaw

WATER MY VEGETABLES?

- · Few studies on uptake into vegetables
- Should be OK to water soil, studies suggest minimal uptake into plants
- If edible portions are recently watered they should be thoroughly washed
- Don't water recently planted vegetables or plants, MC shown to affect root & shoot growth (Pflugmacher et al., 2007)

Did Cell Count and Microcystin Expected Relationships Exist in 2012 ?

Kind	la, Sorta,	Not Real	ly!

Collection Date	Lake/ Location	Result (Microcystin ug/L)	WHO Rec. Advisory Level	Result (Total Cyano- bacteria cells/mL)	WHO Rec. Advisory Level
8/29/12	Candlewick (RPV-99)	4,800	Very High	84,573,082	Very High
8/29/12	Westlake (RPZK-98)	1,700	High	302,526	High
9/4/12	Camp Walter Scott Beach (RCS-99)	1,500	High	3,528,833	High
8/30/12	Patriot's Park Lake (ROY-99)	9.8	Low	572,012	High
8/29/12	Le-Aqua-Na (RPA-99)	6.7	Low	1,178,963	High
9/4/12	Wonder Lake (RTZC-99)	0.88	Low	467,627	High

POST-FALL 2012

January 16, 2013, meeting to share information, listen to experts, share experiences, seek input for the future. 70-80 in attendance:

- Gregg Good, IEPA, Summary of HAB Issue
- Dave McMillan, IEPA, PWS Issues
- Joe Rush, JadEco, Homeowner Education and Recent Experiences
- Tom Hornshaw, IEPA, HAB Health Risks (fish, veggies, aerosols)
- Val Beasley, U of I VetMed, Pets and Livestock
- Keith Loftin, USGS National HAB Expert
- Cyndi Wagner, IDEM HAB Coordinator
- Open Discussion

UNCERTAINTIES!

- Guidance primarily for acute effects, long-term effects?
- · Guidance for MC only, other toxins?
- Poor correlation between cell counts and toxin concs.
- BAF based on limited data, several variables contribute (species, age, diet, water body/habitat characteristics, metabolic capability)
- Wait 2 weeks recommendation based on limited data

2005-12 LESSONS LEARNED & QUESTIONS

- Hot, dry summers cause lots of algae problems!!
- Lots of blue greens *does not always* equal lots of algal toxins.
- "Think twice before you lyse." Blue green algae management for PWS vs. recreational uses can be polar opposites!
- Better safe than sorry! Otter Lake Water Commission did the right "public safety" thing in canceling the regatta.
- Who is responsible for advisories? IDPH? IEPA? Lake Owner?
- Who's out there looking at this stuff in Illinois?
- Big Lag Time The time between collection, algal identification and enumeration, toxin analyses, and issuance of an advisory/closure is lengthy.

2013 - BIRTH OF THE HAB PROGRAM

- Public Safety Goal (as opposed to Research)
 - Provide HAB Education
 - Monitoring/Analysis Accurate & Fast Results (~6-7 days)
 - Provide Results for Local Decision-Making
- Decision to "KISS" Keep It Simple Stupid!
 - Just Microcystin, no other Toxins right now
 - Just Toxin Analysis, no ID/Enumeration of Algae right now
- Secured a Laboratory Iowa DNR ELISA Testing
- Secured Funding Illinois Partners for Conservation
- Test Kits Purchased IEPA SWS and VLMP Coordinator Staff
- Other IEPA Section Lookout Public Water Supply and Field
- Operations Staff Notified

 SOPs Developed for Microcystin Sampling and Shipment
- "HAB Report Form" Developed for Submittal to Determine
- need for IEPA/VLMP Coordinator Personal Investigation



SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE – HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION Considerations for Fish Advisory Programs for Cyanotoxins in Fish – Tom Hornshaw

REFERENCES 002

Dyble J et al., 2011. A kinetic study of accumulation and elimination of Microcystin-LR in yellow perch (*Perca flavescens*) tissue and implications for human fish consumption. Mar. Drugs 9: 2553-2571.

Lance E et al., 2014. Evidence of trophic transfer of microcystins from the gastropod *lymnaea stagnalis* to the fish *Gasterosteus aculeatus*. Harmful Algae 31: 9-17.

Ohio EPA, 2011 and 2012. Results of fish Microcystin-LR analysis. Personal communications from Mylynda Shaskus.

REFERENCES 003

Papadimitriou T et al., 2012. Assessment of microcystin distribution and biomagnification in tissues of aquatic food web compartments from a shallow lake and evaluation of potential risks to public health. Ecotoxicology 21: 1155-1166.

Pflugmacher S et al., 2007. Effects on growth and physiological parameters in wheat (*Triticum aestivum* L.) grown in soil and irrigated with cyanobacterial toxin contaminated water. Environ. Toxicol. Chem. 26: 2710-2716.

Poste AE et al., 2011. Evaluating microcystin exposure risk through fish consumption. Environ. Sci. Technol. 45: 5806-5811.

REFERENCES 004

Singh S and Asthana RK, 2014. Assessment of microcystin concentration in carp and catfish: a case study from Lakshmikund Pond, Varanasi, India. Bull. Environ. Contam. Toxicol. 92: 687-692.

Smith JL and Haney JF, 2006. Foodweb transfer, accumulation, and depuration of microcystins, a cyanobacterial toxin, in pumpkinseed sunfish (*Lepomis gibbosus*). Toxicon 48: 580-589.

Illinois EPA HAB website: Illinois EPA HAB website.

Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved along to the next speaker on this panel.

Cyanotoxin Toxicity: Fish and Human Health Assessment

Lesley V. D'Anglada, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Lesley V. D'Anglada is a microbiologist at the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Office of Science and Technology (OST), Office of Water in Washington, DC. Over the last nine years, Dr. D'Anglada has provided technical guidance on microbial contamination to other offices in the Agency, to personnel from other government agencies, and to non-governmental groups. She is the lead in coordinating with EPA Regions and other federal partners on the issues related to cyanobacterial Harmful Algal Blooms (HABs) and has organized webinars, served in expert panels, written papers, and is currently editing a special edition of Toxins on HABs and public health. She is leading the efforts for the development of Drinking Water Health Advisories and Human Health Ambient Water Quality Criteria for cyanotoxins. In addition, she is the EPA/World Health Organization (WHO) Microbial Subcommittee Member providing advice and recommendations on potential public health risks associated with pathogens in drinking water, and a former Adjunct Professor of Environmental Health at George Mason University in Virginia. Dr. D'Anglada received her B.S. in Industrial Microbiology, her M.S. in Environmental Health, and her Doctorate in Public Health with a concentration in Environmental Health from the University of Puerto Rico.

Abstract

Cyanotoxins in surface water may constitute a human and animal health risk and have adverse effects on aquatic life and water quality. In the United States, cyanobacterial HABs seem to have dramatically increased in recent decades and most of the states are now experiencing them in their freshwaters. OST has compiled field and laboratory studies conducted worldwide on the levels of three cyanotoxins (microcystin-LR, cylindrospermopsin, and anatoxin-a) found in tissues of aquatic species on fish, shellfish, and crustaceans. The studies showed wide ranges of cyanotoxins concentrations in fish tissues and organs as well as among trophic levels. Several studies have shown higher concentrations in fish livers compared with edible fish tissue. OST has also compiled and reviewed the toxicity of these three cyanotoxins in humans ranging from acute toxicity, hepatoxicity, developmental, and growth studies, as well as reproductive toxicity. Only a few recent studies have been published on the presence and effects of cyanotoxins, especially on the microcystin LR congener. OST will use these data for the development of Drinking Water Health Advisories and Human Health Ambient Water Quality Criteria for cyanotoxins.

SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE - HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION Cyanotoxin Toxicity: Fish and Human Health Assessment - Lesley V. D'Anglada

Cyanotoxin Toxicity: Fish and Human Health Assessment



Lesley V. D'Anglada, Dr.PH US Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water/Office of Science and Technology

2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish September 22, Alexandria VA

Overview of Harmful Algal Blooms

- The prevalence and duration of Harmful algal blooms (HABs) in freshwater is rapidly expanding in the U.S. and worldwide.
- Some algal blooms can produce toxins at levels that may be of concern for human health and ecological impact.

and recreation industries while increasing costs

for managing and treating potable water supplies.

10.8 μg/L, Anatoxin-a: 90 μg/L, Cylindrospe (Category 1: Visible Material is not likely oversity

<4 µg/L microcystin-rrisk 4 to 20 µg/L mic

ory: >4 µg/L to <20 µg/L for micros

LFE PHA:6 μg/L; NCA: 20 μg/L; Α: 0.8 μg/L; NCA: 3 μg/L;

chemia call counts or > flow/1 mi

,000 celts/mLcyanol inatoxin-e 210 µg/L



a: PHA: 80 µg/L; NCA: 300 µg/L permonster PHA: 5 µz/l : NCA: 20 µz/l

and B and the s

 CCL 3 (2009): Cyanotoxins (anatoxin-a, microcystin-LR, and cylindrosperi Regulatory Determination: RD 1 and RD 2: No Regulatory Decision - not sufficient information RD 3 - to be published
 WHO Guidelines: HABs have caused economic losses to the fishing

 Drinking Water: 1 ug/L for microcystin-LR Recreational Water Risk: • Low: <20,000 cyanobacterial cells/mL; 10 μg/L

nant List (CCL):

µg/L MC-LR

Guidelines and Regulations for

Recreational and Drinking Water

MC-LR Moderate: 20,000-100,000 cyano cells/mL; 10-20 µg/L MC-LR High: >100,000 cyanobacterial cells/mL; >20



opsin)

Guidance values for drinking wate

have been adopted by 3 states

2

Guidance values for recreational waters have been adopted by many states

Drinking Water Health Advisory for Cyanotoxins Development

Presentation Overview

· Discuss the toxicity assessment done for the three

· Present an overview of the literature review done on

No federal regulations or guidelines for cyanobacteria or cyanotoxins in recreational and drinking

· CCL 1 and CCL 2: Cyanobacteria (blue-green algae), other freshwater algae, and their toxins

· Describe public health guidelines in place

cyanotoxins levels detected in fish

cyanotoxins listed in CCL

Opportunity for Questions

water in the U.S.

Candidate Contar

Drinking Water Health Advisories (HA) for Cyanotoxins: Microcystin-LR, Anatoxin-a, and Cylindrospermopsin

- · Joint collaboration with Health Canada to develop science basis for HAs.
- Joint consortion with neatth canada to develop science basis for HAs.
 Informal technical guidance for unregulated drinking water contaminants to assist federal, state and local officials, and managers of public or community water systems in protecting public health.
 HA are non-regulatory concentrations at which adverse health effects are not anticipated to occur over specific exposure durations:
- One-day, 10-day, lifetime, and carcinogenic effect
- Status:
- External Peer Review of the Health Effects Support Document for Cyanobacterial Toxins Currently
- Draft final HA to include:
 - Quantification of Toxicological Effects
 - Analytical Methods Treatment Techniques
- Publication End 2014/Early 2015

SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE - HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION Cyanotoxin Toxicity: Fish and Human Health Assessment - Lesley V. D'Anglada

Cyanotoxins Toxicity Assessment

- Microcystin-LR
- Cylindrospermopsin
- Anatoxin-a



Preliminary Human Health Assessment on Cylindrospermopsin

Toxicity Assessment Summary:

- Based on acute and sub-chronic studies done in mice, liver and kidneys appear to be the primary target organs for cylindrospermopsin toxicity.
- There are no chronic exposure studies on cylindrospermopsin.
- There are few studies on the genotoxicity of cylindrospermopsin, and there is some
- evidence of potential damage to DNA in mouse liver or causes mutations.

Some of the Research Gaps Identified:

- The chronic toxicity of cylindrospermopsin is unknown
- None of the available studies are considered adequate for carcinogenicity assessment of cylindrospermopsin. No information on acute or chronic inhalation toxicity of cylindrospermopsin was
- identified.

Preliminary Human Health Assessment on Microcystin

Toxicity Assessment Summary:

- The toxicological database is almost exclusively limited to data on the MC-LR congener. Case reports confirm target organs, but lack of dose information makes the human data
- not useful. Acute and sub-chronic toxicity studies confirm the liver, kidney and testes as target organs.
- Chronic toxicity studies have not observed clinical signs of toxicity.
- Reproductive and developmental toxicity studies showed decreased in sperm counts and a reduction in sperm motility after 3 and 6 months with severity increasing with longer duration of exposure.

Some of the Research Gaps Identified:

- · None of the available studies are considered adequate for carcinogenicity assessment of microcystins.
- · Very limited information is available on the toxicity via inhalation exposure.
- Limited information on the relative potencies of other microcystin congeners when compared to MC-LR is
- Information on the potential health effects from exposure to mixtures of cyanotoxins.

Preliminary Human Health Assessment on Anatoxin-a

Toxicity Assessment Summary:

- The main known toxic effect of anatoxin-a is acute neurotoxicity.
- There are no cancer, genotoxicity, acute or chronic exposure studies on anatoxin-a, thus there is inadequate information to assess carcinogenic potential.
- Not enough information on sensitive endpoints and associated dose-response relationships to develop an RfD.

Some of the Research Gaps Identified:

- · No acute oral studies using purified anatoxins could be found.
- No chronic oral studies have been performed.
- · There is no information on carcinogenicity in humans or animals or on possible carcinogenic processes.
- · No information regarding mutagenicity or genotoxicity of anatoxin-a was identified.

Next Steps DW Health Advisories

- Quantification of Dose-Response (One-day, 10-day, lifetime, and carcinogenic effect)
- RfD for microcystin-LR RfD = NOAEL(LOAEL) - RfD for cylindrospermopsin External Peer Review

 $HA = \frac{RfD \times BW}{UF \times DW}$

- Development of DW HA
- Health Advisory Value
- Analytical Methods
- Treatment Techniques
- Internal Review
- Publication Spring 2015



And then....

- Under section 304(a) of the CWA, EPA develops numeric values limiting the amount of chemicals present in our nation's waters to protect public health, aquatic life and recreational uses.
- These criteria are **not rules** and States may adopt the criteria that LPA publishes, modify EPA's criteria to reflect site-specific conditions, or adopt different criteria based on other scientifically-defensible methods.

Guidance document available at Guidance Document chnical support documents:

Risk Assessment Risk Assessment

National Bioaccumulation Factors National Bioaccumulation Factors

000

Site-specific Bioaccumulation Factors Site-specific Bioaccumulation Factors



18

SESSION 3: EMERGING ISSUE – HARMFUL ALGAL BLOOMS AND FISH CONSUMPTION Cyanotoxin Toxicity: Fish and Human Health Assessment – Lesley V. D'Anglada

Next Steps

- Finalize DWHA's
 - Quantification of HA values
 - Incorporate Analytical Methods and Treatment Techniques
- Literature Search and Development of Human Health Ambient Water Quality Criteria for Cyanotoxins (in progress)

Questions?

Contact Information

Lesley V. D'Anglada, Dr.PH U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Water / Office of Science and Technology Health and Ecological Criteria Division 202-566-1125 <u>Danglada.lesley@epa.gov</u>

CyanoHABs website: CyanoHABs Website

20

- *Q.* When will the document currently under development be released? Also what type of advisory for cyanotoxins will it include? Will it be for drinking water or ambient water? (Hoffman-Contois)
- A. EPA wants to release the document as soon as possible, hopefully in the spring of 2015. They are currently consulting experts to ensure the accuracy of the document. EPA will notify the states as soon as it is released. The document will only include a drinking water health advisory. EPA does not know yet whether it will be acute, chronic, or sub-chronic values.
- Q. How would you implement a water quality standard if there is no point or nonpoint source? Is there a precedent for this? (Mike Ell)
- A. Yes, there is no point or nonpoint source, although EPA knows nutrient discharges play an important role in HABs. It may take more time to analyze the toxicity of cyanotoxins for ambient water quality, versus a drinking water health advisory.

General Question and Answer Session

- *Q.* Where he grew up, there were many ponds that were green with scums, especially during the summer. How often does pond scum include toxins? Also in a pond without a bloom and with no scums, how likely is it that toxins could occur? (Gochfeld)
- A. He has seen one paper that reported if there was no evidence of a bloom, it was doubtful that you would find evidence of toxins. He thinks that toxicity could occur only for a short time after a bloom collapses. (Hornshaw)
- A. He is not sure whether blooms are more frequent now. He thinks there have always been cyanotoxins, but maybe concentrations are higher now. There have been reports of livestock deaths—especially cows—for over 100 years. (Snow)
- Q. We need leadership in this area. We need more comparability of data. Tom Hornshaw mentioned a study with 28 ug/kg in fish fillets. He has looked at the WHO Guidance values. He asked Tom Hornshaw whether the Illinois EPA has a water concentration number where they start to worry about people eating fish? (Ginsberg)
- A. Although 20 ug/l was the water concentration number used by the Illinois EPA, it was in the middle of the range they were seeing, so it could have been a higher or lower number. In Ohio, the level of 28 ug/kg in fillets was based on just one study. The person from Ohio is no longer in that position, but he could try to look up more about that Ohio study. The WHO Guidance values were based on acute exposure. (Hornshaw)
- Q. She was looking at CDC's work on recreational waters that documents around 800 public health outbreaks from cyanotoxins. The states do not have the resources to deal with this. Because of lack of information, CDC put a Fellow into the public health departments of each of the eight Great Lakes states to help identify outbreaks and send clearer messages of the health impacts to physicians. She expects with more physicians educated, there will be more reports of outbreaks. (Fisher)
- A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.
- *Q.* Could Tom Hornshaw or Dan Snow speak on how to collect samples from one part of a lake to represent the whole water body? (Celona)
- A. Their approach requires taking three different samples within the bloom within one foot of the water surface. This will help ensure there will be variability in those samples. (Hornshaw)
- A. In his presentation on Pawnee Lake, he only showed data for one side of the lake, but the other side of the lake had different data. Cyanotoxins can be very different in different parts of a lake. Because these are seasonal contaminants, the more data we have the better we can predict the impacts. (Snow)
- Q. Do you have any recommendations for where to collect the data? (Celona)

- A. Collect data at swimming beaches just below the surface of the water. (Snow)
- A. Collect three samples within the bloom, no more than one foot below the surface of the water. (Hornshaw)
- Q. Jackie Fisher had mentioned EPA support for HABs. In Wisconsin, there are reports of problems with blooms, but no reports of people getting sick from eating fish. Also there are no reports of problems from people swimming or animal fatalities in Wisconsin. Although there were no deaths or illnesses yet, they recommend that people do not fish where there are blooms. It would be worth finding out if there are any reports of anyone with gastrointestinal illness from HABs. (Anderson)
- A. In Illinois, there are no reports yet of human illness or dog deaths from HABs. (Hornshaw)
- Q. Resources are a constraint and it is difficult to get samples. A lot of blooms blow across the water by wind, and it can be difficult to get out to the site before the bloom moves. It will take a lot of work to issue guidance on fish related to HABs. In Wisconsin, they are taking a precautionary approach. There can be a major economic impact from cancelling events or closing beaches and people may question why. (Anderson)
- A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.

SECTION II-E SESSION 4: RISK ASSESSMENT, EPIDEMIOLOGY, AND TOXICOLOGY

Introduction

Moderator:

Alan Stern, New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection

Biosketch

Dr. Alan H. Stern is lead for toxicology and human health risk assessment in the Office of Science of the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection. He received a B.S. in Biology from the State University of New York at Stony Brook, an M.S. in Cellular and Molecular Biology from Brandeis University, and a Doctorate in Public Health from the Columbia University School of Public Health. He is a Diplomate of the American Board of Toxicology and served as a member of the National Research Council/National Academy of Sciences Committee on the Toxicology of Methylmercury. Dr. Stern's areas of expertise include human health risk assessment and exposure assessment, including probabilistic approaches. He has pursued an abiding interest in the risk assessment for mercury in general and methylmercury in particular, having published several papers relating to the derivation and interpretation of the methylmercury reference dose. He is also very involved in the consumption advisory process in the State of New Jersey.

Presentations

PFOA-PFOS Health Effects: Draft Office of Water Health Assessments Joyce Donohue, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

EPA's Dioxin Reassessment and Toxicity-Equivalence Factors for Dioxin-Like Compounds *Jeff Swartout, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency*

EPA's Reassessment of the RfD for PCBs: Key Issues to Be Addressed *Geniece Lehmann, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency*

Co-occurrence of PCBs and Mercury in Fish Tissue: Is There a Case for Additivity Based on Common Developmental Endpoints? *Vince Cogliano, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency*

National Time Trends in Environmental Exposures and Fish Consumption in U.S. Women of Reproductive Age (NHANES 1999-2012) *Rebecca Birch, Westat*

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice *Ned Groth, Gelfond Fund*

Neurodevelopment Effects of Methylmercury Glenn Rice, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Epidemiological Evidence of Fish Consumption, Methylmercury Exposure, and Risk of Cardiovascular Diseases in Adults *Jyrki Virtanen, University of Eastern Finland*

Status of IRIS Update for Organic and Inorganic Mercury Vince Cogliano, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

PFOA-PFOS Health Effects: Draft Office of Water Health Assessments

Joyce Donohue, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Joyce Morrissey Donohue, R.D., is a Senior Health Scientist in the Health and Ecological Criteria Division in the Office of Science and Technology, Office of Water, at the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Ms. Donohue has a background in biochemistry and nutrition with over 20 years of experience in dealing with the toxicological properties of contaminants in drinking water. During her career, she has authored toxicological profiles of chemicals for EPA, NSF International, U.S. Department of Agriculture, the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry, and the Department of the Army. She has taught courses in chemistry, biochemistry, nutrition, and nutrition sciences at Virginia Tech and Northern Virginia Community College as an adjunct Associate Professor.

Abstract

Perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) are environmentally persistent fluorocarbon compounds. Human exposures result from their use in packaging materials for foods, as stain repellants on upholstery and carpets as well as from discharges to the environment (manufacturing and waste disposal). Epidemiology data suggest the possibility for human health adverse effects and animal studies demonstrate dose-response for a variety of toxicity endpoints. The Office of Water released short-term provisional health advisories for both compounds in 2009. Draft Health Effects Documents were completed in 2013 and externally peer reviewed at a public meeting in August 2014. The draft documents will be revised to accommodate peer review comments and update the research. The resultant reference doses will be used to establish Lifetime Health Advisories for drinking water. They can also be applied in the derivation of guidelines for other exposure media.





Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.
EPA's Dioxin Reassessment and Toxicity-Equivalence Factors for Dioxin-Like Compounds

Jeff Swartout, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Mr. Swartout received his B.S. in Biology from Elmhurst College, Elmhurst, Illinois. He has had extensive graduate training in developmental biology and toxicology at the University of Cincinnati, where he was a Ph.D. candidate. He has served as a toxicologist for the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), National Center for Environmental Assessment (NCEA) for 29 years. Jeff specializes in quantitative uncertainty analysis with an emphasis on dose-response modeling for both chemicals and pathogens. He was the co-lead for the most recent dioxin assessment, which culminated with the publication on EPA's Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) in 2012 of the first dioxin reference dose (RfD). He was also one of the principal authors of the Mercury Study Report to Congress, in which he authored a section on the bioaccumulation of mercury in fish. Mr. Swartout has authored or co-authored several publications addressing quantitative uncertainty in the RfD, exposure model uncertainty, toxicokinetics, and pathogen dose-response modeling. Mr. Swartout is currently a member of the Chemical Risk Assessment Branch in NCEA-Cincinnati, serving on the Cumulative Risk Assessment Team. His current research is focused on dose-additivity for mixtures.

Abstract

EPA has derived an oral RfD for 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzodioxin (TCDD) of 0.7 pg/kg-day, which was posted as final on IRIS in 2012. The RfD is based on two epidemiologic studies of the Seveso, Italy, population following an acute exposure to TCDD. The critical effects were increased levels of thyroid-stimulating hormone in newborns exposed to TCDD in utero and decreased sperm concentrations in men exposed as boys. The RfD derivation was complicated by the unusual nature of the exposure profile, which was an initial high peak exposure declining over time to background levels. Background exposure to dioxin-like compounds (DLCs), which could have contributed to the observed effects, further complicated the exposure modeling. In its TCDD RfD uncertainty analysis, EPA estimated the contribution of DLCs using a toxicity-equivalence factor (TEF) approach for several background exposure scenarios and found about a 3-fold range of uncertainty above and below the RfD. With respect to DLCs, EPA has adopted the 2005 World Health Organization (WHO) Toxicity Equivalence Factor (TEF) approach for estimating the health impact of combined DLC exposures. TEFs can used to compute the total TCDD toxicity equivalent dose in various exposure media, including fish. The WHO TEFs were derived by professional judgment considering varied sources of in vivo and in vitro data and are not central tendency estimates. The application of TEFs is subject to a number of assumptions concerning applicable endpoints, dose-response shape, and mode of action. Because of these broad uncertainties, EPA recommends the application of a sensitivity analysis for major dioxin hazard assessments involving TEFs, an example of which will be presented.







- *Q.* Given the low reference dose and relatively small contribution of fish to exposure, what are the implications for fish advisories? (Stern)
- A. EPA's Office of Water uses a 20% contribution from water for a health advisory. They attribute 20% of the toxic equivalency to fish.
- *Q.* In New Jersey, where such contaminants are pervasive, the approach they took was that if they strictly applied the reference dose, the result would be no fish consumption. Instead, they limited fish meals to two meals per week. (Stern)
- A. He cannot answer, because that sounds like a policy issue.

EPA's Reassessment of the RfD for PCBs: Key Issues to Be Addressed

Geniece Lehmann, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Geniece Lehmann received her Ph.D. in Toxicology from the University of Rochester. At present, she works as a toxicologist for the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) where she evaluates quantitative and qualitative risk information on health effects that may result from exposure to environmental contaminants. Since 2009, Dr. Lehmann has served as the IRIS technical lead for assessment of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs). As such, she has explored and evaluated available options for assessing health risk from PCB exposure and presented on this topic at several national and international meetings. She has also co-chaired sessions at national meetings on the importance of the breastfeeding exposure pathway for risk assessment of persistent organic pollutants, such as those found in fish.

Abstract

PCBs were produced commercially in the United States from 1929-1977 for use in a wide variety of applications. Unfortunately, the unique chemical properties of PCBs that made them so useful (e.g., thermal stability, resistance to acids and bases, low water solubility) also contributed to their resistance to degradation, bioaccumulation in food chains, and toxicity. Although the commercial manufacture of PCBs was banned in the United States in 1979, even today, PCBs can be found in marine and fresh water fish, and fish consumption constitutes a major source of human exposure to these chemicals. Currently, there are two IRIS reference doses (RfDs) available for use in assessing human health risk associated with consumption of PCB-contaminated fish. The RfD for the commercial PCB mixture Aroclor 1016 (70 ng/kg-day) was established in 1993, and is based on a study that observed reduced birth weight in infant rhesus monkeys exposed during gestation. The RfD for Aroclor 1254 (20 ng/kg-day) was established in 1994, and is based on a study that observed immunotoxicity in adult female rhesus monkeys exposed for about five years. The value of the Aroclor 1254 RfD is identical to that of the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry's chronic minimal risk level (MRL) for PCBs (established in 2000) and the World Health Organization's tolerable daily intake for PCBs (established in 2003); all three of these reference values are based on the same study and health endpoints. However, PCB research over the past two decades has provided some new information to consider: studies of PCB-exposed humans have revealed previously unrecognized health effects; studies have been conducted in animals exposed to more environmentally relevant PCB mixtures; and there is new information regarding risk estimation for breastfeeding infants, a population that may be especially vulnerable to PCB-induced neurobehavioral effects. This presentation will provide an overview of the advances in knowledge to be considered in future EPA assessments of the health risks associated with dietary PCB exposure.









- *Q.* Is outreach to physicians about breastfeeding included in the plan? We should get the word out to protect people. (Murphy)
- A. This has not been discussed yet, but they will probably reach out to EPA program offices about that early in the process.
- Q. It is good to see that EPA is looking at pathways and focusing on body burden, but generally you do not issue fish advisories based on gender. However, we may need to consider thinking about fish advisories targeted to young girls and maybe to young boys. (Ginsberg)
- A. EPA has not completely analyzed the data for this reassessment of the reference dose for PCBs, but so far the data indicates the most sensitive endpoints will be to protect from exposure to breast milk and protect women who are breastfeeding. Men do not breastfeed, so will not be affected by that endpoint. EPA is using human and animal data for this reassessment.
- Q. Is there any point in treating dioxin-like PCBs differently? (Stern)
- A. Dioxin-like PCBs can act by non-dioxin mechanisms. Dioxin-like PCBs will be included in EPA's reassessment of the reference dose for PCBs, but they also have other effects. Dioxin-like PCBs also will be covered in EPA's dioxin reassessment.

Co-occurrence of PCBs and Mercury in Fish Tissue: Is There a Case for Additivity Based on Common Development Endpoints?

Vince Cogliano, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Vince Cogliano serves as acting director of the Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) at the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in Washington DC. IRIS develops scientific reviews of the health hazards of chemicals in the environment. Previously, Dr. Cogliano served at the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC), which is part of the World Health Organization, in Lyon, France, as head of the IARC Monographs programme. The IARC Monographs are a series of scientific reviews that identify environmental factors that can increase the risk of human cancer. Dr. Cogliano received his Ph.D. from Cornell University. Dr. Cogliano's professional interests include qualitative and quantitative health risk assessment and its application to the protection of public health.

Abstract

Not provided.





SESSION 4: RISK ASSESSMENT, EPIDEMIOLOGY, AND TOXICOLOGY Co-occurrence of PCBs and Mercury in Fish Tissue: Is There a Case for Additivity Based on Common Development Endpoints? – Vince Cogliano

Study	Finding	Study	Finding
Grandjean et al 2001 Faroe Islands	PCB association found for highest tertile Hg	Bemis & Seegal 1999 Rat brain	Simultaneous PCB+MeHg exposure decreased tissue dopamin and increased media dopamine beyond changes from PCBs alone: no effects from MeHg alone
Stewart et al 2003 Oswego NY	MeHg associations were found for higher prenatal PCBs	Roegge et al 2004 Female Long-Evans rat	Demonstrates possibility of additive neurotoxic effects of PCB and MeHg
aint-Amour 2006 Junavik	No significant interaction on neurobehavioral parameters	Fischer et al 2008 Neonatal male NMRI mouse	Interaction of low doses of MeHg+PCB-153 enhances developmental neurotoxicity
Frandjean et al 2012 Faroe Islands	Joint action not investigated	Cheng et al 2009 Mouse	PCBs may augment the neurobehavioral deficits caused by increased Hg
		Cauli et al 2013	MeHg+PCB-126/153 induce different effects than the
	13	mary	
	13 Sum There is some evidence of a	mary additivity or interaction	
	13 Sum There is some evidence of a between PCBs and mercury The NPC has strongly record	mary additivity or interaction	
	13 Sum There is some evidence of a between PCBs and mercury The NRC has strongly record group chemicals based on o	mary additivity or interaction mmended that the EPA common adverse outcom	ne
	13 Sum There is some evidence of a between PCBs and mercury The NRC has strongly recor group chemicals based on c New IRIS assessments will f cumulative assessments ba	mary additivity or interaction mmended that the EPA common adverse outcou facilitate subsequent ised on common outcor	ne

- Q. You get dozens of outcome measures with neurobehavioral effects in humans from mercury and PCBs. You might look at one PCB that will give one effect and another PCB will give a different outcome. We also get different effects from mercury exposure from fish. (Groth)
- A. Because some fish are higher in Omega 3, consuming different fish will have different Omega 3 health benefits. Because Omega 3 will be different in each exposure scenario, you will probably want separate analyses of risks and benefits for each scenario. He does not understand yet how IRIS is going to approach this difficult analysis. We know there are beneficial effects of breastfeeding and fish consumption that are difficult to separate.
- Q. The biochemical effects of mercury are similar to PCBs. Selenium enzymes have an effect and should be considered in analyses, because they would modify effects of mercury and PCBs. (Ralston)
- A. There was no response or comment, and the moderator moved along to the next question.
- Q. Early studies showed sea birds with developmental effects from interaction of mercury and PCBs. Have recent studies shown any link? He is surprised that the data are so sparse. (Gochfeld)
- A. He was also surprised there were so few studies and very sparse data on the interaction of mercury and PCBs. However, you find this interaction only with high mercury or high PCB levels. This is an effect that needs to be evaluated. The synergism may occur, but not at low or moderate levels. We need to understand more about complex interaction effects of mercury and PCBs, and also about the interaction with benefits like Omega 3.
- Q. She does research on women and children with PCB, lead, and mercury exposure from the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) data. She has looked at some animal studies on mercury and PCB interaction, but fewer studies are available on mercury and lead. Her research shows that children breastfed get a lot of PCBs from the mother's body, and the first born may get most of it. (Marcella Thompson)
- A. We should consider factors such as birth order, but previous data have not been collected that way. He wished such data had been collected.

National Time Trends in Environmental Exposures and Fish Consumption in U.S. Women of Reproductive Age (NHANES 1999-2012)

Rebecca Birch, Westat

Biosketch

Rebecca Jeffries Birch has been investigating biomarkers of environmental exposure using data from the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) for 10 years. Much of her work has involved mercury and fish consumption. Ms. Birch is currently working on a project investigating time trends in serum perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS) concentrations and its relationship to fish consumption. She has also investigated the relationships between health outcomes and environmental chemicals to which people in the United States may be exposed through consumption of fish, such as polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) and pesticides and their effect on thyroid hormones. Recently, Ms. Birch completed a project estimating fish consumption rates for the U.S. population and various subpopulations. Ms. Birch is currently employed at Westat as an Epidemiologist.

Abstract

Consumption of finfish and shellfish is the primary exposure pathway of methylmercury (MeHg) in the United States and is an important pathway of exposure to other environmental contaminants, such as perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and PCBs. Regulations and fish advisories may contribute to decreased exposure to mercury over time. This presentation discusses a study of blood mercury concentrations and fish consumption in NHANES data and presents preliminary findings from further analyses. We combined fish tissue mercury concentration data and 1999-2010 NHANES blood mercury concentration and fish consumption data to investigate trends in blood mercury concentrations, fish consumption, and mercury intake in women of reproductive age. Using regression analysis, we found NHANES 1999-2000 to have higher blood MeHg concentrations than the mean of the later years (p<.0001) and a positive quadratic trend since 2000 (p=0.004). No trend was observed in fish consumption amount or mercury intake. A decreasing trend was found in the ratio of mercury intake to fish consumed (p=0.04), consistent with women shifting their consumption to fish with lower mercury concentrations.













Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved directly into the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

General Question and Answer Session

- Q. This question was for Rebecca Birch. She has read Ms. Birch's time trends document and has an issue with the idea that women are choosing lower mercury fish. She thinks this data do not show that women are actually choosing lower mercury fish. Instead, women may be just eating lower mercury fish without specifically choosing them. (Susan Buchanan)
- A. The data suggest that women are switching to lower mercury fish, but this does not take into account fish advisories. Using the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) data is not the best way to look at this. (Birch)
- *Q.* This question was for Rebecca Birch. Are there enough pregnant women in the NHANES data set? (Lowery)
- A. No. (Birch)
- Q. The data shows that the number of women who eat fish with high mercury levels has declined in recent years. Perhaps people are choosing salmon instead of tuna, and making a trade-off to get more Omega 3 benefits from eating salmon. Are there any regional data sets available, such as for New York? Could you check salmon Omega 3 levels versus other fish species? (Gochfeld)
- A. She does not know much about local NHANES data sets. It is difficult to find high fish consumers with the NHANES data. (Birch)
- Q. EPA's draft reference dose for PFOA would have this reference dose three times lower than the reference dose that Minnesota uses now. Based on IRIS changes, we will probably find that consuming fish will look much worse previously than it does now. Looking at the benefits of fish consumption will be important, not just looking at the toxicity effects. As a question specifically for Joyce Donohue, will the reference dose go up or down for PFOS? (McCann)
- A. EPA has looked at the peer review results. Now there are 100 new studies that need to be reviewed by EPA. It would be premature to make any statement. (Donohue)
- Q. She wanted to add a cautionary note. Based on individual studies with consumers, they are choosing fish not only based on health benefits but on availability and cost. Fish high in mercury are getting more expensive. Other new fish species, such as tilapia and swai, are now available at a lower cost and are lower mercury fish. (Burger)
- Q. Has consumption of canned albacore tuna decreased? (Stern)
- A. No, but the amount of albacore tuna in the can has decreased. (Burger)
- Q. What are the larger changes planned for EPA's IRIS program? We have been very focused on risk assessment, but IRIS is also important in informing people about data on local areas and stressors. We should look across different agents in a more quantitative assessment. (Kyle)

A. As we are able to focus research more on epidemiological studies that may include modifiers for specific endpoints, we may be able to add more information about modifiers and other factors. The value in doing endpoint-specific assessments is that we may be able to identify some of the environmental causes of diseases such as diabetes. We could look at non-chemical stressors in analyses. EPA will look at epidemiological studies for effect modifiers and co-factors. (Cogliano)

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice

Ned Groth, Gelfond Fund

Biosketch

Dr. Edward (Ned) Groth III was born in Somerville, New Jersey. He received an A.B. in Biology from Princeton University in 1966 and a Ph.D. in Biological Sciences from Stanford University in 1973. His dissertation was titled "Two Issues of Science and Public Policy: Fluoridation of Community Water Supplies and Air Pollution Control in the San Francisco Bay Area." His thesis research under the direction of Professor Paul Ehrlich concerned the interplay between scientific, political, and other factors in environmental and public health policymaking. Dr. Groth did post-doctoral research on the environmental impacts of population growth at the California Institute of Technology, from 1973 to 1974. From 1975 to 1979, he was on the staff of the Environmental Studies Board of the National Research Council, at the U.S. National Academy of Sciences (NAS), in Washington, DC, where he worked on an evaluation of environmental research needs, helped develop multi-disciplinary approaches for assessing risks and control options for pollutants, and directed a study on lead in the human environment.

In 1979, Dr. Groth joined Consumers Union (CU) of United States, the publisher of Consumer Reports magazine, an independent consumer testing and publishing organization, as Director of Public Service Projects. Until his retirement in 2004, Dr. Groth gave the organization's technical and editorial staff scientific advice on a wide array of health and environmental risk issues related to consumer products. His central interests were food safety, toxic chemicals, risk assessment, and risk communication. He participated, as a consumer advocate, in public debates and dialogues with government agencies on myriad health and safety issues. Dr. Groth was also active in the global work carried out by Consumers International, of which CU is a founding member, on similar issues, particularly international food safety standards. Dr. Groth is the author of numerous papers and technical reports and a co-author of several books. He has served on many expert committees and advisory boards, including the Committee on Agricultural Biotechnology, Health and the Environment of the U.S. National Research Council; the Food Forum of the U.S. National Academy of Sciences; a Joint Expert Consultation on Risk Communication in Food Safety for the World Health Organization (WHO) and Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO) of the United Nations; and a WHO/FAO Expert Consultation on Science and Ethics in Food Safety. He has traveled widely in recent years to advise the WHO and FAO, member governments, and national consumer organizations on such issues as methylmercury in fish, the application of risk analysis to food safety, risk communication, and public participation in food safety decision-making.

Abstract

In June 2014, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) issued a draft of updated fish consumption advice that is essentially unchanged from the agencies' 2004 advice; it places somewhat more emphasis on promoting fish consumption by pregnant women to obtain nutritional benefits, and places no more emphasis than before on reducing or avoiding methylmercury exposure. But epidemiological research on the effects of methylmercury exposure on neurodevelopment and cognitive functions has expanded greatly and seen many methodological advances since 2004. More than a dozen studies in 10 countries have confirmed the adverse neurodevelopmental effects of methylmercury. The lowest observed adverse effect level (LOAEL) in at least eight recent studies is an order of magnitude lower than the

recognized LOAEL in 2004. The number of neurodevelopmental outcomes associated with prenatal methylmercury exposure has expanded substantially, and effects on cognition have now been associated with elevated postnatal exposure in both children and adults. The basis for EPA/FDA's draft updated advice is a risk-benefit modeling assessment done by FDA. The advice needs to be much more solidly grounded in empirical epidemiological evidence and the advice needs to be changed and improved from the current draft version.

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice – Ned Groth

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice

> Presented at the 2014 EPA Fish Forum Alexandria, VA, Sept 22-24 Edward Groth III, PhD Groth Consulting Services Pelham, NY USA

2014 (Draft) EPA/FDA Advice

- Targets: Pregnant women (WCBA) & young children.
- Benefits of fish consumption: WCBA and kids should eat at least 8 to 12 oz of seafood per week.
- Generic advice: Choose a variety of low-mercury fish.
- Specific advice:
- Avoid swordfish, shark, king mackerel and Gulf tilefish.
- 2. Eat up to 6 ounces/week of canned albacore tuna.
- 3. Lower-mercury choices include shrimp, canned light tuna, salmon, pollock, catfish, tilapia and cod.

2004 EPA/FDA Advice:

- Targets: Pregnant women (WCBA) & young children.
- Benefits of fish consumption: WCBA and kids should eat up to 12 oz of seafood per week.
- Generic advice: Choose a variety of low-mercury fish.Specific advice:
- Avoid swordfish, shark, king mackerel and Gulf tilefish.
- 2. Eat up to 6 ounces/week of canned albacore tuna.
- 3. Lower-mercury choices include shrimp, canned light tuna, salmon, pollock, and catfish.

What's changed?

- The advice now specifies a minimum beneficial intake of 8 oz of seafood per week and an optimal beneficial range (based on research in the past decade showing benefits of maternal fish intake during pregnancy for neurodevelopment).
- Two more "lower-mercury" items with large market shares have been added to the "safer choices" list.

What hasn't changed

- The new advice (and EPA/FDA's presentation of it to the media) suggests we have learned nothing new in the past decade about methylmercury's effects.
- The new advice (like the old) seems very tolerant of methylmercury exposure.
- While the four fish on the "do not eat" list account for less than 1 percent of the US market, the two varieties of canned tuna—both recommended for consumption by pregnant women and kids—own 12.5 percent of the market and provide 37.25 percent of all methylmercury inputs, far and away the largest sources of exposure.

My Impressions of This Advice

- It focuses on promoting seafood consumption, not on reducing methylmercury exposure. [My opinion: Good advice can and should do both.]
- It specifically promotes increased consumption by pregnant women and young children of the 2 largest sources of methylmercury exposure (i.e., canned tuna). Per capita consumption now averages ~0.8 oz/week, or just 7 to 13 % of recommended amounts.
- It seems completely insensitive to recent research on adverse effects of methylmercury.

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice

Ned Groth

Effects of Methylmercury: What We Knew a Decade Ago

- In 2004, it was taken as a given that the Reference Dose (RfD, a dietary intake of 0.1 µg/kg-bw/day) and the associated blood mercury level of 5.8 µg/L and hair mercury level of 1 ppm, defined "acceptable" or "safe" exposure to methylmercury.
- The RfD was based on a 1997 study in the Faroes that associated significant decrements in cognitive ability with prenatal MeHg exposures at an average umbilical cord blood level of 58 µg/L. By incorporating a 10X Uncertainty Factor, EPA set the RfD at 5.8 µg/L.

My Conclusions:

- The RfD, adopted in 2001 based on 1997 evidence, no longer protects public health, because multiple recent studies have associated adverse effects with exposures around or even below the RfD.
- Advice that tolerates exposures up to the RfD or (as the draft 2014 advice does) *actively promotes exposure that exceeds the RfD* (6 oz of albacore tuna contain 143% of the RfD for a 60-kg woman) cannot protect or advance public health.
- Advice should give far more weight to epidemiological evidence – which I'll review for you now.

Effects of Methylmercury: What We've Learned Since 2004

- Associations between prenatal MeHg exposure and adverse effects on cognitive development have been confirmed in more than a dozen studies.
- The LOAEL for neurodevelopmental effects has been lowered by an order of magnitude, and today is around 5 μg/L in blood and 1 ppm in hair.
- The range of neurodevelopmental effects associated with prenatal MeHg exposure has expanded.
- Cognitive deficits have also been associated with children's postnatal exposure and with the high-end of "normal" fish consumption in adults.

Overview of Recent Research

- More than a dozen studies on neurodevelopmental effects in ~10 countries since 2004.
- Major advances in controls for mutually confounding effects of seafood consumption and methylmercury exposure on cognitive endpoints.
- For example: Beneficial effects of maternal fish intake have now been observed in the Seychelles and Faroes studies (among others).
- With adjustment for beneficial effects, adverse effects in the Faroes are larger, and previously masked adverse effects have been observed in the Seychelles, making these once-inconsistent studies more concordant.

Summaries of Individual Recent Studies*

* See me afterward for complete references and/or copies of individual studies.

1. Oken et al. (2005, 2008); Boston, USA

- Evaluated 135 children's cognitive performance at age 6 months and 341 children's performance at age 3 years.
- Mean maternal hair Hg 0.55 ppm, 90th percentile 1.2 ppm (2005 paper; similar in 2008 group).
- Fish consumption > 2 meals/week associated with significant improvements in cognitive functions.
- Mercury exposure > 90th percentile associated with significant decrements in cognitive functions.
- Net adverse effects in a significant subpopulation.
- Outcome differences as large as 28 percent.

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice – Ned Groth

2. Jedrychowski et al. (2006, 2007), Krakow, Poland

- Examined children at ages 1, 2 and 3 years.
- Associated substantial developmental delays in 1-yearolds with above-average blood mercury.
- Cord blood mercury in the "developmentally delayed" group averaged 1.05 µg/L (vs. 0.85 µg/L in "normal" group); i.e., substantially lower than in USA.
- High-Hg group scored 16.6 points lower on BSID-PDI and 10 points lower on BSID-MDI.
- No differences were associated with mercury exposure at ages 2 and 3 years.
- No control for confounding by fish benefits.

4. Lam et al. (2013), Hong Kong

- Assessed 608 children at age 8 years on a large number of cognitive functions.
- Associated significant decrements in performance on several outcomes with elevated MeHg in cord blood.
- Defined "elevated" MeHg exposure as cord blood > 5.8 μ g/L (i.e., US Reference Level).
- 81 percent of population had cord blood > 5.8 μ g/L.
- I.e., adverse effects occurred in 81 % of population.
- Unable to measure beneficial effects of maternal fish consumption or adjust for mutual confounding.

6. Wu et al. (2014), Zhoushan, China

- Examined 418 newborns at age 3 days, using an NBAS similar to that used by Suzuki et al.
- The mean maternal blood Hg level was 5.68 µg/L and cord blood mean was 7.92 µg/L; 56 percent of mothers exceeded the US Reference Dose (5.8 µg/L).
- Blood mercury level was strongly correlated with the mothers' fish consumption.
- Methylmercury exposure was inversely associated with the total NBAS score and with the active and passive muscle tone components of the motor score.
- Did not assess benefits of fish consumption or adjust for confounding.

3. Lederman et al. (2008), NYC

- Examined 280 children at ages 1, 2, 3 and 4 years in a multi-ethnic population.
- Study included a substantial minority (102 subjects or 36%) of Asian-Americans with high-fish diets and far above average methylmercury exposure.
- Cord blood in Asian children averaged 14.95 µg/L; in non-Asians, it average 3.73 µg/L.
- Substantial decrements in BSID-PDI and on verbal, performance and full IQ at ages 3 and 4 years were associated with methylmercury exposure.
- Maternal fish consumption associated with improved performance on the same outcome measures.

5. Suzuki et al. (2010), Tohoku, Japan

- Examined 498 newborns (3 days old) using a standard neonatal behavioral assessment screen (NBAS).
- Elevated maternal hair mercury was associated with decreased performance on the NBAS motor scale.
- This population had an average maternal hair Hg level of 2.22 ppm—i.e., higher than in the US, but lower than in the Faroes or Seychelles.
- Subsequent testing at ages 30 and 42 months failed to associate any performance differences with mercury exposure; some were associated with PCBs.

7. Sagiv et al. (2012), New Bedford, MA, USA

- Examined 421 8-year-olds for ADHD risk.
- Associated increase in ADHD-related behaviors with elevated prenatal methylmercury exposure.
- Maternal mean hair Hg was 0.62 ppm.
- Maternal hair Hg > 1 ppm was associated with a 40% increase in risk of "inattentive" behavior and a 70% increase in risk of "hyperactive/impulsive" behavior.
- Above-average maternal fish consumption during pregnancy reduced ADHD risk by 60%.
- If replicated, this study expands the list of possible adverse developmental outcomes associated with Hg.

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice – Ned Groth



- Examined 279 11-year-old Inuit children for ADHD.
- Maternal diet is high-fish and also includes marine mammals; i.e., more similar to Faroes than to USA.
- Elevated cord-blood Hg (>11.4 μg/L) was associated with a 4-fold increase in risk of being diagnosed with ADHD.
- This study provides evidence that analogous effects (i.e., increased ADHD risk) are associated with both very high and "high-normal" exposures to MeHg.

9. Freire et al. (2010), Granada, Spain

- Examined 75 4-year-old children.
- Associated significant decrements in general cognition, memory and verbal performance with elevated MeHg exposure.
- Population's mean hair Hg was 1.81 ppm, median was 1.04 ppm.
- Decreased performance was associated with hair Hg > 1.0 ppm; i.e., occurred in >50% of study subjects.
- Mercury exposure was determined to come from the children's own fish consumption (i.e., not prenatal).

11. Myers et al. (2009), Seychelles

12. Davidson et al (2010), Seychelles

- Myers et al. associated deficits in four measures of risk-taking, fine motor coordination and IQ with elevated MeHg exposure in 9-year-olds.
- Davidson et al. associated lower performance on an end-of-year scholastic test with higher MeHg exposure in 9-year-olds.
- Effects were small, most were gender-specific, and all were largely offset by benefits of fish consumption.
- Fish intake and mercury exposure in this population are very high (hair Hg averaged 6.09 ppm).
- Nevertheless, more effects associated with childhood fish consumption.

9. Freire et al. (2010), Granada, Spain

- Examined 75 4-year-old children.
- Associated significant decrements in general cognition, memory and verbal performance with elevated MeHg exposure.
- Population's mean hair Hg was 1.81 ppm, median was 1.04 ppm.
- Decreased performance was associated with hair Hg > 1.0 ppm; i.e., occurred in >50% of study subjects.
- Mercury exposure was determined to come from the children's own fish consumption (i.e., not prenatal).

10. Murata et al. (2004), Faroes

- Tested 878 14-year-olds using an objective measure of brain function, auditory evoked potentials.
- Latency increased (i.e., signal transmission was delayed) in subjects with hair Hg > 1 ppm.
- This difference was associated with the children's own recent (post-natal) mercury exposure, not with their prenatal exposure.

13. Ng et al. (2013), Taiwan

- Assessed cognitive development of 168 children from birth to age 2 years.
- Focused on a subset (N = 26) with a genetic variant associated with poor neural repair function.
- Associated MeHg exposure with large decrements in cognitive performance in carriers of that allele.
- This genetic trait that enhances vulnerability to toxic effects of methylmercury (through age 2) was present in 15.5 % of the studied population.

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice – Ned Groth

14. Julvez et al. (2013), Avon, UK

- Examined data from a subset of the ALSPAC cohort.
- Other papers from the ALSPAC study have shown the benefits of maternal fish consumption in pregnancy and failed to associate any outcome differences with the population's methylmercury exposure.
- Julvez et al. examined data for children found to have one or more of about 40 genetic variants thought to be associated with increased risk of MeHg toxicity.
- Four specific alleles were associated with IQ deficits in individuals with higher MeHg exposure.
- Study was too small to be definitive, → more research.

Some Conclusions

- 1. Eight recent studies have associated adverse neurodevelopmental effects with methylmercury exposures around or below the RfD:
- Oken et al. (Several outcomes @ hair Hg ≥ 1.2 ppm)
- Jedrychowski et al. (lower BSID @ cord blood Hg 1.05 μg/L)
- Lederman et al. (-2.5 IQ points per doubling cord blood Hg)
- Lam et al. (Several outcomes @ cord blood Hg > 5.8 μg/L)
- Wu et al. (Neonatal motor scores, 56% of mothers > 5.8 μ g/L)
- Sagiv et al. (40-70% increased risk of ADHD-related behaviors @ maternal hair Hg > 1 ppm.)
- Murata et al. (brain signal delays @ child hair Hg > 1 ppm)
- Freire et al. (decrements in general cognition, memory, verbal and performance IQ @ child hair Hg > 1 ppm)

Implications for Advice, I

- Epidemiological research during the past decade has advanced our understanding of methylmercury risks enormously.
- Yet the (draft) 2014 EPA/FDA fish consumption advice is essentially unchanged from the 2004 version.
- Conclusion: The draft new advice is not well grounded in understanding of epidemiological evidence.
- In fact, the draft advice is based almost entirely on a benefit/risk assessment model developed by FDA.
- A model—while quite useful—is not "reality."
- The advice needs to take greater account of empirical evidence, which has grown enormously since 2004.

15. Masley et al. (2012), Florida, USA

- Examined 384 middle-aged adults using a multi-test screen for cognitive functions.
- Population was very health-conscious and ate a lot of fish. Mean blood Hg level was 7.2 µg/L.
- Blood Hg > 5 µg/L and < 15 µg/L was associated with improved cognitive performance relative to blood Hg < 5 µg/L (i.e., shows beneficial effects of fish intake).
- Blood Hg > 15 µg/L was associated with significant (~5%) decrements in executive and other functions.
- Eleven percent of this population had blood Hg > 15 μ g/L, and 2.6% had levels > 25 μ g/L.

Conclusions, Continued

2. Recent research has:

- Lowered the LOAEL by an order of magnitude from what was recognized a decade ago.
- Expanded the list of functions apparently affected by prenatal or postnatal methylmercury exposure.
- Begun to associate adverse effects with MeHg exposure and postnatal fish consumption in children.
- Begun to document adverse cognitive effects of MeHg in adults with far above-average fish consumption.
- Begun to link the risk of adverse effects with specific genetic variants that enhance susceptibility.
- Emphasis on "begun" in all these latter cases.

Implications for Advice, II

- Based on empirical evidence, I believe the advice for pregnant women and young children should be much more precautionary:
- It should place as much emphasis on reducing and avoiding methylmercury exposure as it now does on ensuring nutritionally optimal seafood consumption.
- 2. Reducing MeHg exposure can best be accomplished by guiding consumers to seafood choices that are <u>actually low-mercury</u>, i.e., items with < 0.07 ppm Hg.
- There are about 25 popular choices in that category, but no form of canned tuna is among them, nor is cod.

Implications of Recent Epidemiological Evidence on Effects of Methylmercury for Fish Consumption Advice

Ned Groth

Implications for Advice, III

- Advice also needs to be developed for specific, well defined at-risk subpopulations, including:
- Asian-Americans, some Native-American tribes and other minorities (e.g. Hawaiians) known to eat much higher than average amounts of fish and to be at risk for much higher than average MeHg exposure.
- Adults and children who like fish and eat it often. This subset (those above the 90th percentile in fish intake) does not need advice to "eat more fish," but needs guidance to minimize their MeHg exposure.

The Last Word

- The 2014 EPA/FDA Advice is a *draft*, open for public comments.
- I certainly am going to comment, and I encourage any of you who may be so inclined to go and do likewise.
- Thank you for your attention.

Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

Neurodevelopmental Effects of Methylmercury

Glenn Rice, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Glenn Rice has served as an Environmental Health Scientist at the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) since 1990. His research interests focus on developing human health risk assessment methods for chemical mixtures and cumulative exposures. He is one of the primary authors of EPA's Supplementary Guidance for the Health Risk Assessment of Chemical Mixtures and EPA's Mercury Study: Report to Congress. Dr. Rice holds a Doctoral Degree in Environmental Health and Health Policy Management from the Harvard School of Public Health, a Master's Degree in Microbiology from Miami University, as well as undergraduate degrees in Biology and Chemistry from Thomas More College.

Abstract

Not provided.








Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

Epidemiological Evidence of Fish Consumption, Methylmercury Exposure, and Risk of Cardiovascular Diseases in Adults

Jyrki Virtanen, University of Eastern Finland

Biosketch

Dr. Jyrki Virtanen has 10 years of experience in epidemiological research related to the cardiovascular health effects of fish consumption and environmental contaminants in fish, mainly methylmercury. He is an Adjunct Professor of Nutritional Epidemiology at the University of Eastern Finland. Dr. Virtanen has shown in the prospective, population-based cohort study from eastern Finland, the Kuopio Ischemic Heart Disease Risk Factor Study (KIHD) that increased hair mercury concentration, mainly caused by fish consumption in KIHD, is associated with several cardiovascular disease outcomes in middle-aged and older men. He also found that high hair concentration of mercury attenuates the cardioprotective effects of the Omega 3 fatty acids in fish in these men.

Abstract

Epidemiological evidence suggests that consumption of fish and long-chain Omega 3 polyunsaturated fatty acids (PUFA) in fish, n-3 eicosapentaenoic acid (EPA) and n-3 docosahexaenoic acid (DHA), are associated with lower risk of cardiovascular diseases, especially cardiovascular disease mortality. However, results from randomized controlled trials with fish oil supplements have not been as promising. Besides the potentially beneficial nutrients, fish is also a major source of environmental contaminants, such as methylmercury. The association between long-term, moderate level methylmercury exposure and risk of cardiovascular diseases was first observed in the middle-aged and older men from the prospective, population-based cohort study in eastern Finland, the Kuopio Ischemic Heart Disease Risk Factor Study (KIHD). Methylmercury exposure also attenuated the beneficial impact of the Omega 3 PUFA on the risk of cardiovascular disease. However, not all cohort studies have found such adverse effects with mercury exposure. One potential explanation may be the higher average methylmercury levels in the KIHD study population, compared to other study populations.







Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

Status of IRIS Update for Organic and Inorganic Mercury

Vince Cogliano, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Biosketch

Dr. Vince Cogliano serves as acting director of the Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) at the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in Washington DC. IRIS develops scientific reviews of the health hazards of chemicals in the environment. Previously, Dr. Cogliano served at the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC), which is part of the World Health Organization, in Lyon, France, as head of the IARC Monographs programme. The IARC Monographs are a series of scientific reviews that identify environmental factors that can increase the risk of human cancer. Dr. Cogliano received his Ph.D. from Cornell University. Dr. Cogliano's professional interests include qualitative and quantitative health risk assessment and its application to the protection of public health.

Abstract

Not provided.



2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish - Proceedings / Page 182



Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved directly into the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

General Question and Answer Session

- *Q.* Should we consider development of reference doses for mercury for different populations, such as adults, or for the fetus? (McCann)
- A. There was no response or comment, and the moderator moved along to the next question.
- Q. Is there a need to address fetal concentration, based on the ratio of cord blood to maternal blood concentration? There needs to be clarification when presenting information about mercury to avoid confusion from interchangeable use of total mercury and methylmercury. (Susan Buchanan)
- A. At the time of the existing reference dose, that need was not clear. Now we know that cord blood has 70% higher mercury concentration than maternal blood. This should be taken into account. (Stern).
- *Q.* We need to look at how mercury causes toxicity effects by analyzing selenium enzymes. We should look at the differences in mercury relative to the selenium status of subpopulations. We must understand selenium concentration to understand epidemiological studies about mercury. (*Ralston*)
- A. There was no response or comment, and the moderator moved along to the next question.
- Q. We need to develop reference doses for men and women for different weights. Not all adults weigh around 70 kilograms. We need to understand whether the linear relationship is accurate or not.(Burger)
- A. No single reference dose is practical or can capture a safe level for all parts of a population. The approach Glenn Rice used for dose-response is based on evaluation of risk for the dose. (Groth)
- A. He is trying to do a new dose-response for arsenic and this approach may help for mercury. (Cogliano)
- *Q.* We need to weigh the benefits versus the risks. It may be better to use a net effects approach. If we do, then is a reference dose even necessary? (Lowery)
- A. There was no response or comment, and the moderator moved along to the next question.
- *Q.* He has seen that for lead, people are working off the blood level and not a point of departure. For mercury, you cannot easily define a point of departure similar to the situation with lead. For mercury, there may not be a threshold. Some form of dose-response algorithm could be derived and would be helpful. (Ginsberg)
- A. Everyone is exposed to methylmercury, but also gets health benefits from fish consumption. Also some fish species provide higher health benefits. We need to consider how we construct fish advisories to take this into account. (Stern)

- Q. He has a question about the biomarker issue. Studies show inconsistent results. Is it the buildup of effects over time that allows a cardiac event to occur? What is the best biomarker? Sometimes it seems blood, sometimes toenail, and other times it seems hair is the best biomarker. (Gochfeld)
- A. People develop cardiac problems over the long term. The best biomarkers may be toenails and hair. There is a proven association with high levels of mercury in hair and high lipid oxidization, and in one cohort it was associated with carotid artery problems. No association with blood pressure or inflammation has been found so far. When you look at long-term studies, if mercury exposure and cardiac problems are chronic, you have to assume fish consumption is constant. (Virtanen)
- A. We have very challenging issues to work out. He believes in integrated assessment of risks, and that is the way things are now going. EPA and EPA's Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) is the risk assessor for the government. Who is the benefits assessor in the government? He hopes that IRIS will take on benefits assessment, but do it separately and integrate it later. We need to look at subsets of the population for net negative effects. For some subsets of the population, fish consumption is low. For other subsets, such as Asians, there may be a greater proportion of them facing risks from higher fish consumption. We need much more data on the net effects of fish consumption. He also thinks current models are not adequate. (Groth)
- *Q.* It will be helpful to look at the biochemical mechanism of mercury, especially the association with selenium enzymes. All fish that cause harm contain a lot of mercury relative to selenium. In Finland and New Zealand, there are selenium deficient populations so that may affect study results. In the Faroes, they are eating fish high in selenium. (Ralston)
- A. There was no response or comment, and the moderator moved along to the next question.
- Q. What does the data show about masking neurotoxicity? (Gray)
- A. He is not sure there has been a definitive study. Neurotoxicity of methylmercury outside of fish consumption would make results difficult to interpret. There are a lot of other confounding factors besides mercury, and that makes it difficult to assess risks. A lot more work needs to be done. (Rice)
- A. Some studies show confounding effects, but we need more data on them. These possible confounding effects have not been taken into account. (Groth)

SECTION II-F SESSION 5: HEALTH BENEFITS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Introduction

Moderator:

Robert Brodberg, California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment

Biosketch

Dr. Robert K. Brodberg is a senior toxicologist in the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, which is part of the California Environmental Protection Agency. Dr. Brodberg received his B.S. in Biology from Heidelberg College, and his M.S. and Ph.D. in Biology from Bowling Green State University. Dr. Brodberg has worked as a risk assessor for the State of California since 1989. He has worked on human health assessments for pesticides, sediment quality objectives, and water quality issues. He is currently Chief of the Fish and Water Quality Evaluation Section, which is responsible for assessing the potential human health risks of eating chemically contaminated sport fish and seafood and issuing sport fish consumption advisories for California.

Presentations

Fatty Acid Content in Fish Species from the Great Lakes and Nearby Watersheds *Meghan Williams, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources*

Great Lakes Basin Fish Consumption, Vitamin D, Selenium, Fatty Acids, Contaminant Distributions and Associations in 154 Wisconsin Anglers *Henry Anderson, Wisconsin Department of Health Services*

Mercury-Nutrient Signatures in Seafood and in Blood of Seafood Consumers Roxanne Karimi, Stony Brook University

Mercury, Selenium, and Selenium: Mercury Ratios in Fish and Risk Management Joanna Burger, Rutgers University, and Michael Gochfeld

Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption for Cardiovascular Diseases Dariush Mozaffarian, Harvard Medical School, Tufts University

Maternal Fish Intake during Pregnancy and Child Cognition Emily Oken, Harvard Medical School

FDA Assessment of Net Effects on Neurodevelopment from Eating Commercial Fish during Pregnancy *Phil Spiller, U.S. Food and Drug Administration*

Risk-Benefit of Consuming Lake Erie Fish Satyendra Bhavsar, Ontario Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change Updated Approach for Balancing the Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption on Neurodevelopmental Endpoints *Gary Ginsberg, Connecticut Department of Public Health*

Fatty Acid Content in Fish Species from the Great Lakes and Nearby Watersheds

Meghan Williams, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

Biosketch

Meghan Williams is an environmental toxicologist with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), Bureau of Fisheries Management. She holds a B.A. in Zoology and English from Ohio Wesleyan University and a Master's degree in Aquatic Ecology from Bowling Green State University, where she studied the effects of the algicide copper sulfate on zooplankton and macroinvertebrates in drinking water reservoirs. Previously, she worked as an entomologist at the Stroud Water Research Center and as a chemist in the Environmental Toxicology Department at the Wisconsin State Laboratory of Hygiene. At the Wisconsin DNR, Meghan is responsible for fish consumption advisory outreach and analysis of data on fatty acids and legacy and emerging fish contaminants.

Abstract

Fish are often recommended as an easy way to incorporate lean protein and beneficial Omega 3 fatty acids into the diet. However, most research investigating fish fatty acid content is focused on marine or farmed freshwater species, with few studies investigating fatty acid content in sport fish consumed by recreational anglers and their families. Recognizing the need to quantify the benefits of consumption of wild freshwater fish, partners from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Great Lakes Consortium for Fish Consumption Advisories undertook a large-scale, multi-state effort to quantify fatty acid content in freshwater sport-caught fish. Nearly 900 samples from the Great Lakes and nearby waters were collected between 2010 and 2013 and analyzed for 37 fatty acid types, including five Omega 3 fatty acids. Mean concentrations of Omega 3 fatty acids varied from 1.73 to 22.0 mg/g in Great Lakes sport fish and from 1.01 to 10.6 mg/g in fish from inland waters. This talk will present Omega 3 fatty acid content in detail for 24 fish species, and will further examine physical and biological factors (i.e., size, trophic position, water body characteristics, season) that may contribute to variation in species' fatty acid content. Advantages and limitations to incorporating this information into fish consumption advisories will also be discussed.



















- *Q.* What does it cost to start analyzing for Omega 3 fatty acids? (Murphy)
- A. Developing lab capacity is expensive. (Williams and Henry Anderson)
- A. We had to come up with a method to coordinate for standardization among labs. (Williams)
- *Q.* How much fish tissue do you need? Do you need a muscle plug or a fillet sample to do the analysis? (Murphy)
- A. Generally 2 mg is enough. (Henry Anderson)

Great Lakes Basin Fish Consumption, Vitamin D, Selenium, Fatty Acids, Contaminant Distributions and Associations in 154 Wisconsin Anglers

Henry Anderson, Wisconsin Department of Health Services

Biosketch

Dr. Henry Anderson has been Chief Medical Officer and State Environmental and Occupational Disease Epidemiologist for the Wisconsin Department of Health Services, Division of Public Health. He holds adjunct professorships at the University of Wisconsin-Madison, Department of Population Health Sciences, and the University of Wisconsin Institute for Environmental Studies, Center for Human Studies. He received his M.D. degree in 1972 from the University of Wisconsin-Madison; was certified in 1977 by the American Board of Preventive Medicine with a sub-specialty in occupational and environmental medicine and in 1983 became a fellow of the American College of Epidemiology. He has authored over 250 scientific papers. Over the past 30 years, he has lead Wisconsin's Public Health activities concerning fish consumption advisories and lead multiple research projects documenting the human health hazards of consumption of Great Lakes and other sport fish. Based upon the research, he helped develop and then evaluate the effectiveness of public health advisories. He is currently the Principal Investigator on two U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Great Lakes Restoration Initiative grants enhancing Wisconsin's fish monitoring, human biomonitoring, and advisory activities.

Abstract

Essential nutrients such as Vitamin D, selenium, and Omega 3 fatty acids are keys to maintaining good health. Fish is an important potential source of these nutrients; however, fish, especially freshwater fish from the Great Lakes Basin, can also be a source of persistent pollutants such as methylmercury, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), brominated ethers, and other contaminants all with the potential to cause adverse health outcomes. Fish consumption advisories focus on how to minimize risks while maximizing benefits. There is a paucity of nutrient information for Great Lakes Basin fish and there is even less information regarding the nutrient status of Wisconsin residents. Such information is needed to assess whether freshwater fish consumption is an important contributor to achieving optimal nutrient levels. Dietary and health questionnaires, and serum and urine samples were collected from 154 older adult men and tested for vitamin D, selenium, a suite of fatty acids, blood mercury, urine mercury, PCBs, polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs), perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS), and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA). Correlations between sport and commercial fish consumption, nutrients and contaminants will be described to explore the risks and benefits associated with consumption of fish from the Great Lakes basin. The nutrient distributions found are compared to a random sample of 50 individuals from the Wisconsin general population as well as the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES).







Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

Mercury-Nutrient Signatures in Seafood and in Blood of Seafood Consumers

Roxanne Karimi, Stony Brook University

Biosketch

Dr. Roxanne Karimi is a research scientist in the School of Marine and Atmospheric Sciences at Stony Brook University. Dr. Karimi obtained a B.A. from the University of Pennsylvania and a Ph.D. in Biology from Dartmouth College. Dr. Karimi has a broad background in aquatic ecology and environmental health research. Dr. Karimi's research focuses on: 1) the influence of ecological factors on nutrient and contaminant patterns in fish and other aquatic organisms and 2) human exposure and risk-benefits from aquatic nutrients and contaminants from fish consumption. Dr. Karimi's research has helped to identify eco-physiological factors that drive the cycling and bioaccumulation of essential nutrients and metal contaminants, such as mercury and selenium. One major focus of this work has examined how growth dilution reduces concentrations of metals in aquatic organisms. Another focus is collaborating with epidemiologists on human exposure to fish contaminants and concomitant effects on autoimmunity and other health responses. In collaboration with the Environmental Defense Fund, Dr. Karimi developed the Seafood Mercury Database, a rich data source on global mercury concentrations in commercial seafood items, which provides information to numerous organizations in the United States that develop seafood consumption advice.

Abstract

Dietary recommendations for seafood are confusing due to the desire to balance both benefits from nutrients and risks from contaminants. The overall health value of different fish and shellfish items depends on concentrations of multiple nutrients (e.g., selenium (Se), Omega 3 fatty acids) and contaminants (e.g., mercury (Hg)). However, few studies have examined the connections between human exposure to multiple nutrients and contaminants and the consumption of specific types of seafood. Our goals were to compare: 1) Hg, Se, and Omega 3 fatty acid concentrations (Hg-nutrient signatures) among common fish and shellfish items and 2) Hg-nutrient signatures in the blood of avid seafood consumers, based on seafood consumption habits. We compiled nutrient and Hg concentration data for common fish and shellfish items from the literature. We also measured blood concentrations of Hg and seafood nutrients collected from adult, avid seafood consumers on Long Island, New York. Canonical discriminant analyses revealed distinct Hg-nutrient signatures among seafood items, and these signatures were reflected in the blood of consumers based on different consumption habits. For example, consumers with a salmon-dominated seafood diet had a relatively high percentage of Omega 3 fatty acids in blood, and consumers who tend to eat top predator seafood have higher Hg, but similar blood nutrient concentrations compared to consumers who tend to eat low trophic level seafood. These results provide direct evidence of links between the ecological characteristics of the type of seafood consumed and Hg-nutrient exposure. This approach helps assess the overall human health value of specific seafood types, leads to specific diet recommendations, and can be used to characterize risk:benefit status among seafood consumers.





2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish - Proceedings / Page 207


Note: No questions were asked.

Mercury, Selenium, and Selenium:Mercury Ratios in Fish and Risk Management

Joanna Burger, Rutgers University, and Michael Gochfeld

Biosketch

Dr. Joanna Burger is Distinguished Professor of Biology, a Professor in the School of Public Health, and a member of the Environmental and Occupational Health Sciences Institute at Rutgers University. Her main research interests are in the interactions between the biotic world and humans, including risk from contaminants in fish and shellfish to humans and other biota; understanding fishing, fish consumption, risk assessment, and risk management of mercury and other contaminants in fish; using fish, birds, and other organisms as indicators of human and ecological health and wellbeing; food chain accumulation; and ways to mitigate the effects of people on species and ecosystems. She has conducted research on fishing, fishing consumption, and risk in New Jersey, New York, South Carolina, Georgia, Ohio, Idaho, Washington, Alaska, and Puerto Rico. She led a biological expedition to the Aleutians of Alaska to determine if the food chain (invertebrates, shellfish, fish, birds) was safe, both to the organisms themselves, to the food chain, and to humans. Her work is collaborative with local people, Native Americans, local governments, and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). She is particularly interested in environmental justice, and presented several talks at EPA meetings and Fish Forums, including one on environmental justice. She has also been involved with assessing heavy metals and radionuclides for several U.S. Department of Energy sites, including developing biomonitoring plans to protect human health and the environment. Much of her work is in collaboration with Dr. Michael Gochfeld. She has published several books and over 500 papers in refereed journals, many on fishing, fish consumption, risk, and risk management. She has served on several local and national committees, including for the National Academy of Sciences, EPA, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and Nuclear Regulatory Commission. She has a Distinguished Achievement Award from the Society of Risk Analysis, and is a Fellow in the International Union for Pure and Applied Chemistry, and the American Association for the Advancement of Science.

Abstract

Fish provide healthy protein, as well as recreational and cultural benefits, but can also contain mercury, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) and other contaminants that have adverse effects on humans and other organisms, particularly developing fetuses. Recently some authors have suggested that a molar excess of selenium (e.g., selenium:mercury molar ratio >1) confers protection from mercury toxicity derived from fish consumption. We review our studies of mercury and selenium in freshwater, marine, and commercial fish (mainly marine), examining the following questions: 1) how selenium:mercury molar ratios vary among species; 2) how the molar ratios vary within species; 3) whether the molar ratios differ between freshwater and saltwater fish; 4) whether mean molar ratio values provide a reliable indication of potential risk to fish consumers; and 5) whether mean selenium:mercury molar ratios are sufficiently constant (e.g., low variation) to allow for use in risk assessment, risk management, or risk communication. In saltwater fish, mean selenium:mercury molar ratios shark to 68.1 in whiting. For freshwater fish, the mean ratios varied from 0.68 in bowfin to 20.8 in black crappie. Commercial seafood (mainly saltwater) showed great variation in ratios; shrimp and scallops had very high ratios. There was somewhat less variability in the ratios for freshwater fish, compared to the fish from saltwater, but there was no

overall predictable difference in variation in selenium:mercury molar ratios. For both saltwater and freshwater fish, some species with mean molar ratios above 1 had a significant proportion of individual fish with molar ratios below 1. Overall, this indicates great variation in measures of central tendencies (means), and in measures of dispersion. We suggest that relying on the selenium:mercury molar ratio as a method of predicting reduced risk from mercury toxicity is problematic because of the great variation among and within fish species, and the variation is not predictable because mercury varies by season, size of fish, and location of fish (which is not available for commercial fish). With the high variation in ratios, and low predictability, the ratios are currently not useful for risk assessment and risk management, and vulnerable individuals cannot rely on mean selenium:mercury molar ratios for protection from mercury toxicity. Thus, the public cannot assume that high levels of selenium in marine fish will protect them from mercury toxicity.













- Q. He agrees with Dr. Burger's results that high variability in the selenium:mercury molar ratio is an issue. He believes that you must include the selenium:mercury molar ratio in studies. He emphasized that it is important to look at both mercury and selenium and to know a person's selenium status before analysis of health effects from fish consumption. (Ralston)
- A. The selenium:mercury molar ratio can be highly variable, and is not predictable. (Burger)
- *Comment:* He will be doing a round robin effort on measuring selenium and mercury. If anyone wants to be included in this effort, please contact him directly. (Ralston)
- A. In response to a request from the moderator, Dr. Gochfeld said that he accepted there was significant inconsistency and complexity in the data on this selenium:mercury issue. (Gochfeld)
- Q. Do you have any sex data on the fish, because of mercury mobilization in gametes? (Richardson)
- A. There is a lot of that data for birds, but much less for fish. They have some age variation data for fish. (Burger)

General Question and Answer Session

Note: There were no questions because the moderator announced they would take the scheduled break.

Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption for Cardiovascular Diseases

Dariush Mozaffarian, Harvard Medical School, Tufts University

Biosketch

After 10 years on the faculty at Harvard University, Dr. Dariush Mozaffarian has been appointed the Dean of the Friedman School of Nutrition Science and Policy at Tufts University. He is a cardiologist and epidemiologist whose research focuses on the effects of diet and lifestyle on cardiometabolic health, including global impacts of suboptimal diet and effectiveness of policies to improve diets around the world. Dr. Mozaffarian has authored more than 200 scientific publications on lifestyle and cardiovascular health, including on global dietary burdens of disease, Omega 3 fatty acids, trans fatty acids, diets and weight gain, and healthy dietary patterns. He has served in numerous advisory roles, including for the American Heart Association, U.S. and Canadian governments, World Health Organization, and United Nations Food and Agriculture Organization. He chairs the Global Burden of Diseases Nutrition and Chronic Diseases Expert Group (NutriCoDE). Dr. Mozaffarian received a B.S. in Biological Sciences from Stanford University (Phi Beta Kappa), an M.D. from Columbia University (Alpha Omega Alpha), an M.P.H. from University of Washington, and a Doctorate in Epidemiology from Harvard. He is board-certified in Cardiovascular Medicine and, until serving as Dean, remained clinically active on the cardiology service at Brigham and Women's Hospital in Boston, Massachusetts.

Abstract

Controversy has arisen among the public and in the media regarding the health effects of fish intake in adults. Substantial evidence indicates that fish consumption reduces coronary heart disease mortality, the leading cause of death in nearly all nations globally. Conversely, concerns have grown regarding potential effects of exposure to mercury and other contaminants found in some fish. Because fish consumption appears to have important health benefits in adults, elucidating the relationships between fish intake, mercury and other contaminant exposure, and health risk is of considerable scientific and public health relevance. Modest consumption of fish (e.g., 1-2 servings/week), especially species higher in the n-3 fatty acids eicosapentaenoic acid (EPA) and docosahexaenoic acid (DHA), appears to reduce risk of coronary death by 36% (95% confidence interval, 20%-50%; P<.001) and may favorably affect other clinical outcomes. Women of childbearing age and nursing mothers should also consume seafood for optimal brain development in their children, limiting intake of only a few selected species. Chronic health effects of low-level methylmercury in adults are not established; the best available evidence suggests no effects on hypertension, diabetes, or cardiovascular diseases. A variety of seafood should be consumed; individuals with very high consumption (\geq 5 servings/week) may wish to limit intake of species highest in mercury levels. Levels of dioxins and polychlorinated biphenyls in fish are low, and potential carcinogenic and other effects are greatly outweighed by potential benefits of fish intake and should have little impact on individual choices for commercial seafood consumption. (All individuals should consult regional advisories for local sport-caught fish). In sum, for major health outcomes among adults, based on both the strength of the evidence and the potential magnitudes of effect, the benefits of fish intake greatly exceed the potential risks. These findings demonstrate that quantitative and comparable assessment of risks and benefits is needed to make informed recommendations about optimal fish consumption. Such evaluation has been limited in the past by widely varying standard methods for assessing nutritional benefits versus toxicological risks.



- Cancer
- Bone health







Model 2\$

Model 1: Adjusted for age, sex, race, and smoking status Model 2: Further adjusted for body mass index, physical activity, alcohol use, diabetes mellitus, hypertension, high cholesterol, and dietary EPA+DHA.

Wennberg et al. AJCN 2012

Mercury and Hypertension

Table 5. Multivariable-Adjusted Risk of Incident Hypertension According to Deciles of Mercury Exposure Among 6045 US Men and Women in 2 Separate Prospective Cohorts

				D	eciles of Toen	ail Mercury C	oncentration				
Variable	D1	D2	D3	D4	D5	D6	D7	D8	D9	D10	P for Trend
Median, µg/g	0.07	0.11	0.14	0.17	0.21	0.25	0.31	0.38	0.52	0.92	
Geometric mean, µg/g	0.06	0.11	0.14	0.17	0.21	0.25	0.31	0.38	0.52 ~ 2	1.06 2.9 ug/g i	n hai
No. of events	372	354	382	355	354	364	343	359	349	308	
Age- and sex-adjusted HR (95% CI)	1.00 (reference)	0.87 (0.75–1.01)	1.03 (0.90–1.19)	0.87 (0.76–1.01)	0.89 (0.77–1.03)	0.92 (0.79–1.06)	0.86 (0.74–1.00)	0.94 (0.81–1.08)	0.91 (0.78–1.05)	0.79 (0.67–0.92)	0.01
Multivariable- adjusted HR (95% CI)*	1.00 (reference)	0.89 (0.77-1.03)	1.08 (0.93–1.25)	0.90 (0.78–1.04)	0.94 (0.81–1.09)	0.94 (0.81–1.09)	0.91 (0.78–1.06)	0.96 (0.82–1.12)	0.95 (0.82–1.11)	0.81 (0.69–0.96)	0.02
Multivariable+ diet-adjusted HR (95% CI)†	1.00 (reference)	0.89 (0.77-1.03)	1.08 (0.931.25)	0.89 (0.77–1.03)	0.93 (0.80-1.08)	0.94 (0.81–1.09)	0.92 (0.79–1.07)	0.96 (0.83–1.12)	0.96 (0.82–1.12)	0.82 (0.690.96)	0.03

ala were adjusted for ope (y), sex, nec (white or norwhile), month of benuil nettern, tramp restory or thypertreson (yes or no), smount renet), body mass index (quintlies), diabetes mellitas (yes or no), hypertohisterolemia (yes or no), hutter cardiovascular disease status ((y (quintlies), dooth use (quintlies), dia tho consimption (quintlies). stata were adjusted for consumption of whole grains, unprocessed meats, processed meats, fruits, and vegetables (each in quintlies). ular disease status (case or control), physical

Mozaffarian et al. Hypertension 2012

Mercury and Diabetes

 1.00
 0.95
 0.95
 0.98
 0.84

 (reference)
 (0.72–1.26)
 (0.71–1.28)
 (0.73–1.31)
 (0.62–1.14)

0.27

Mozaffarian et al. NEJM 2011

	Q1	Q2	Q3	Q4	Q5	P for trend
All participants combined (n = 9,267)					~ 2.2 ug/g in h	air
Mercury median (µg/g)	0.09	0.16	0.23	0.34	0.66	
Geometric mean (µg/g)	0.08	0.16	0.23	0.35	0.76	
Cases of incident diabetes (total = 1,010)	233	224	186	181	186	
HR (95% CI)						
Age and sex adjusted	1.00 (reference)	1.06 (0.86-1.30)	0.79 (0.63-0.98)	0.78 (0.63-0.98)	0.89 (0.72-1.10)	0.17
Multivariable\$	1.00 (reference)	1.05 (0.85-1.29)	0.77 (0.61-0.97)	0.76 (0.60-0.96)	0.81 (0.64-1.02)	0.05
Multivariable + diet8	1.00 (reference)	0.98 (0.79-1.22)	0.75 (0.59-0.94)	0.75 (0.59-0.95)	0.77 (0.61-0.98)	0.04

	п	Low S-PUFA and low hair-Hg	High S-PUFA and low hair-Hg	Low S-PUFA and high hair-Hg	High S-PUFA and high hair-Hg
Hair-Hg (µg/g)	1613	0.570 (0.590)2	0.930 (0.620)	2.96 (1.88)	3.22 (2.68)
S-PUFA (%)	1613	3.78 (1.14)	6.22 (1.18)	3.93 (1.37)	6.89 (2.28)
Age (y)	1613	53.1 ± 6.54^3	54.1 ± 6.11	54.2 ± 4.41	54.3 ± 3.90
Smoking habits (%)	1581				
Never		36.6	41.8	28.2	23.5
Former		31.6	35.3	36.7	44.7
Current		31.8	22.9	35.1	31.8
BMI (kg/m ²)	1585	26.2 (4.30)	25.8 (4.10)	26.9 (4.10)	27.4 (5.90)
Systolic blood pressure (mm Hg)	1578	136 ± 16.6	136 ± 17.0	137 ± 17.2	138 ± 16.5
Diastolic blood pressure (mm Hg)	1578	87.6 ± 9.78	86.7 ± 8.98	90.0 ± 10.3	90.1 ± 9.80
Diabetes (%)	1581	4.57	10.5	6.43	4.71
Serum cholesterol (mmol/L)	1582	6.08 ± 1.17	6.11 ± 1.16	6.17 ± 1.21	6.17 ± 0.861
apo B and apo A-I ratio	1598	1.00 ± 0.252	0.989 ± 0.248	1.10 ± 2.33	1.08 ± 0.181
Educational level (%)	1562				
Low		58.8	41.4	83.1	68.2
Medium		32.4	33.6	12.1	20.0
High		8.82	25.0	4.84	11.8
Alcohol consumption (%)	1274				
<1 time/wk		74.6	67.4	55.0	46.5
1 to <2 times/wk		17.7	21.0	27.8	35.2
≥2 times/wk		7.70	11.6	17.2	18.3
Physical inactivity (%)	1486	26.5	29.9	17.9	10.7





Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

Maternal Fish Intake during Pregnancy and Child Cognition

Emily Oken, Harvard Medical School

Biosketch

Dr. Emily Oken is an Associate Professor in the Department of Population Medicine at Harvard Medical School and Harvard Pilgrim Health Care Institute. She practices as a Primary Care Physician at the Gretchen and Edward Fish Center for Women's Health at Brigham and Women's Hospital, where she pursues her interest in medical care for women before, during, and after pregnancy. Dr. Oken received her medical degree from Harvard Medical School in 1996 and completed her internship and residency in internal medicine and pediatrics at the Harvard Combined Medicine/Pediatrics Residency Program. She completed her fellowship in general internal medicine at Harvard Medical School and obtained her Master's degree in public health from Harvard School of Public Health. Dr. Oken's research focuses on the influence of nutrition and other modifiable factors during pregnancy and early childhood on long-term maternal and child health, especially cardiometabolic health and cognitive development. She has also led a number of studies examining predictors and sequelae of maternal overweight, weight gain, and related conditions such as gestational diabetes mellitus in the peripartum period. Her work on the toxicant risks and nutrient benefits of prenatal fish consumption has influenced national guidelines for fish consumption during pregnancy, helping to shift the previous focus of risk-only or benefit-only studies to a broader emphasis on the overall health effects of fish consumption for mother and baby. She has also published widely on perinatal influences on child health including asthma and atopy. In support of this work, she has led longitudinal studies commencing in the peripartum period and following mothers and children throughout childhood. She is co-Principal Investigator of Project Viva, a unique U.S. pre-birth cohort study that has followed pregnant women and their children since 1999. She is also Principal Investigator and co-leader of the team assessing cardiometabolic, respiratory, and neurocognitive outcome measures on children enrolled 1996-7 in the Promotion of Breastfeeding Intervention Trial (PROBIT), a cluster-randomized trial of breastfeeding promotion in the Republic of Belarus.

Abstract

The possible combinations of matters related to fish consumption are many, but few, if any, fish consumption patterns optimize all domains. Fish provides a rich source of protein and other nutrients, but because of contamination by methylmercury and other toxicants, more fish intake often leads to greater toxicant exposure. In this talk, I will summarize the issue of fish consumption choice, with a focus on pregnancy and early childhood. I will also present results from an observational analysis of fish consumption during pregnancy and childhood cognition. From 1999-2002 we enrolled pregnant women into a prospective cohort, and followed their children since. At 24-28 weeks gestation, we estimated maternal fish intake using a semiquantitative food frequency questionnaire and collected blood. We assayed stored erythrocytes for total mercury (Hg) and plasma for fatty acids including n-3 docosahexaenoic acid (DHA) and eicosapentaenoic acid (EPA). In mid-childhood, we administered verbal and nonverbal subscales of the Kauffman Brief Intelligence Test (KBIT) to children. We performed multivariable linear regression analyses adjusting for maternal and child characteristics, including home environment and maternal IQ. Finally, I will discuss results from a pilot randomized trial, in which we recruited 61 women in the greater Boston, Massachusetts area at 12-22 weeks gestation who consumed ≤ 2 fish servings/month, and obtained outcome data from 55. We randomized participants to three arms:

Advice to consume low-mercury/high-DHA fish (n=18); Advice plus grocery store gift cards to purchase fish (n=17); or Control messages (n=20). At baseline and 12-week follow-up, we estimated intake of fish, DHA, and mercury using a 1-month fish intake food frequency questionnaire, and measured plasma DHA and blood and hair total mercury. We found that the educational intervention successfully increased consumption of fish and DHA but not mercury.

SESSION 5: HEALTH BENEFITS AND RISK MANAGEMENT Maternal Fish Intake during Pregnancy and Child Cognition – Emily Oken Should we advise pregnant women to eat fish? ? Maternal fish intake during If so, pregnancy and child cognition - How much? - Which types? Emily Oken, MD, MPH - How strong is the evidence? · If not fish, what? Department of Population Medicine Harvard Pilgrim Health Care Institute Why is this question so complex? Toxicant exposure - complexities · 4 major perspectives have influenced fish consumption advice: Multiple contaminants may co-occur, with - Toxicant risks, nutritional benefits, ecologic different or interactive health effects concerns, economic influences - PCBs and other persistent organic Complexities include: compounds, heavy metals, "contaminants of - Within each one, uncertainty exists emerging concern" such as pharmaceuticals, - Different perspectives often in conflict personal care products, and perfluorinated - Previous advice (often from 1 perspective) organic compounds has had unintended, adverse consequences · Most studies (and advisories) focus on single contaminants Toxicant exposure - complexities Toxicant exposure - complexities Toxicant levels vary! Variable susceptibility to toxicities - Within fish species - FDA threshold - Variation among individuals, also by stage of · Swordfish ("do not eat") - mean 1 ppm mercury, lifecourse but some fish 0 ppm - Fetus especially susceptible • Halibut (not listed) - mean 0.24 ppm, but up to 1.5 - US EPA/FDA advice specific to pregnancy, no ppm advice for non-pregnant adults - Very limited information about effects on - By source children • Tilefish ("do not eat") - high mercury if from Gulf of Mexico, low mercury if from Atlantic · Confounding by nutritional benefits

SESSION 5: HEALTH BENEF Maternal Fish Intake during Pregnar	ITS AND RISK MANAGEMENT ncy and Child Cognition – Emily Oken
 Fish is the primary dietary source of omega- 3 long-chain polyunsaturated fatty acids Omega-3 LCPUFA: Essential nutrients – we can't synthesize them, have to eat them Necessary for fetal optimal fetal brain, eye development (DHA) Most women eat too little: recommended 1400 mg DHA/week, US mean ~500 mg/wk 	 Nutrient benefits - complexities Multiple co-occurring nutrients: protein, iodine, vitamin D, selenium, etc. Some studies suggest lean fish in pregnancy at least as beneficial for birth outcomes Nutrient levels vary across species. What does a 6 ounce meal give you? Shrimp: ~250 mg DHA Pollock: ~700 mg DHA Salmon: ~2500 mg DHA Confounding by contaminant risk Null results from supplement trials
DHA Supplementation in Pregnancy, Birth Outcomes & Bayley Scores (Makrides et al, JAMA 2011) Birth outcomes RR (95% Cl) Birth <34wks 0.5 (0.3, 0.94) Birth vt <2500 g 0.7 (0.4, 0.96) NICU admission 0.6 (0.3, 0.97) Cognition at 18 months Beta (95% Cl) Cognition 0.01 (-1.4, 1.4) Language -1.4 (-3.1, 0.2) Motor 0.08 (-1.2, 1.3) Adaptive behavior -1.5 (-3.2, 0.1)	 Limitations of existing data on prenatal fish intake Most prior studies have studied one exposure (Hg) but not several (fish, Hg, DHA, Selenium) Newer study from Seychelles that includes Hg, n-3 PUFA has small numbers, outcomes only among toddlers Confounding remains a concern (e.g. maternal education, IQ) Limited information on fish types
 Prospective longitudinal cohort study of mothers and children Boston, MA area Enrollment 1999-2002 in 1st trimester of pregnancy 	Shrimp, lobster, scallops, clams as a main dish (1 serving) Never/loss than 1 per month 1-3 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-4 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-5-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-7-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-8-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-7-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-7-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-8-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-9-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-9-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-9-6 servings per week Shrimp betweek 3-9-7-7 Shrimp betweek 3-9-7 Shrimp betweek <

SESSION 5: HEALTH BENEFITS AND RISK MANAGEMENT Maternal Fish Intake during Pregnancy and Child Cognition – Emily Oken

Exposure biomarkers Maternal erythrocytes collected at 26-28 weeks gestation (N~1600) Total Hg (Direct Mercury Analyzer 80) Fatty acids (Gas Chromatography) Selenim (DRC-ICP-MS)

- Maternal hair at delivery (N~200)

- Mate

Results in 6 month old infants (n=135)

	Maternal 2 nd tri fish intake (per syg/wk)	Maternal hair mercury at delivery (per ppm)
	Change in 6	month VRM score
Fish	2.8 (0.2, 5.4)	
Mercury		-4.0 (-10.0, 2.0)
51 1 0	40(12 67)	75(127 12)

Adjusted for maternal age, race/ethnicity, education, marital status; infant sex, gestational age, fetal growth, breastfeeding, age at testing Oken E, et al. Env Health Perspect 2005;113:1376-80.

Results at age 3 years (n=341)– Language and visual motor function

Child	MV	MV + fish
test score		
PPVT		
Hg top decile	-4.0 (-8.0, 0.0)	-4.5 (-8.5, -0.4)
Hg < 90 th %ile	Referent	Referent
WRAVMA total		
Hg top decile	-3.5 (-7.2, 0.2)	-4.6 (-8.3, -0.9)
Hg < 90 th %ile	Referent	Referent

*MV adjustment = Child: fetal growth, gestation length, breastfeeding duration, birth order, language; Maternal: PPVT score, age, BMI, race/ethnicity, education, marital status, smoking; Paternal: education

Results in 6 month old infants (n=135)

	Hair mercury <= 1.2 ppm	Hair mercury > 1.2 ppm
>2 weekly	72	55
fish servings	(n=7)	(n=2)
<= 2 weekly	60	53
fish servings	(n=114)	(n=12)

Unadjusted analysis

Oken E, et al. Env Health Perspect 2005;113:1376-80.

Results at age 3 years (n=341) – Language and visual motor function

Child	MV	MV + Hg
Test Score		
PPVT		
Fish > 2x/wk	1.2 (-3.5, 6.0)	2.2 (-2.6, 7.0)
Fish <= 2x/wk	-2.1 (-5.7, 1.4)	-1.8 (-5.4, 1.8)
Fish never	Referent	Referent
WRAVMA total		
Fish > 2x/wk	5.3 (0.6, 9.6)	6.4 (2.0, 10.8)
Fish <= 2x/wk	1.1 (-2.2, 4.4)	1.5 (-1.8, 4.7)
Fish never	Referent	Referent

*MV adjustment = Child: fetal growth, gestation length, breastfeeding duration, birth order, language; Maternal: PPVT score, age, BMI, race/ethnicity, education, marital status, smoking; Paternal: education

Summary: findings to date

- Higher maternal prenatal fish intake associated with
 - Improved visual memory at 6 months
 - Improved expressive language and visual motor function at 3 years
- · Opposite findings for blood Hg
- Estimates for fish and Hg each strengthened with mutual adjustment
- · No associations with blood n-3 PUFA
- Small numbers, young children





2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish - Proceedings / Page 234









Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

FDA Assessment of Net Effects on Neurodevelopment from Eating Commercial Fish during Pregnancy

Phil Spiller, U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Biosketch

Philip Spiller has been with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) since 1981. He spent the first nine years in the Office of Legislative Affairs in the Office of the Commissioner, becoming the Deputy to the Director of that office. In 1990, Mr. Spiller became a special assistant to the Commissioner of the FDA on seafood-related matters. In 1992, he became Special Assistant to the Director of FDA's newly formed Office of Seafood. His major responsibility involved development of the new preventive control program for seafood safety, known as Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP). Mr. Spiller became the Director of FDA's Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition in order to devote time to managing development of a quantitative assessment of the health effects of methylmercury in fish. That assessment was published as a draft in 2009 and then updated in June 2014. In recent years, he has served in a variety of "acting" positions in the Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition, including acting Director of the Office of Nutrition, Labeling, and Dietary Supplements. Mr. Spiller has a law degree from Boston College and an undergraduate degree from the University of Virginia.

Abstract

On June 10, 2014, the FDA issued a quantitative assessment that estimates effects from commercial fish consumption during pregnancy on the developing nervous system of the fetus. The assessment was originally intended to address the likelihood of harm to the fetus from methylmercury in those fish. However, research results in the past decade consistently report beneficial associations between fish consumption during pregnancy and fetal neurodevelopment even though the fish contain methylmercury. These results raise important questions about when fish consumption during pregnancy might be harmful and when it might be beneficial. The assessment attempts to address these questions by estimating the "net effects" that fish consumption can have on fetal neurodevelopment. "Net effects" contain both adverse contributions from methylmercury at U.S. levels of exposure plus beneficial contributions from fish, presumably from one or more nutrients in the fish. Among other things, the assessment modeled net effects from 47 individual commercial fish species and market types. Almost all species and market types are estimated to be net beneficial at relatively low levels of consumption, although the size of any net benefit is smaller than it otherwise would be due to methylmercury. This beneficial net effect increases with consumption until a peak benefit is reached. Consumption beyond that amount causes the net benefit to become smaller as exposure to methylmercury increases. If consumption is great enough, the net effects become adverse. This sequence of increasing benefit, followed by decreasing benefit, followed by adverse effects, is estimated to occur for most species of commercial fish. The implications for risk management are significant. It should be possible to advise pregnant women about how minimize risk from methylmercury and, at the same time, get the most benefit to neurodevelopment that fish could provide to their children.



SESSION 5: HEALTH BENR	EFITS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
FDA Assessment of Net Effects on Neu	rodevelopment from Eating Commercial Fish
During Pregr	nancy – Phil Spiller
V.S. Food and Drug Administration www.fda.gov Protecting and Protocking Public Health	U.S. Food and Drug Administration www.fda.gov Protecting and Promoting Public Health
These Findings Lead Us (Eventually) To Think "Net Effects"	Fast Forward: July 2014 European Food Safety Agency Opinion
Net Effects Are:	
 <u>The difference between</u> eating fish during pregnancy and eating no fish (in terms of neurodevelopment). 	 "Scientific Opinion on the Health Benefits of Seafood (fish and shellfish) Consumption in Relation to Health Risks Associated with Methylmercury"
 <u>The sum of</u> Adverse effects from MeHg independent of any beneficial effect from fish; and Beneficial effects independent of any adverse effect from MeHg. 	 <u>Conclusion</u>: up to 3-4 servings per week during pregnancy has been associated with better functional outcomes of neurodevelopment in children compared to no consumption of seafood.
7	8
U.S. Food and Drug Administration www.ida.gov Protecting and Pronoting Public Health	U.S. Food and Drug Administration www.fda.gov Wrotecting and Promoting Public Health
New Questions for Us:	Our "Net Effects" Approach
 When are commercial fish during pregnancy beneficial to neurodevelopment and when are they adverse? When effects are beneficial, how big are they? When adverse, how big are the deficits? To address these questions, we needed a new approach that would estimate overall, "net" effects from eating fish. 	 Estimate dose-response function(s) for adverse effects on cognitive development from MeHg, independent of any benefit; Estimate D/R function(s) for beneficial effects on cognitive development (presumably from one or more nutrients), independent of MeHg.
9	 Calculate D/R function(s) for net effects (adverse and beneficial effects added together).
U.S. Food and Drug Administration www.fda.gov Protecting and Premoting Public Health	U.S. Food and Drug Administration Protecting and Promoting Public Health www.fda.gov
Key Modeling Decisions	Key Modeling Decisions (2)
 Assess specific N/D endpoints for which we can model both beneficial and adverse D/R's for that endpoint. So far: IQ, early age verbal development; later age verbal development 	 MeHg: D/R's for MeHg are linear and indefinite; Probably no threshold. Adverse effects start at lowest exposure;
 Conduct both population level modeling and species-by- species modeling (47 species); 	 Benefits: D/R's for beneficial effects are non-linear and reach a plateau; Benefits don't start at lowest possible consumption. Need circa 2 oz/wk for beneficial effect to begin. Model both (a) "fish;" and (b) omega-3 fatty acids as sole source.
	12


Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved along to the next speaker on this panel.

Risk-Benefit of Consuming Lake Erie Fish

Satyendra Bhavsar, Ontario Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change

Biosketch

Dr. Satyendra Bhavsar is a Research Scientist with the Fish Contaminant Monitoring Program of the Ontario Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change. He represents the Ministry at various provincial, national, and international committees on contaminants. He is a Professional Engineer and received his Ph.D. in Chemical Engineering and Environmental Engineering from the University of Toronto. Dr. Bhavsar's research focuses on studying contaminant fate, transport, food web dynamics, and exposure to humans through fish consumption. The overarching goal of his work is to guide policies and management actions regarding contaminants in the environment, in general, and for safe human consumption of fish, in specific.

Abstract

Fish consumption is promoted as a healthy way to obtain essential fatty acids in the diet, yet the risk of ingesting harmful contaminants remains a concern. At present, the risks and benefits of consuming fish from the Great Lakes, which sustain important commercial and recreational fisheries, are unclear. We report the concentration of contaminants and beneficial fatty acids in 146 skinless fillets of 15 fish species from Lake Erie and assess whether recommended fatty acid dietary requirements can be met by safe fish consumption. A simulated consumption advisory (maximum recommended number of meals per month) was calculated for each sample, and used to calculate the maximum amount of beneficial fatty acids (EPA+DHA) that would be consumed if the advisory was followed. These beneficial fatty acids are n-3 eicosapentaenoic acid (EPA) and n-3 docosahexaenoic acid (DHA). Large, fatty species had the highest EPA+DHA content, but had the most restrictive advisories due to high polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) concentrations. To minimize contaminant exposure (e.g., PCBs) while maximizing EPA+DHA intake, consumers should consider small lake whitefish and lake trout, small panfish species, and/or walleye. While very few species had EPA+DHA content sufficient to safely meet the highest dietary guidelines, consumption of certain Lake Erie fish, within the limits of our simulated fish consumption advisories, can be a good supplemental source of beneficial fatty acids.









Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved along to the next speaker on this panel.

Updated Approach for Balancing the Risks and Benefits of Fish Consumption on Neurodevelopmental Endpoints

Gary Ginsberg, Connecticut Department of Public Health

Biosketch

Dr. Gary Ginsberg is a toxicologist at the Connecticut Department of Public Health, where he is the lead toxicologist on site risk assessments for remedial programs and evaluation of contaminants in consumer products, the built environment, food products (including fish), and a variety of other media and exposure sources. Dr. Ginsberg is adjunct faculty at the Yale School of Public Health and is assistant professor of community medicine at the University of Connecticut Health Center campus. He has served on a number of U.S. Environmental Protection Agency advisory committees and National Academy of Science panels. His research on fish contaminants has led to two peer reviewed publications, a 2000 paper on single meal fish limits, and a 2009 risk-benefit analysis of fish consumption. He is involved with establishing the scientific basis for Connecticut's fish consumption advisory program and assists with development of risk communication materials in this area.

Abstract

A previous risk/benefit modeling approach (Ginsberg and Toal 2009) predicted net neurodevelopmental risk for 9 of 16 commonly eaten fish species. However, epidemiological studies suggest that fish consumption during pregnancy, on average, leads to improved neurodevelopment. This suggests that the beneficial nutrients in fish may offset the adverse effects of mercury to produce a net benefit in the average case. We revisited our risk/benefit model by running it against a composite marketbasket fish meal to represent average consumption of mercury and Omega 3 fatty acids. This result was calibrated against the net neurodevelopmental benefit (visual recognition memory - VRM) per fish meal reported by Oken et. al. (2005). This calibrated model was then compared to other fish risk/benefit models that use IQ as an endpoint (e.g., FAO/WHO 2010; Zeilmaker et, al. 2013). The calibrated model estimated greater benefit for low mercury species but greater risk for high mercury species than the other models. With respect to a commonly eaten high mercury fish, swordfish, the calibrated model yielded risks that are supportive of current fish advisories that guide against consumption of this species during pregnancy while the other models predicted net neurodevelopmental benefits. The calibrated model was then used as the basis for a proposed 3-step framework for setting fish consumption advisories as follows: 1) set initial consumption level based upon mercury reference dose, 2) adjust consumption upward if risk/benefit model indicates a net neurodevelopmental benefit, 3) cap fish consumption based upon saturation of Omega 3 benefit. The implications of this approach for six species are used to illustrate the framework.









Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved directly into the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

General Question and Answer Session

- *Comment:* The graph in the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) presentation with the blue curve was the best information presented today. Our goal should be to work toward a public health policy to encourage health benefits by guiding people to eat fish low in mercury and high in Omega 3. (Groth)
- *Q.* This question was for Dariush Mozaffarian. There is a lot of research on genetic variability. Is there any evidence regarding genetic variability for Omega 3 and cardiac benefits? (Groth)
- A. There is some evidence. However, doing research on genetic variability and dietary interactions would require a large group of people. (Mozaffarian)
- Q. He has three points: 1) If you do analyses assuming the nutritional benefits and risk effects are linear, you will not get good estimates of nutritional effects or mercury effects—instead, this may be a multivariate effect; 2) If you have a plateau, you will need different amounts of fish to get to the plateau, depending on the fish species; and 3) When people think of controlled studies, they tend to think of clinical trials where you give a drug to a population that you already know is deficient. (Carrington)
- A. Thank you for these comments. If you are operating on the linear part of a curve, you need to consider that. (Stern)
- A. The ratio is very simplistic and should be subject to further analysis. (Ginsberg)
- A. The dose-response was only for heart disease death. Reducing heart disease death is where most of the cardiac benefit from fish consumption seems to occur. Fish consumption may also have health benefits for some other endpoints such as anger and depression. (Mozaffarian)
- *Q.* This question was for Dariush Mozaffarian. You pointed to the Wennberg study. Did you intentionally exclude the EURAMIC study? (Stern)
- A. The EURAMIC study was a retrospective case-control study, which is a study design with known disadvantages. It was a retrospective study of survivors of heart attacks. (Mozaffarian)
- Q. He published a paper with Joanna Burger on health benefits. They found there was no increase of health benefit on the plateau. At over five fish meals per week, you would get harm. There was no threshold for toxicity but no threshold for benefit either. Can you add the beneficial fatty acids EPA (n-3 eicosapentaenoic acid)and DHA (n-3 docosahexaenoic acid)together as the same benefit? The graph in FDA's presentation with the blue curve should show where you should get a beneficial net benefit before harm starts. (Gochfeld)
- A. FDA used a sigmoidal slope assuming there was a threshold. Also their empirical data set supported that assumption, specifically the Alspac data set. For these two reasons, FDA decided to model it that way. This approach does increase the percentage of the population with a net adverse impact, but that is only a small percentage increase. (Spiller)

- A. As FDA's risk assessment modeler, he clarified that FDA actually used two models. The sigmoidal slope was only one modeling approach. (Carrington)
- A. Thank you for providing clarification on FDA's modeling approach. I always bring my risk assessor when I make a presentation. (Spiller)
- Q. In Alaska, they decided that consuming fish seems to be associated with so many cardiovascular and other health benefits, that those benefits may sometimes be higher than the adverse effect of mercury. Although Alaska has a small population overall, 17% are Native Americans who are susceptible to loss of health benefits from eating fish. Subsistence fishing is a major part of the diet of many Native Americans, who may potentially be consuming large amounts of fish and thus subject to losing significant health benefits if they reduce fish consumption. How do we address cardiovascular benefits when updating fish consumption advisories? Do we develop endpoints based on clinically significant results (like drug trials) or just based on statistical effects? (Hamade)
- A. The State of California published a paper with a policy regarding the drop in IQ from neurotoxicity effects that was considered a de minimis value. When you look at that de minimis value, the IQ drop with mercury exposure is significant by comparison. (Ginsberg)
- A. We could consider a semi-quantitative approach to provide more specific advice to consumers. (Bhavsar)
- Q. He liked the graph in FDA's presentation with the blue curve, but he questioned whether selenium would affect the slope. The slope of the net benefits may vary based on whether people might have poor or rich selenium sources. (Ralston)
- A. The slide in his presentation was very generalized. FDA used fish very high in mercury and fish very low in mercury. FDA did not take selenium into account. You need to look at FDA's report in the appendix for the details and to see how the slopes vary among different fish species in a significant way. (Spiller)
- *Q.* This question was for Gary Ginsberg. For Connecticut's new risk/benefit model, it seemed that there was a lot of "curve fitting." Given the uncertainty, why did you adjust risk and benefit slopes instead of diet? (Stern)
- A. Their results matched Dr. Emily Oken's results closely. Because he thought they were close to being on target, they adjusted slopes instead of diet. (Ginsberg)
- Q. The fish advisories in New York are very complicated and vary by region, etc. They also try to steer people to choosing fish with low mercury concentrations and low concentrations of contaminants in lipids. However, one of the key messages that people actually get from New York's advice is the "trimming and skinning" message. People say they understand the message in New York's fish advice that if they remove all the fat and skin from fish that they will reduce

their exposure to contaminants. If people are removing all the fat and all the skin from fish, will they get beneficial fatty acids? (Mukasa)

- A. He gets this question on a regular basis. Their management wants to simplify their fish advisories in Ontario instead of issuing advisories individually lake-by-lake. For any two different lakes, the fish advisory can be very different. All of the data in his presentation were for skin-removed fillets. There is a possibility of losing some of the Omega 3 benefit, but the remaining fillet has enough DHA to meet basic dietary guidelines. (Bhavsar)
- A. In terms of endpoints, his work on the updated risk/benefit model in Connecticut was more about mercury and neurodevelopment. Mercury contamination will be in the fillet, so he would say remove the skin but keep the fat in fish advice about mercury. For polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) contamination, he would say definitely trim the fat to reduce PCB exposure. (Ginsberg)
- *Comment:* In New York's fish advice, it is the visual message about "trimming and skinning" fish that helps make it a "take home" message for people. (Mukasa)

Comment: We need more research. (Brodberg)

A. We are trying to brainstorm on how to craft the best message that people will understand and remember. We advise people to remove the skin from fish. The Great Lakes areas have PCBs, so for those locations it may be best to remove the fat from fish. (Bhavsar)

SECTION II-G SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC

Introduction

Moderator:

Barbara Knuth, Cornell University, Department of Natural Resources

Biosketch

Dr. Barbara Knuth is Vice Provost and Dean of the Graduate School at Cornell University. She is also a Professor of Natural Resource Policy and Associate Director of the Human Dimensions Research Unit in the Department of Natural Resources. Dr. Knuth's research focuses on the human dimensions of fisheries and wildlife management and policy, and she is known particularly for her work on risk perception, communication, and management associated with chemical contaminants in fish. She has served on National Academy of Sciences and Institute of Medicine committees, including those focused on improving the collection, management, and use of marine fisheries data and recreational fisheries survey methods, and on dioxins in the food supply. She served on the Ocean Studies Board of the National Research Council (NRC) and on the NRC Committee on the Effects of the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill on Ecosystem Services in the Gulf of Mexico. Dr. Knuth has served on numerous scientific panels and advisory boards, including the international Board of Technical Experts of the Great Lakes Fishery Commission, and the Great Lakes Science Advisory Board of the International Joint Commission. She is a Past-President of the American Fisheries Society, and served as Vice President of the Executive Board of the World Council of Fisheries Societies.

Presentations

Dissemination of Information about FDA's Seafood-Associated Rhabdomyolysis, Puffer Fish Poisoning and Ciguatera Fish Poisoning Research Project *Karen Swajian, U.S. Food and Drug Administration*

Consumer Understanding of the Benefits and Risks of Fish Consumption During Pregnancy *Amy Lando, U.S. Food and Drug Administration*

Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to Increase Consumer Knowledge *Mario Teisl, University of Maine*

Communicating Fish Advisory Information to Women of Childbearing Age *Nancy Connelly, Cornell University*

Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages Bruce Lauber, Cornell University

Fish Advisory Outreach to Urban and Rural Alaska Stakeholders *Ali Hamade, Alaska Section of Epidemiology* Engaging Healthcare in Environmental Exposure Risk Reduction Michael Hatcher, U.S. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry

Fish Consumption for Clinicians: Increasing Knowledge of the Risks and Benefits of Fish and Evaluating Clinical Screening for Mercury *Susan Buchanan, University of Illinois – Chicago*

Communicating Information to Reduce Mercury Exposures in Women of Childbearing Age *Pat McCann, Minnesota Department of Health*

Dissemination of Information about FDA's Seafood-Associated Rhabdomyolysis, Puffer Fish Poisoning and Ciguatera Fish Poisoning Research Project

Karen Swajian, U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Biosketch

Karen A. Swajian has worked with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) as a Consumer Safety Officer (CSO) in the Seafood Processing and Technology Policy Branch, Division of Seafood Safety, Office of Food Safety since 2008. Ms. Swajian is subject matter expert for natural marine toxins as well as allergenic and food intolerance substances. As such she oversees, and writes policy and guidance to industry regarding natural marine toxins in finfish. She also works with the International Affairs Staff at the Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition (CFSAN) auditing Foreign Competent Authorities for Comparability. Prior to August 2008, Ms. Swajian was employed as a CSO with the CFSAN Office of Compliance / Compliance Information Branch and Field Programs Branch. She is also a rehire to FDA previously being employed from 2001-2003 working in the Office of Compliance with allergens as her primary responsibility in the Field Programs Branch. Ms. Swajian graduated from Mount Ida College with a B.S. in Veterinary Technology. She received a M.S. in Clinical Laboratory Science with a major in Microbiology and a minor in Adult Education from the University of Rhode Island. She has worked as a clinical microbiologist at Tufts University School of Veterinary Medicine and Faulkner Hospital. She has worked in industrial microbiology at CASCO-NERL Diagnostics. Ms. Swajian comes from academia as well having taught Veterinary Microbiology at the graduate and undergraduate level with Tufts University and Mount Ida College, respectively. She has also taught Honors Chemistry, Algebra II Honors, Analysis, General Biology, and Advanced Placement Biology at the secondary level. Ms. Swajian has also worked in the dairy industry as the Regional Quality Systems Specialist with Dean Foods where she conducted system audits of the regional dairies, their co-packers and suppliers as well as organized and oversaw customer audits.

Abstract

FDA is undertaking a research project to identify the causative agent of seafood-associated Rhabdomyolysis (sometimes referred to as Haff disease), frequently associated with buffalo fish, as well as collecting epidemiological and meal remnants pertaining to puffer fish poisoning and ciguatera fish poisoning. FDA is including federal agencies as well as state and local officials and other stakeholders in our communications to ensure, among other items, cooperation with the dissemination of information to enable us to reduce future occurrences of these illnesses, and cooperation with acquiring samples and epidemiological information from the health care providers and patients directly involved. This presentation will discuss the outreach developed to assist FDA with this endeavor.





- Q. He has never seen Haff disease and rarely sees ciguatera fish poisoning cases at his clinic. However, he often sees scombroid food poisoning or toxin cases, almost every year. Why isn't FDA looking at scombroid toxin? Is it too common for FDA's agenda? (Gochfeld)
- A. Scombroid toxin is associated with decomposition or decayed fish. Because scombroid is not associated with a specific toxin, FDA is not looking at it.
- Q. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has a Foodborne Outbreak Online Database where they list some of the toxins that FDA is looking at. This database is part of CDC's National Outbreak Reporting System (NORS). How much has FDA used this CDC database and how often does FDA notify CDC about outbreaks or illnesses that are reported to FDA? (Fisher)
- A. FDA has a CDC liaison, who will inform CDC about an outbreak or illness if it reaches the level where CDC needs to be notified. FDA has worked with their CDC liaison on this research project as well.
- *Q.* The CDC database reports even to the level of one person or outcome. What level of outbreak requires reporting to CDC? (Fisher)
- A. For Haff disease or puffer fish poisoning or ciguatera fish poisoning, FDA considers that one person is an illness outbreak because these are illnesses specifically related to food.
- *Q.* It would be interesting to look at the CDC database and NORS system to see if it includes any of the illnesses that are part of FDA's research project. (Fisher)
- A. Karen Swajian agreed that FDA should look at the CDC database.

Consumer Understanding of the Benefits and Risks of Fish Consumption During Pregnancy

Amy Lando, U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Biosketch

Amy M. Lando has been a member of the Consumer Studies team at the Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition, U.S. Food and Drug Administration since 2001. She attended Duke University where she received a B.A. in Public Policy with a minor in Chemistry. Upon graduation from Duke University, Ms. Lando attended Georgetown University and completed her Master's in Public Policy with an emphasis on food and nutrition policy. Ms. Lando is the project director of the Food Safety Survey, a national telephone survey of consumers' food safety attitudes and behaviors. She has worked on a number of research projects investigating how consumers understand risk and benefit messaging about fish consumption.

Abstract

Fish consumption during pregnancy is one important area of dietary advice; yet, the message is not simple or easy to communicate because it involves both risks and benefits. The federal government first issued national consumption advice to minimize the risk to the developing fetus from methylmercury in fish in the 1990s. This advice was updated in 2001 and again in 2004 and extends to protecting young children as well as the fetus from harm from methylmercury. Since 2004, a significant body of research indicates that fish consumption during pregnancy can benefit fetal neurodevelopment even though the fish contain methylmercury. Consistent with this approach, the Dietary Guidelines for Americans, 2010 recommends that to optimize the health benefits associated with lower methylmercury seafood, pregnant and breastfeeding women consume 8 to 12 ounces/week of such seafood. Overall, the literature suggests that consumers, including pregnant women, are generally aware of problems related to mercury contamination in fish, but many do not know the specifics of the advice. Consumption data suggests that all women, including pregnant and postpartum women, are eating less than the recommended amounts of fish and shellfish. In the summer of 2014, FDA conducted a series of 12 focus groups with pregnant and postpartum women and women who may become pregnant to learn about their understanding of the risks and benefits of eating fish and their fish consumption habits. Preliminary results of these focus groups will be discussed in the presentation.









- Q. He wanted to call attention to what Dr. Emily Oken said yesterday that women are confused by so many different messages from different and often credible sources. He thinks the federal government has a unique opportunity now to set a high standard for proper and consistent messages about risks of fish consumption. Since the FDA message published recently, two other groups have published different messages. How can we all get on the same page? Women are the most confused about what fish they should choose for consumption. (Groth)
- A. The moderator mentioned that this was a great comment that could be discussed further later in this session, instead of a question to answer now.

Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to Increase Consumer Knowledge

Mario Teisl, University of Maine

Biosketch

Dr. Mario Teisl is a Professor and Director of the School of Economics, University of Maine. He received his Ph.D. in Agricultural and Resource Economics from the University of Maryland. Dr. Teisl has years of experience examining people's knowledge, practices, and attitudes related to nutrition, food and water safety, and health information. His health-related work has been funded by the U.S. and Maine Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA), the U.S. Department of Agriculture, and the National Science Foundation. In 2006, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention presented him with the S. Teutsch Prevention Effectiveness Program Appreciation Award. Before his current position at the University of Maine, Mario was employed in FDA's Consumer Studies Branch. He also served as Chair of the Food Safety and Nutrition Section, American Agricultural Economists Association.

Abstract

Humans exposed to methylmercury (MeHg) can suffer from adverse neurological impacts. Because eating fish is the primary mechanism of MeHg exposure, federal and state agencies issue fish consumption advisories to inform the public about the risks of eating contaminated fish. However, fish is also a good source of Omega 3 fish oils that promote infants' neurological development. An advisory's purpose is to provide information so consumers can make better choices; however, the difficulty in communicating both the risks and benefits of eating fish leads readers of advisories to over-restrict their fish consumption. In evaluating the effectiveness of Maine's fish advisory, we find it successfully increased women's knowledge of both the benefits and risks of consuming fish while pregnant. It also increased their ability to differentiate fish by their MeHg content, knowledge of both low and high-MeHg fish, and knowledge of detailed attributes of seemingly substitutable goods, such as white and light tuna. Non-readers could not identify fish that provide health benefits like Omega 3 fatty acids or health risks like MeHg. Readers increased ability to make substitutions to minimize risk while maintaining the benefits of eating fish suggests the advisory may reduce MeHg-related health risks while avoiding the drop in fish consumption shown in other studies.



SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to Increase Consumer Knowledge – Mario Teisl



SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to Increase



SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC

Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to Increase Consumer Knowledge – Mario Teisl

Which fish are low in mercury?			
	R	N	W
Fresh Salmon (TRUE)	58.4	33.3***	
Pre-Packaged Salmon (TRUE)	32.2	17.9***	Sh
Fish Sticks or Sandwiches (TRUE)	32.5	20.7***	Fis
Swordfish (FALSE)	2.1	2.5	Tile
Atlantic Mackerel (TRUE)	8.4	5.5	Sw
Light Pre-Packed tuna (TRUE)	50.4	29.4***	Kir
White Pre-Packed Tuna (FALSE)	19.6	17.7	Pre
Don't Know	23.1	48 2***	Do

New preliminary results on changes in consumption

Which should you avoid?

	R	N
Shark (TRUE)	86.8	55.5***
Fish Sticks/Sandwiches (FALSE)	10.1	10.0
Tilefish (TRUE)	62.8	39.0***
Swordfish (TRUE)	84.4	54.7***
Haddock (FALSE)	2.1	6.9***
King Mackerel (TRUE)	70.5	46.7***
Pre-Packaged Salmon (FALSE)	12.2	15.7
Don't Know	11.5	39.8***

Eating change due to pregnancy?

	Pre		During		Post	
	R	N	R	N	R	Ν
% eating fish	95.8	82.7***	92.0	73.7***	92.0	74.4***
Pre-during			*	***		
Pre-post					*	***

Of eaters, how did the amount of fish change?

	Pre-during	
	R	Ν
Ate less	44.1	50.7
Same	45.7	42.0
Ate more	10.2	7.4

Why ate less?

	Pre-during	
	R	N
Fish taste worse while pregnant	19.7	19.7
Some fish are unhealthy for me	25.8	25.4
Some fish are unhealthy for baby	66.7	67.4
Some fish are high in mercury	69.1	73.6

SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC

Improving Communication of Fish Advisories: Providing Benefits and Risk Information to Increase Consumer Knowledge – Mario Teisl

Why ate more?

	Pre-during	
	R	N
Fish taste better while pregnant	39.3	35.8
Some fish are healthy for me	60.7	25.8***
Some fish are a healthy for baby	71.4	32.3***
O-3s important during pregnancy	71.4	45.2**
Fish is a lean protein	42.8	32.3

Change in other eating

	Pre-during		
	R	N	
Eat low-mercury fish	9.8**	0.9	
Fish high in O-3	4.0	-5.8**	
O-3 supplements	0.3	-0.7	
Herbal supplements	-4.0*	-1.2	
Prenatals with O-3	26.2***	25.2***	
Multi. Vits with O-3	-6.5***	-5.0***	
Foods with O-3	5.9	1.3	
Lean protein	-1.8	-0.5	

A better sequel: what we saw

- Well-designed advisories can educate at-risk groups about healthy decisions and induce appropriate changes
 - OIncreased knowledge
 - OIncreased consumption of low-mercury, high-Omega 3 fish (pre-packaged salmon)
 - ODecreased consumption of high-mercury "white" tuna

Change in meals/month

	Pre-	during	Pre-Post		
	R	N	R	N	
Cod	-0.25	-0.26	-0.15	-0.18	
White tuna	-0.65	-0.73	-0.38	-0.49	
Light tuna	0.04	-0.10	0.08	-0.06	
Packed salmon	0.08	-0.09***	0.06	-0.04**	
Fresh salmon	-0.12	-0.25**	-0.16	-0.16	
Shrimp	-0.26	-0.36	-0.13	-0.25*	

A better sequel: what we did

• Emphasis on:

- OCommercial fish
- OPre-packaged salmon as substitute for "white" tuna
- OBenefits of fish consumption (Omega 3)

ODetailed information on:

- OLow-mercury & high-Omega 3 fish
- Fish to completely avoid during pregnancy



- Q. Why did you choose the term "white tuna" instead of "albacore"? (Murphy)
- A. Their survey said both "white" or "albacore" tuna, with "albacore" in parenthesis. He had to shorten his slides so he just had "white tuna" on his slide.

Communicating Fish Advisory Information to Women of Childbearing Age

Nancy Connelly, Cornell University

Biosketch

Nancy A. Connelly (M.S., Natural Resources, Cornell University) is a research specialist in the Human Dimensions Research Unit at Cornell University, with over 30 years of experience conducting primarily applied research involving different types of recreationists in New York and throughout the Northeast and Great Lakes regions. She began work on the topic of angler awareness of fish consumption advisories back in the early 1990s with Dr. Barbara Knuth. Her risk communication research has continued, and now includes work with the Great Lakes Consortium for Fish Advisories focusing on both anglers and women of childbearing age.

Abstract

Women of childbearing age have been identified from the beginning as a special audience for fish consumption advisories because of the health risks to unborn and breastfeeding children. Over time, research has shown both important health risks and benefits that this group of women need to consider when making decisions about fish consumption. Communicating this complex information is a challenge for state, federal, and tribal agencies and organizations. This presentation will summarize the current literature pertaining to risk communication with women of childbearing age, insights from practitioners working in the Great Lakes states, and the results of recent research conducted with women of childbearing age and new mothers at Cornell University.




SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Communicating Fish Advisory Information to Women of Childbearing Age – Nancy Connelly

Methods

• Two-parts

30% overall

range: 25-33%

875 useable responses

range: 236-313 per state

- Mail survey of new mothers in MN, WI, and PA
 - Factors associated with suppressed consumption
 - 1,000 women per state
 - Non-respondent telephone follow-up (n=130)
- Focus groups with WCBA throughout Great Lakes region
 - Exposure to information about health benefits and risks
 Test messages intended to increase consumption of low-risk fish

Mail Survey Response Rate

Six focus groups (3 per topic, 64 participants)

Heath and Suffi Heath and Suffi Heath and Nutritio Pensylvania Weath and Mutrition atoms Heath and Nutrition atoms Weath and Mutrition atoms Mutrition atoms Weath and Mutrition atoms Weath and Mutrition atoms Mutrition

Changes in Fish Consumption

Changes in consumption	During pregnancy	After pregnancy
Did not eat before, during, or after	13	13
Ate more	7	30
Ate the same	29	44
Ate less	45	11
Stopped eating	6	2

Fish Consumption During Pregnancy

Frequency of Meals	Percent
None	16
Less than 1 meal a month	22
1 to 3 meals a month	43
At least 1 meal per week	15
At least 2 meals per week	4

Non-respondent Telephone Follow-Non-respondent Telephone Follow-up

- Respondents more likely to have received information about eating purchased fish
- Respondents more likely to have changed their fish consumption and eaten less fish during pregnancy
- Respondents more likely to have eaten fish during pregnancy



SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Communicating Fish Advisory Information to Women of Childbearing Age – Nancy Connelly

Relationship Between Receiving Information During Pregnancy and Changing Consumption

Change in consumption	Received spo inforn	rt-caught fish nation	Received pu inform	rchased fish nation
	No	Yes	No	Yes
Did not eat before, during, or after	16	7	25	5
Ate more	8	6	5	8
Ate the same	31	29	32	28
Ate less	38	53	30	53
Stopped eating	7	5	8	6

Received Information about Fish Consumption

When was information received?	Sport-caught fish information	Purchased fish information
Before I got pregnant	27	37
During pregnancy	45	66
After giving birth	7	11
At some point	61	77

Focus Group Results

Exposure to Information about Health Benefits and Risks

- Many women described themselves as having some information but little depth of understanding
- Had more access to information and paid more attention when pregnant
- Remembered only a few specific messages
- Most commonly remembered message was to avoid
 or minimize consumption

Correlations with Education

- More educated women (compared to less educated women):
 - Ate more fish during pregnancy, BUT
 - Were more likely to eat less during pregnancy than before, AND
 - Were more likely to say they had received information

Belief Statements with Strongest Correlations with Intention to Follow the Recommendations

- Eating fish when I am pregnant is good for my baby
- I received enough information to decide what types and how much fish to eat during pregnancy

Focus Group Results Message Testing

- Be succinct
- Describe positive characteristics of fish that were not shared by many other foods
- Focus on health benefits that could be attributed to omega-3 fatty acids
- Describe relevance to women and their life circumstances



Note: No questions were asked.

Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages

Bruce Lauber, Cornell University

Biosketch

Dr. Bruce Lauber is a Senior Research Associate with the Human Dimensions Research Unit in the Department of Natural Resources at Cornell University, where he has worked as a researcher for the last 18 years. He received his B.A. in Chemistry from Williams College in 1982, his M.S. in Wildlife Management from the University of Maine in 1991, and his Ph.D. in Natural Resources in 1996. Dr. Lauber has worked closely with the Great Lakes Consortium for Fish Consumption Advisories since 2010 on a series of social science studies designed to contribute to more effective advisories.

Abstract

Urban anglers have been identified by many states as a target audience for fish consumption advisories because they are potentially at greater risk from consuming contaminated fish. We studied the characteristics of urban anglers in the Great Lakes region. Between 2011 and 2013, we conducted a series of six focus groups of Great Lakes urban anglers and a survey of licensed anglers living in Great Lakes states. We will describe the demographic characteristics and fish consumption patterns of Great Lakes urban anglers, discuss factors that influence their fish consumption, and identify advisory characteristics that have the potential to increase their adherence to fish consumption advisories. The results suggest ways to improve advisories targeting urban anglers.

SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages – Bruce Lauber

Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages T. Bruce Lauber, Nancy A. Connelly, Jeff Niederdeppe, and Barbara A. Knuth

Urban Anglers

- Subpopulation that may be:
 - Exposed to contaminants
 - Lower income
 - Less educated
 - Immigrant and non-English speaking

Objectives

To identify:

- Characteristics of urban anglers
- Fish consumption patterns
- Factors influencing fish consumption
- Their response to advisory information

Methods

- Mail survey
 - 8,001 licensed anglers
 - Great Lakes states (except Ohio)
 - 24% response rate
 - Telephone follow-up survey of 399 nonrespondents

Methods continued

Focus groups

- Open-ended questions
- 7 groups
- Buffalo, NY; Erie, PA (2); Flint, MI
- Milwaukee, WI; Rochester, NY; Toledo, OH
- 9 to 20 individuals per group
- Two-hour session
- Recorded and transcribed
- Transcripts coded

Characteristics of Urban Anglers

SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages - Bruce Lauber **Primary Residence** Income Urban Suburban Rural Residence **Percent of Respondents** 15% 6% 11% <\$25,000 24% 20% 32% \$25,000-\$49,999 Urban 15% \$50,000-\$99,999 42% 42% 41% Suburban 38% 14% \$100,000-\$199,999 17% 27% 2% Rural 48% 3% 5% \$200,000 or more Education Race: % White Urban Suburban Rural • 92% urban High School 33% 19% 32% • 94% suburban or Less • 97% rural Some College 34% 39% 44% Collegeor 33% 42% 24% • 86% nationally More **Urban Anglers' Fish Fishing and Fish Consumption** Consumption • 89% fished 68% ate sport-caught fish • 5.4 meals/year • 75% ate purchased fish • 12.5 meals/year • Less than suburban (17.1 meals) • 7% ate fish more than once a week

Species	Percentage	
Tuna (purchased)	69%	Spacing Foton Mara than Suburb
Salmon (purchased)	55%	species caten wore than suburba
Bluegill	50%	Anglers
Walleye	47%	
Crappie	35%	• Bluegin (50% vs. 36%)
Bass	26%	• Crappie (35% vs. 25%)
Yellow Perch	24%	• Catfish (18% vs. 12%)
Pike	22%	
Salmon (sport caught)	22%	
Catfish	18%	
Trout	13%	
Lake Trout	11 %	
Swordfish (purchased)	9%	
vordfish (9% vs. 14%)		Anglers • Bass (26% vs. 34%)
vordfish (9% vs. 14%)		Anglers • Bass (26% vs. 34%)
ordfish (9% vs. 14%)		Anglers • Bass (26% vs. 34%)
ordfish (9% vs. 14%)		Anglers • Bass (26% vs. 34%) Need for Food
actors Influe	ncing Fish	Anglers • Bass (26% vs. 34%) Need for Food • R: I know that there are a couple down there right now the that is their only means of food that fish out of that rive They don't have a choice whether it's healthy or good foo them or not. That's what they're doing to survive.

SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages – Bruce Lauber

Diverse Fish Consumption Norms

• R: The Asian people, they eat a lot of fish, you know. Any type of fish they prepare differently, different seasoning. They can grill, fry, make soup... So they eat a lot more fish... They make it taste good... Any type of fish they catch, they eat.

Access to Fishing Sites

• R: Right down here where the dam's at... That's the only place really that I can take them fishing because everywhere else, they don't have access to the water.

Health Risks and Benefits

- Both excessive consumption and unnecessary restrictions
- Misconceptions about judging fish safety

Response to Advisories

Advisory Awareness

- 42% aware of specific advice
- 54% generally or vaguely aware
- 5% not at all aware

Response to Advisory Information

- · Lack of awareness of available information
- Desired information on which fish are safe

SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Urban Anglers' Fish Consumption and Response to Advisory Messages – Bruce Lauber

Response

• R: I would like them to tell me: "Don't eat carp. Don't eat ... bullhead out of here. But bass are okay, or bluegills are okay..." Instead they just say "Don't eat this."

Preferred Messages

- Succinct
- Clear description of health outcomes
- Information about things they can't observe
- Statements of widespread relevance

Conclusions

• Urban anglers have many similarities to other licensed anglers, but subpopulation may be:

- Lower income, less educated, and immigrant populations
- More dependent on fish they catch for food
- Hard to reach effectively
- Health risks/benefits and advisory messages can be misunderstood

Recommendations

- Utilize community-based communication programs
- Communicate risk-reduction strategies
- Incorporate positive advisory messages
- Target misconceptions
- Adopt preferred message characteristics
- List sources of additional information

- *Q.* What did they learn from the 399 non-respondents to the survey of licensed anglers living in the Great Lakes states? (Gochfeld)
- A. The non-respondents were less likely to go fishing, and were less aware of fish advisories, so they were less likely to have information to provide in the survey.
- Q. In South Carolina, no license is required for fishing with cane poles, which he understands is mostly fishing by lower income people. Also senior citizens are exempt from obtaining a fishing license in South Carolina. In the survey, did they consider that some states may exempt some people from fishing licenses? (Glover)
- A. For urban anglers, it is known that many people in urban areas will fish without a license. This is especially common with immigrant groups.

General Question and Answer Session

- Q. This question was for Bruce Lauber. A lot of fishing is recreational and intentionally catch-andrelease. Some people just enjoy fishing. The "eat more fish" message can conflict with fisheries management and conservation. People intentionally catch-and-release to put fish back into the water to protect the fishery resource and maintain the recreational opportunity. We need to consider other societal and government goals. (Richter)
- A. Some respondents in the survey and participants in the focus groups said they enjoy catch-and-release fishing. (Lauber)
- Q. This question was for Bruce Lauber. The National Rivers and Streams Assessment compared urban and non-urban rivers and streams for a range of contaminants, and found contaminants such as mercury and organics. Among the organics, PCBs, PBDE, and DDT were significantly elevated in urban locations. (Wathen)
- A. This is good information to follow up on. (Lauber)
- Q. Some women do not eat much fish because they do not know how to cook it. He wanted to ask Mario Teisl—Did providing recipes help? Also he wanted to ask Amy Lando and Nancy Connelly—Has this issue come up in the focus groups? (Groth)
- A. Recipes were provided to help incorporate fish in their diet. There is no data about whether providing recipes helped, but they did hear about this issue in their focus groups. (Teisl)
- Q. This question was for Bruce Lauber. They are doing surveys with anglers in North Carolina now, and are concerned about social desirability bias in their results. Although people will say they have the information and know about the fish advisory, when shown the fish advisory itself they say they have never seen it before. Has Cornell University encountered this issue in their research and, if so, how have they addressed it? (Bawden)
- A. They have seen this social desirability bias and are also concerned about this type of bias in the research on urban anglers in the Great Lakes states. In addition, they have information on specific beliefs related to advisories. (Lauber)
- A. A mail survey allows people to be more honest versus a face-to-face research setting, which can lead to this social desirability bias. (Connelly)
- *Q.* In research on women, we often look at women as one big homogenous group, but actually there are differences among women. Nancy Connelly's work separated women into those with lower and higher levels of education. Are you looking into disparities in activities and behavior among targeted groups of women? (Bawden)
- A. In New York, with the current diary survey, they have education and income as important variables. They hope to look at changes in behavior related to education and income. However,

because their sample is licensed anglers they cannot look at race or ethnicity although that would be important too. (Connelly)

- A. People that read advisories generally have higher education and income, and will access more sources of information. He only presented descriptive statistics in his PowerPoint presentation. For their published articles, in their regression analyses they controlled for education and the sources of other information that people got. It would be interesting to do additional segmentation of data. (Teisl)
- A. They did some segmentation for their focus groups. She cannot remember exactly, but she thinks the cut-off was some college versus no college. They have not had time to do the detailed analysis yet. (Lando)
- Q. Can anyone discuss how to expand the distribution of information to incorporate messages into more than printed materials, such as through websites or social media? For example, would the opportunity to have information on a smartphone help disseminate messages? Has anyone done that? (Murphy)
- A. CDC has brochure information on their website. He knows there is some discussion of a smartphone App for people to have something available at the grocery store when shopping. This App would help shoppers choose between high versus low mercury fish or high versus low Omega 3 fish. (Teisl)
- A. In her research results, the percentage of people who say they have looked at websites has increased over time. They expect to ask more questions about smartphones in future research. (Connelly)
- Q. This question was for Amy Lando. Given that the mean concentrations of mercury in purchased fish range by two orders of magnitude, how would that affect different advice for different types of fish with different amounts of mercury? She thinks different information needs to be provided for fish with different mercury levels. (McCann)
- A. This would be a good topic to bring to FDA's Risk Communication Advisory Committee meeting in November. (Lando)
- Q. Why aren't there more targeted programs to reach anglers who do not have fishing licenses? After you find out what they want to know or do not know, and later give information to them too they want it. Why not ask more about what people do with the information and how they are using it? We are not always researching the people with a lack of education who need to fish for food. She has used undergraduate students to distribute information on the river to these people. They are finding out what people know and do not know. People without licenses really want to know information. Their students had to read that information to the non-readers. (Burger)
- A. The panelists are all researchers who do not communicate with the public. Are there any others working on this issue of distributing information? (Knuth)

- A. Researchers need to think about this. (Lando)
- Q. This question was for Karen Swajian. Is she referring to the buffalo fish family? Also are you suggesting that people avoid them? (Michl)
- A. Yes, but FDA is not prepared yet to issue an advisory or to say do not eat buffalo fish, because FDA does not know what the toxin or causative agent is yet. FDA has the same situation with ciguatera fish poisoning, where they say avoid reefs with ciguatera but continue to fish. (Swajian)
- Q. When working with focus groups and using terms about tuna, why not use the verbiage that is on the cans of tuna purchased in the store? For example, "chunk light tuna" for "light" and "solid white tuna" for "albacore." Was there confusion among women in the focus groups about "light" tuna and the difference between water-packed versus oil-packed tuna? Do the health benefits differ? (Cunningham)
- A. Using the terminology on the tuna cans is a good idea to consider for future research. There was some confusion among the women in the focus groups about water-packed versus oil-packed tuna. She does not have an answer about whether there is any difference in health benefits. (Lando)
- Q. In New Jersey, for the North Bay Complex they issued a ban on crabs and have signs in seven different languages and also are using media campaigns. They found that using local community organizations is very helpful for getting the word out. They found that immigrants often get the opposite message that the government is trying to prevent them from fishing in order to save the fishery resource for rich people. (Gary Buchanan)
- A. They did not see that reaction from immigrants in his research, but that is a very interesting issue to consider in future research. (Teisl)

Comment: Getting out into the community more is a good point. (Knuth)

- Q. This conference has not focused on the nutritional and physiological benefits of Omega 3 to women and their own health. Fish consumption may especially benefit women when breastfeeding. The best source of Omega 3 for the baby is from the mother's brain. The Omega 3 goes from the mother's brain into the baby's brain. If all of the Omega 3 in the mother's brain is going to the baby, the mother is not getting health benefits from Omega 3. If we consider this, we might see less postpartum depression in the United States, which is less common in other countries. (Ralston)
- A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.
- Q. In Colorado, they have the QR code for smartphones on all of their new signs and materials. This QR code allows smartphone users to read their fish tissue website, which has the fish advisories and interactive maps for fishing areas. Also their website is Google-based so they have the ability to translate the advisories into any language that people need. (Richardson)

A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.

Fish Advisory Outreach to Urban and Rural Alaska Stakeholders

Ali Hamade, Alaska Section of Epidemiology

Biosketch

Dr. Ali Hamade currently serves as the Environmental Public Health Program Manager in the Alaska Section of Epidemiology. The program works with state, federal, and tribal partners to assess and educate about the health hazards of chemical exposure, and to develop intervention strategies to reduce or eliminate chemical exposure from air, water, soil, and food. Dr. Hamade received his Ph.D. in Environmental Toxicology from the University of California, Irvine. Subsequently, he performed air quality health effects research at Johns Hopkins University, where he also trained in the risk sciences. He then transitioned to work on human health risk assessment and hazard identification of chemical contaminants at a consulting company, before joining the State of Alaska in 2012. Since 2012, his work has included a collaborative Alaska state-wide effort to assess the potential risks associated with contaminants in Alaska seafood. Dr. Hamade has also provided health education and outreach about contaminants in fish at community meetings, to health care providers, and at conferences. He is a Diplomate of the American Board of Toxicology.

Abstract

Alaskans, particularly Alaska Natives, likely consume more fish per capita than most other U.S. populations. The Alaska Section of Epidemiology with members of an advisory board recently issued fish consumption guidelines that provide Alaskans, particularly women of childbearing age and children, with advice on fish consumption choices. These guidelines take a risk-benefit-based approach to fish consumption and health. In addition to mercury and persistent organic pollutants, since 2011, Alaskans have been concerned about the safety of consuming fish in the wake of the nuclear accident in Fukushima. The Alaska Section of Epidemiology is informing stakeholders of both the recent fish consumption guidelines and Fukushima-related updates via several channels. These channels include health care providers; environmental, tribal, and medical conferences; community visits; conference calls; and social media. This outreach is of paramount importance in Alaska as a large proportion of the population, particularly that including Alaska Natives, relies on fish and marine mammals for subsistence. This presentation will highlight past, current, and planned outreach efforts to inform Alaska stakeholders of fish advisories and other news related to contaminants in seafood.

SESSION 6: COMMUNICATIONS TO THE PUBLIC Fish Advisory Outreach to Urban and Rural Alaska Stakeholders – Ali Hamade





Fish Advisory Outreach to Urban and Rural Alaska Stakeholders

Ali Hamade Environmental Public Health Program Section of Epidemiology Division of Public Health

> September 24, 2014 EPA Forum on Contaminants in Fish

Alaska Fish Consumption Guidelines

- In 2014 updated the Acceptable Daily Intake for mercury in fish (Seychelles cohort)
 - 7,900+ fish monitoring data points
 - Review of recent studies on neurodevelopmental, diabetes, and cardiovascular endpoints
- Recognized the importance of fish for nutrition, economics, sports, culture, community, religion, and identity
- Large amounts of fish consumed by Alaskans

Message Considerations

- Guidelines are ONLY for children and women who are pregnant, or plan on becoming pregnant
- Stress benefits, but communicate some caution from small number of fish (*e.g.*, large halibut, shark)
- Communicate supporting programs
 - Hair mercury biomonitoring
 - Fish monitoring



Our Agreement: I will nourish your future generations as long as you protect mine.

Apayo Moore, Alaska Artist and Fisherwoman





Stakeholders

- Alaskans (native and non-native)
- Alaska Depts. of Health, Environmental Conservation, and Fish and Game; University of Alaska; US Fish and Wildlife Service
- Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium (ANTHC)
- Commercial fishers
- Alaska Seafood Marketing Institute, International Pacific Halibut Commission
- Health care providers and public health practitioners



2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish - Proceedings / Page 298







Note: There were no questions because the moderator asked that any questions be held until the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

Engaging Healthcare in Environmental Exposure Risk Reduction

Michael Hatcher, U.S. Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry

Biosketch

Not provided.

Abstract

Not provided.





Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved along to the next speaker on this panel.

Fish Consumption for Clinicians: Increasing Knowledge of the Risks and Benefits of Fish and Evaluating Clinical Screening for Mercury

Susan Buchanan, University of Illinois – Chicago

Biosketch

Dr. Susan Buchanan is Director of the Great Lakes Center for Children's Environmental Health Region 5 Pediatric Environmental Health Specialty Unit (PEHSU) at the University of Illinois at Chicago (UIC) School of Public Health. Dr. Buchanan is board certified in Family Medicine and Occupational and Environmental Medicine. She teaches occupational and environmental medicine including children's and reproductive environmental health topics in the UIC Family Medicine Department, School of Public Health, and Occupational Medicine Residency Program. Her research interests include the occupational health of vulnerable populations, including day laborers, and prenatal exposures to environmental pollutants. Most recently, she has completed research on methylmercury exposure among high-risk groups including pregnant women.

Abstract

This session will present the results of two projects that address the role of the clinician in preventing exposures to contaminants in fish. The first project was the development and evaluation of Healthy Fish Choices, an online continuing education curriculum for healthcare providers on the benefits and risks of fish consumption. The second project involved the testing of a fish consumption screening question to predict elevated blood mercury levels among pregnant women.







UIC SCHOOL OF FUBLIC HEALTH Environmental and Document









Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved along to the next speaker on this panel.
Communicating Information to Reduce Mercury Exposures in Women of Childbearing Age

Pat McCann, Minnesota Department of Health

Biosketch

Pat McCann has managed the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) Fish Consumption Advisory Program since 1997. She is involved in planning for sampling fish for contaminants, researching health effects of fish contaminants, developing consumption advice and communicating this advice to the public. Ms. McCann holds a M.S. in Environmental Health from the University of Minnesota, School of Public Health, and a B.S. in Chemical Engineering from the University of Minnesota Institute of Technology. She is the co-chair of the Great Lakes Consortium for Fish Advisories and is the Principal Investigator for several on-going Great Lakes Restoration Initiative (GLRI) Grants.

Abstract

Fish in northeastern Minnesota and northern Wisconsin have elevated levels of methylmercury compared to other inland water bodies in these states. Fish consumption is associated with elevated blood levels of methylmercury. The developing nervous system is especially vulnerable to exposure to methylmercury. A recent study funded by EPA found that 10% of newborns tested in the Lake Superior basin region of Minnesota had blood mercury levels indicating maternal exposures above the EPA reference dose (RfD).

Health care providers are sources of credible and efficacious information to their patients. With the support of GLRI 2012 and 2013 funds, partnerships with health care providers are being established to further study fish consumption and mercury exposures in women who may become pregnant, and to develop effective communications with positive messages about health benefits of consumption of fish lower in mercury. Messages about safe fish consumption are complex because fish are a source of beneficial nutrients, and different species of fish have different risk/benefit profiles.

With clinics in Cook County on Minnesota's North Shore, MDH developed a training program for health care providers, and is conducting a study to measure blood levels of mercury and beneficial Omega 3 fatty acids in up to 500 women from 16 to 50 years of age. Women are also asked three simple screening questions to determine if this easily implemented screen will identify women with high mercury in their blood. Women also complete a more detailed questionnaire about fish consumption. Women will be given educational materials about safe fish consumption and blood mercury and fatty acids will be measured six months later in women with blood mercury indicating exposures above the RfD to determine if the educational intervention was successful. Two "control" women will also receive the same follow-up. In a related study, blood mercury is being measured in up to 150 WIC clients in neighboring Lake County. A similar educational intervention will be conducted with these women. Wisconsin is conducting a similar study with women who live on the south shore of Lake Superior. Additionally, MDH is collaborating with Health Partners based in the Twin Cities, and Essential Health based in rural Minnesota, to conduct detailed message testing via surveys and focus groups of their clients who are women of childbearing age. Finally, MDH is supporting Cornell University researchers who are conducting a 2-year diary study and messagetesting in Great Lakes States women to measure behavior change between the first and second year. Overall this research program will provide: 1) more information about women's exposures; 2) simple and effective messages to encourage good nutrition for healthy babies; 3) collaborations with health care providers who can integrate fish consumption advice into clinical practice by instituting a simple, time-efficient screening procedure to identify women who need advice about healthy fish consumption, and providing effective and simple messages and counseling to these women.



















Questions and Answers

Note: There were no questions because the moderator moved directly into the general Q&A session at the end of this panel.

General Question and Answer Session

- Q. This conference has talked a lot about maximizing benefits of Omega 3 and minimizing risks of mercury. In Delaware, they have many urban fisheries that are highly contaminated with organics. This high concentration of organics makes the problem for urban waters much more complex to manage balancing risks and benefits. His second question is whether anyone knows how frequently FDA is testing imported fish and shellfish? Ninety percent of the fish consumed in the United States are imported. Is there a surveillance program in place to track this? (Greene)
- A. The moderator (Knuth) asked whether anyone from FDA could address this, and there was no response from the panelists or the audience.
- Q. In the State of Washington, they have a very involved maternal and child health program in their Health Department who would like any outreach information available from Susan Buchanan. Also they have developed Text4Baby fish messages as outreach for pregnant women and those messages are tailored to their zip code. (Carr)
- A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.
- Q. He gets a lot of push back on evidence-based medicine from the Rutgers medical school faculty. His question is about looking at the example of direct-to-consumer advertising from pharmaceutical companies. The pharmaceutical companies are trying to get patients to ask their doctors about medicines. Could this approach be adapted to get patients to ask their doctors about fish consumption? (Gochfeld)
- A. Their marketing consultant considered similar marketing tools, such as a button for the general public with a message to ask your doctor what they know about fish. (Susan Buchanan)
- A. Direct-to-consumer marketing funded by the pharmaceutical companies works or they would not be spending so much money on it. When patients ask their doctors questions about fish consumption, clinicians need information to respond and begin adopting changes in their practice. He believes that it is necessary to have that message out there to drive change in clinical practice, especially for clinicians who have an aptitude to include environmental exposures in their practice. (Hatcher)
- Q. This question was for Susan Buchanan. She is interested in marketing materials, because the Michigan Department of Community Health is trying a similar project. Will Susan Buchanan be willing to share her information for a project in Michigan in federally-funded clinics in Detroit? (Manente)
- A. She will share everything with Michigan. She would also like to help in reaching out to state chapters of professional associations. (Susan Buchanan)
- *Q.* We do not want to forget about communicating with men because they can get exposed and because in subsistence communities they bring the fish home for their wife to cook and eat. (Burger)

A. In their educational materials for clinicians, one of their modules has an avatar case that is an older man who fishes for his family. (Susan Buchanan)

Comment: We should also not forget that where incomes are low, one ethnic group may not eat a particular fish species but may share that fish species with another ethnic group. (Burger)

- *Q.* FDA updates their mercury database fairly often. There is nothing like that for organics. He suggested looking at the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) pesticide database for how data can be provided on residues and residue testing. The USDA database has 6000-8000 samples annually for 600 residues. (Groth)
- A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.
- Q. When planning for the Great Lakes Restoration Initiative (GLRI) and how to use the funding, we wanted to think strategically for the Great Lakes states but also wanted the results to be transferrable to other areas. She encourages everyone to talk with their award recipients and with them at EPA's Great Lakes National Program Office to get information about their GLRI results. Also they are trying to do work internally within the Federal government to get engagement with healthcare providers or clinicians. (Fisher)
- A. There were no responses or comments from any of the panelists.
- Q. This question was for Susan Buchanan. It is very hard to change clinician behavior. Will the continuing education modules be incorporated into medical schools so they learn this behavior before doctors start practicing? How will the curriculum be updated when the science changes regarding fish consumption advisories? (Mukasa)
- A. They are working with the distance education department at the University of Illinois at Chicago to update the modules if any significant changes occur. The Continuing Medical Education (CME) approach was the hook to get the doctors involved, but using a CME approach would not capture medical students. She knows of one person in Detroit who created a PowerPoint presentation to teach medical students and residents about fish. Getting into the medical school curriculum is very difficult. (Susan Buchanan)

Wrap-up: General Forum Moderator

Jeff Bigler, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Water, Office of Science and Technology

Biosketch

Jeff Bigler has managed the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) National Fish Advisory Program since 1994. The program coordinates activities with states, tribes, and federal agencies on matters related to assessing potential health risks and benefits of fish consumption. He has been responsible for developing and managing all of the National Forums on Contaminants in Fish. Jeff also managed development of the series of national guidance documents titled Guidance for Assessing Chemical Contaminant Data for Use in Fish Advisories, Volumes 1-4; led the development of the National Listing of Fish Advisories; and served as EPA's technical lead for the joint 2001, 2004, and 2014 national mercury advisories. Some of the other EPA projects Jeff has managed include the Survey of Chemical Contaminants in Fish, Invertebrates and Plants Collected in the Vicinity of Tyonek, Seldovia, Port Graham and Nanwalek - Cook Inlet, Alaska; the Survey on the Awareness and Effectiveness of the Mississippi Delta Fish Consumption Advisory; Trends in Blood Mercury Concentrations and Fish Consumption Among U.S. Women of Reproductive Age, NHANES, 1999-2010; and the recently published Estimated Fish Consumption Rates for the U.S. Population and Selected Subpopulations (NHANES 2003-2010). Before joining EPA in 1989, Jeff worked for the Virginia Department of Game and Inland Fisheries; Alaska Department of Fish and Game: and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, National Marine Fisheries Service.





2014 National Forum on Contaminants in Fish



Alexandria, Virginia / September 22-24, 2014

SECTION III APPENDICES

[THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

SECTION III APPENDICES

APPENDIX A: FINAL PARTICIPANT LIST

Ghulam Ali U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Greg Allen U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Annapolis, Maryland

Henry Anderson Wisconsin Division of Public Health Madison, Wisconsin

David Anthony Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe Akwesasne, New York

Yutaka Aoki Center for Disease Control Hyattsville, Maryland

Ihsan Azzam Nevada State Department of Health Carson City, Nevada

Pamela Baldwin Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Thomas Barron PA Department of Environmental Protection Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Alex Barron Virginia Department of Environmental Quality Richmond, Virginia Kat Bawden UNC Institute for the Environment, UNC Superfund Research Program Chapel Hill, North Carolina

Marlene Berg U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Satyendra Bhavsar Bhavsar Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change Toronto, Ontario

Jeff Bigler U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Rebecca Birch Westat Rockville, Maryland

Bryan Boches Safe Catch Sausalito, California

Robert Brodberg Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Sacramento, California

Barbara Brooks Hawaii Department of Health Honolulu, Hawaii

Lucretia Brown District Department of the Environment Washington, District of Columbia

Michelle Bruneau Michigan Department of Community Health Lansing, Michigan

Gary Buchanan New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection Trenton, New Jersey

Susan Buchanan University of Illinois at Chicago Chicago, Illinois

Chris Burbage Hampton Roads Sanitation District Virginia Beach, Virginia

Joanna Burger Rutgers University Piscataway, New Jersey

Liz Carr Washington State Department of Health Olympia, Washington

Clark Carrington United States Food and Drug Administration College Park, Maryland

Michael Celona Massachusetts Department of Public Health Boston, Massachusetts

Mary Christie Pace Analytical Mosinee, Wisconsin Vince Cogliano U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Tara Cohen Tetra Tech, Inc. Owings Mills, Maryland

Nancy Connelly Cornell University Ithaca, New York

Declan Conroy Food Chemical News Alexandria, Virginia

Ted Coopwood U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Fred Corey Aroostook Band of Micmacs Presque Isle, Maine

Nicholas Corso AXYS Analytical Services Ltd. Sidney, British Columbia

John Cosgrove AXYS Analytical Services Ltd. Sidney, British Columbia

Chris Cotelesse Inside EPA Arlington, Virginia

Kathryn Crawford Boston University Boston, Massachusetts

Pat Cunningham RTI International Research Triangle Park, North Carolina

Leanne Cusack Oregon State University Corvallis, Oregon

Lesley D'Anglada U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Robert Daguillard U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Deborah Dalton U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Justin Desiderio SafeCatch Northport, New York

Amy Dickey Utah Division of Water Quality Salt Lake City, Utah

Peg Donnelly U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Chicago, Illinois

Joyce Donohue U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia Melissa Dreyfus U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Arlington, Virginia

Linda Dykema Michigan Department of Community Health Lansing, Michigan

Claude Dykstra International Pacific Halibut Commission Seattle, Washington

Egbe Egiebor Virginia Department of Health Richmond, Virginia

Theresa Eisenman United States Food and Drug Administration Silver Spring, Maryland

Mike Ell North Dakota Department of Health Bismarck, North Dakota

Elizabeth Evans Department of Health and Senior Services, BEE Jefferson City, Missouri

Jacqueline Fisher U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Chicago, Illinois

Tim Fitzgerald Environmental Defense Fund Washington, District of Columbia

Dwight Flammia Virginia Department of Health Richmond, Virginia

Colleen Flanagan Pritz National Park Service Lakewood, Colorado

Samantha Fontenelle U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Valoree Gagnon Michigan Technological University Houghton, Michigan

Yongwen Gao Makah Fisheries Management Neah Bay, Washington

Gregory Garvey Integral Consulting Annapolis, Maryland

Margy Gassel California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Oakland, California

Robert Gerlach Department of Environmental Conservation, Division of Environmental Health Anchorage, Alaska

Gretchen Giannelli U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Wash, District of Columbia Lindsey Gilstrap Montana Fish, Wildlife & Parks Helena, Montana

Gary Ginsberg Connecticut Department of Public Health Hartford, Connecticut

Chris Glaze CounterPoint Strategies, Inc. New York, New York

James Glover South Carolina Department Health & Environmental Control Columbia, South Carolina

Michael Gochfeld Rutgers Robert Wood Johnson Medical School Piscataway, New Jersey

Richard Grace AXYS Analytical Services Ltd. Sidney, British Columbia

Jennifer Gray Michigan Department of Community Health Lansing, Michigan

Rick Greene Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control Dover, Delaware

Kory Groetsch Michigan Department of Community Health Lansing, Michigan

Edward Groth retired Pelham, New York

John Guarisco Alabama Department of Public Health Montgomery, Alabama

Ali Hamade Alaska Section of Epidemiology Anchorage, Alaska

Adrian Hanley U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Joel Hansel U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Atlanta, Georgia

Mark Harris ToxStrategies, Inc. Katy, Texas

Michael Hatcher Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry Atlanta, Georgia

David Haury Anchor QEA, LLC Newtown, Pennsylvania

Denise Hawkins U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia Jim Hedrick WV Division of Natural Resources Romey, West Virginia

Maria Hegstad Risk Policy Report/Inside EPA Arlington, Virginia

Wendy Heiger-Bernays Boston University – School of Public Health Boston, Massachusetts

Joseph Higginbotham Florida Department of Health Tallahassee, Florida

Rebecca Hillwig Oregon Health Authority Portland, Oregon

Sara Hisel-McCoy U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Razelle Hoffman-Contois Vermont Department of Health Burlington, Vermont

David Hohreiter SRC North Syracuse, New York

Ryan Holem GEI Consultants, Inc. Lansing, Michigan

Thomas Hornshaw U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Springfield, Illinois

Julie Kadrie Minnesota Department of Health St. Paul, Minnesota

Roxanne Karimi Stony Brook University Stony Brook, New York

Jim Keating U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Regina Keenan New York State Department of Health Troy, New York

Brandon Keplinger WV Division of Natural Resources Romney, West Virginia

Lon Kissinger U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Seattle, Washington

Gary Klase U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Columbus, Ohio

Barbara Knuth Cornell University Ithaca, New York Gretchen Kroeger Duke University Superfund Research Center Durham, North Carolina

Amy Kyle University of California Berkeley Berkeley, California

Mary Lafrance Saint Regis Mohawk Tribe Akwesasne, New York

Amy Lando United States Food and Drug Administration College Park, Maryland

Marian Landon CSC Alexandria, Virginia

Bruce Lauber Cornell University Ithaca, New York

Geniece Lehmann U.S. Environmental Protection Agency RTP, North Carolina

Walter Leon-Guerrero U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Barrigada, Guam

Rebecca LePrell Virginia Department of Health Richmond, Virginia

Leonard Levin EPRI Palo Alto, California

Serena Lo United States Food and Drug Administration College Park, Maryland

David Love Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future Baltimore, Maryland

Tony Lowery National Seafood Inspection Program Pascagoula, Mississippi

Chris Luckett Maryland Department of the Environment Annapolis, Maryland

Susan Manente Michigan Department of Community Health Lansing, Michigan

Cindy Marchand Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation Nespelem, Washington

Dave McBride Washington State Department of Health Olympia, Washington

Pat McCann Minnesota Department of Health St. Paul, Minnesota Harry McCarty CSC Alexandria, Virginia

Melissa McCoy Association of Clean Water Administrators Washington, District of Columbia

Magan Meade State of Indiana Indianapolis, Indiana

Tracie Merrill Seldovia Village Tribe Seldovia, Alaska

Greg Michl Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality Lincoln, Nebraska

Emily Morrison ARCADIS Annapolis, Maryland

Sandy Mort North Carolina Division of Public Health Raleigh, North Carolina

Sara Moses Great Lakes Indian Fish and Wildlife Commission Odanah, Wisconsin

Jacqueline Moya U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington DC, District of Columbia

Dariush Mozaffarian Tufts University Boston, Massachusetts

Agnes Mukasa New York State Department of Health Albany, New York

Elizabeth Murphy Great Lakes National Program Office Chicago, Illinois

Michael Musso HDR Pearl River, New York

Olga Naidenko U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Travis Neebling Wyoming Game and Fish Department Casper, Wyoming

Dale Norton Washington State Department of Ecology Lacey, Washington

Bridget O'Brien U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Todd O'Hara University of Alaska – Fairbanks Fairbanks, Alaska Emily Oken Harvard Medical School Boston, Massachusetts

Karin Olsen Anchor QEA Columbia, Maryland

John Olson Iowa Department of Natural Resources Des Moines, Iowa

Michael Opheim Seldovia Village Tribe Seldovia, Alaska

Amanda Palleschi Inside EPA Arlington, Virginia

Linda Phillips U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Fred Pinkney United States Fish and Wildlife Service Annapolis, Maryland

Dennis Pinski New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services Concord, New Hampshire

Carrie Poston Arkansas Department of Health Little Rock, Arkansas

Lisa Price National Seafood Inspection Lab Pascagoula, Mississippi

Nicholas Ralston University of North Dakota Grand Forks, North Dakota

Glenn Rice U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Cincinnati, Ohio

Kristy Richardson Colorado Department of Health and Environment Denver, Colorado

Wayne Richter New York State Department of Environmental Conservation Albany, New York

Steve Ridenour U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Kat Ridolfi LimnoTech Washington, District of Columbia

Rebecca Robbins Cornell University Ithaca, New York

Kenneth Rudo North Carolina Division of Public Health Chapel Hill, North Carolina Sharee Rusnak Connecticut Department of Public Health Hartford, Connecticut

Sarah Ryan Big Valley Band of Pomo Indians Lakeport, California

John Sachell Exponent, Inc. Houston, Texas

Charles Santerre Purdue University West Lafayette, Indiana

Laura Savery Exponent, Inc. Alexandria, Virginia

Gary Schiffmiller New Mexico Environment Department Santa Fe, New Mexico

Rita Schoeny U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Faith Schottenfeld New York State Department of Health Albany, New York

Candy Schrank Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Madison, Wisconsin

Angela Senger-Mersich Rutgers University New Brunswick, New Jersey

Nicoline Shulterbrandt District Department of the Environment Washington, District of Columbia

Lori Simmons Arkansas Department of Health Little Rock, Arkansas

David Singleton Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality Pearl, Mississippi

Joyce Smith Fish Colorado

Jeremy Smith Georgia Environmental Protection Division (EPD)-Watershed Protection Branch Atlanta, Georgia

Janice Smithson West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection Charleston, West Virginia

Daniel Snow University of Nebraska Lincoln, Nebraska

Blaine Snyder Tetra Tech, Inc. Owings Mills, Maryland Shannon Soileau Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals New Orleans, Louisiana

Elizabeth Southerland U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Philip Spiller United States Food and Drug Administration College Park, Maryland

Leanne Stahl U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Alan Stern New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection – Office of Science Trenton, New Jersey

Phillip Suderman CounterPoint Strategies New York City, New York

Karen Swajian United States Food and Drug Administration College Park, Maryland

Jeffrey Swartout U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Cincinnati, Ohio

Mario Teisl School of Economics, University of Maine Orono, Maine

Michael Tennant Texas Department of State Health Services Austin, Texas

Rob Tewes ORSANCO Cincinnati, Ohio

Brooke Thompson Wisconsin Division of Public Health Madison, Wisconsin

Charles Thompson Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality Pearl, Mississippi

Marcella Thompson Brown University Providence, Rhode Island

William Toomey West Virginia Department of Health and Human Resources Charleston, West Virginia

Kirby Tyndall Pastor, Behling & Wheeler, LLC Round Rock, Texas

Doug Upton Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality Jackson, Mississippi

Jim Vannoy Idaho Division of Public Health Boise, Idaho Jyrki Virtanen University of Eastern Finland Kuopio, Joensuu, Finland

Savannah Volkoff Duke University Durham, North Carolina

Katherine von Stackelberg Harvard Center for Risk Analysis Boston, Massachusetts

Pamela Wadman Maine Center for Disease Control Augusta, Maine

John Wathen U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Jeff Wenzel Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services Jefferson City, Missouri

Janet Whaley Exponent, Inc. Alexandria, Virginia

Paul White U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Ashley Whitlow Arkansas Department of Health Little Rock, Arkansas

Amina Wilkins U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Washington, District of Columbia

Meghan Williams Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Madison, Wisconsin

Jennifer Wollenberg The ELM Group, Inc. Holicong, Pennsylvania

Emmy Wollenburg Wisconsin Department of Health Services Madison, Wisconsin David Wong National Park Service Albuquerque, New Mexico

Jay Wright Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Ann Yaktine Institute of Medicine Washington, District of Columbia

APPENDIX B: POSTER ABSTRACTS

Evaluating the Effectiveness of Educational Materials on Fish Consumption Advisories around Lake Crabtree, Morrisville, North Carolina

Presenting Author: Kat Bawden

Contributing Authors: Kathleen Gray, Sarah Yelton

Our program seeks to educate recreational anglers and their families about a fish consumption advisory (FCA) on dangerous polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) levels in fish found in Lake Crabtree County Park and its tributaries, popular fishing sites located near the Ward Transformer Superfund site in Morrisville, North Carolina. While educational materials on PCBs are available to recreational anglers, and there is a catch-and-release policy in place at the park, the lake and its tributaries remain popular fishing sites, and many people take home their catch. FCAs alone are ineffective at reaching recreational anglers and people who eat fish. Even when FCA messages do reach their target audience, people do not always understand, trust, or follow them. This is particularly true among non-English speakers and people with lower levels of education and income. The literature on FCA education and risk communication overwhelmingly supports involving target audience members in the process of crafting and disseminating FCA educational materials. However, this idea remains largely un-tested in the literature.

Our poster will present on the preliminary results from our pilot program to engage community members in the process of creating and disseminating educational material on PCBs risk from Lake Crabtree and surrounding waters. We developed a map of safe fishing sites for recreational anglers, which included a guide to safely consuming locally-caught fish. We involved stakeholders who share information on safe fishing in the process of developing the prototype of this material. Next, we piloted this material with target audience members (particularly Spanish speakers, who are least likely to be aware of the FCA) with four objectives: 1) to understand anglers' perceptions of PCBs risk, 2) to solicit feedback on the material, 3) to evaluate our material's impact on participant knowledge and intent to change behavior, and 4) to identify possible outlets for disseminating the material. This research was an integral step for our process of developing responsive community-based educational programs to disseminate FCA information. This work is supported by the National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences through a grant to the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill Superfund Research Program (grant number P42ES005948).

Estimated Fish Consumption Rates for the U.S. Population and Selected Subpopulations (NHANES 2003-2010)

Presenting Author: Rebecca Birch

We used data from the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) to estimate usual fish consumption rates (FCR) for the U.S. population and selected sub-populations. The usual FCR is an estimate of the long-term average FCR. Rates were estimated for 18 fish types (e.g., freshwater, estuarine, marine, shellfish, finfish, and by trophic levels) and for sub-populations such as by race/ethnicity, age, and geographic location. This poster presents the methodology, results, and how the results are being used by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency for the Human Health Ambient Water Quality Criteria 2014 updates.

Outreach Efforts in a Multilingual Urban Estuary

Presenting Author: Gary Buchanan

Contributing Authors: Terri Tucker, Bruce Ruppel, Kerry Kirk Pflugh, Calliope Alexander

The State of New Jersey's Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) and Department of Health (NJDOH) have been conducting advisory outreach efforts since the 1980s. Efforts have focused on reaching out to populations that are non-English speaking for whom English is their second language, since many of these populations consume locally caught seafood as part of their diet. Repeated and recent efforts have been concentrated in the Newark Bay Complex (Complex), which consists of several major tidal waters surrounded by 32 municipalities in northeastern New Jersey. Due to the ethnic diversity, numerous languages are spoken in this area of the state. It is important to reach as many local consumers as possible as New Jersey bans the harvest of blue crabs and has issued fish advisories in the Complex due to dioxin/furan and PCB contamination.

The identification of predominant languages spoken for each municipality was determined from analysis of 2010 census data. The state was able to take advantage of its diverse staff in translating outreach materials into six additional languages at no cost. 2014 outreach activities included reaching out to the mayors, local officials, and constituent groups in the towns surrounding the Complex; distribution of warning signs and informational brochures; a press release with newspaper and TV coverage; as well as release of public service announcements (PSAs). This multimedia effort is used to increase the potential of this public health information reaching the targeted audiences. Past surveys of local anglers/crabbers indicated that these type of multimedia outreach efforts increased comprehension and awareness of fish advisories and the crabbing ban. Due to the population turnover in this urban area, it is necessary to conduct these efforts frequently (e.g., annually) to reach new residents.

Other statewide outreach activities include the distribution of brochures at public events, local departments of health, and public programs for women and children, as well as easily understood "Fish I Catch" and "Waters I Fish" Web pages and periodic updating of the advisory website <u>www.FishSmartEatSmartNJ.org</u>. New Jersey has also developed three additional brochures in multiple languages on how to properly cook and clean blue crabs, carp, and catfish.

Evidence of Resistance to AhR-mediated Effects of PCB-126 in Atlantic Killifish (Fundulus heteroclitus) in the Island End River, Chelsea, Massachusetts

Presenting Author: Kathryn Crawford

Contributing Authors: Wendy Heiger-Bernays, Mark E. Hahn

Efforts to reexamine the consumption advisory for fish caught in the Lower Mystic River Watershed, an urbanized and industrialized watershed near Boston, highlight the need to understand links between ecological and human health impacts of contaminants. Industrial pollutants, including nonortho polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) and some polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) are known to cause embryotoxicity and altered gene expression in Fundulus heteroclitus through the AhR pathway, a transcription pathway activated by some PCBs and PAHs. Long-term exposure to environmental AhR ligands can cause reduced sensitivity of F. heteroclitus to the toxicological response caused by these pollutants. The human health implications of AhR-mediated resistance to aromatic industrial pollutants in F. heteroclitus are not well understood, but resistance may influence chemical bioaccumulation. To assess whether there is evidence of genetic resistance to aromatic hydrocarbons in Island End River F. heteroclitus, embryos from fish collected from this area and a reference site were exposed to PCB-126 at three time points (4-8 hours post-fertilization (hpf); 48 hpf; and 7 days post-fertilization (dpf)). Analysis of CYP1A mRNA, a biomarker of AhR-mediated responsiveness to aromatic hydrocarbons, by RT-qPCR provides evidence of differential sensitivity to AhR-mediated gene induction between F. heteroclitus from the two sites following embryonic exposure to PCB-126. These results suggest evolved resistance to aromatic compounds in the Island End River and are consistent with results from F. heteroclitus populations inhabiting other contaminated areas along the eastern seaboard. Together, these data provide the framework for asking further questions about how AhR-mediated resistance to aromatic hydrocarbons impacts human health in the Lower Mystic River Watershed. [Supported in part by National Institutes of Health grant P42ES007381]

Total Mercury Levels in Blood and Urine of Frequent Consumers of Detroit River Fish

Presenting Author: Linda D. Dykema

Background: The Detroit River is a popular fishery for urban, shoreline anglers who may be less aware of Michigan's fish consumption guidelines, which are prompted by contaminants such as methylmercury. Consumption of contaminated fish is major route of human exposure to methylmercury.

Description: The Michigan Department of Community Health measured total mercury levels in blood and urine samples collected from shoreline anglers under funding provided by the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry. Participating anglers were 18 years of age or older who ate at least two meals per month of fish caught from the Detroit River Area of Concern. Information about fish consumption habits, confounding exposures, and demographics were collected by a detailed questionnaire. Participants reported eating an average of 11 meals per month of fish caught from the Detroit River (range = 0.08 to 102 meals per month). Participants' blood and urine results are compared to data from the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES). Total mercury levels in participants' blood were elevated in comparison to NHANES, while urine mercury levels were lower.

Conclusion: Elevated total blood mercury results for Detroit participants suggest increased dietary exposure to organic mercury, particularly methylmercury found in fish.
Pacific Halibut Commission and the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation

Presenting Author: Claudia Dykstra

The International Pacific Halibut Commission and the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation have been conducting a project monitoring environmental contaminants in Pacific halibut since 2002 throughout the northeast Pacific Ocean and Bering Sea. Regional results from 2002 to 2014 will be compared along with biological characteristics and temporal trends.

Mercury in Fish from 21 National Parks in the Western United States: Inter- and Intra-park Variation in Concentrations and Ecological Risk

Presenting Author: Colleen M. Flanagan Pritz

Contributing Authors: Collin Eagles-Smith, James Willacker

National parks, protected areas considered to be relatively pristine and removed from environmental contaminants, contained levels of mercury in some fish that exceeded thresholds for potential impacts to fish, birds, and humans. We measured mercury (Hg) in more than 1,400 fish from 86 remote lakes and rivers – spanning 16 fish species and 21 national parks in 10 western states – and compared Hg concentrations in the fish to an array of health benchmarks. Across all parks, sites, and species, fish Hg concentrations ranged from 9.9 to 1,109 ng/g ww with a mean of 77.7 ng/g ww. Fish Hg levels varied greatly both among and within parks, suggesting that patterns of Hg risk are driven by processes occurring at site-specific, local, and global scales. In most parks, Hg concentrations in fish were moderate to low in comparison with similar fish species from other locations in the western U.S. Mercury concentrations were below the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) fish tissue criterion for safe human consumption in 96% of the sport fish sampled. However, the average concentration of Hg in sport fish from two sites in Wrangell-St. Elias and Lake Clark (Alaska) national parks exceeded EPA's human health criterion. Mercury levels in individual sport fish at some sites from Lassen Volcanic (California), Mount Rainer (Washington), Rocky Mountain (Colorado), Yellowstone (Wyoming), and Yosemite (California) national parks also exceeded the human health criterion. Mercury concentrations exceeded the most conservative fish toxicity benchmark at 15% of all sites, and the most sensitive health benchmark for fish-eating birds at 52% of all sites. Exposure to high levels of Hg in humans may cause damage to the brain, kidneys, and the developing fetus. In wildlife, elevated Hg levels can result in reduced foraging efficiency, survival, and reproductive success. Much of the mercury found in these mainly high elevation areas is likely the result of air pollution from outside the parks. Future targeted research and monitoring across park habitats would help identify patterns of Hg distribution across the landscape and facilitate informed management decisions aimed at reducing the ecological risk posed by Hg contamination in sensitive ecosystems protected by the National Park Service.

Mercury in Fish and Small-pond Health (MyFISH); a statistical model that provides fish tissue mercury estimates from small freshwater ponds in South Carolina

Presenting Author: Jim Glover

Recreational fishing and fish consumption is important to many South Carolina citizens and small reservoirs and excavated ponds are utilized for this purpose. The goal of MyFISH was to provide statistically valid estimates of mercury (Hg) in the tissue of popular game fish from these ponds. Over a 2-year period, 349 fish were collected from 38 ponds across South Carolina and analyzed for Hg. Using interval censored regression statistical techniques, a predictive model was developed that incorporated hydrologic unit land-use, pond type (impoundment or excavated pond), degree of management (limed and fertilized or unmanaged), fish type (largemouth bass or 'bream'), and fish length. Linear regression between the predicted and observed estimates for each length normalized pond-fish type combination (n=72) indicated that MyFISH explained 73% of the variance in tissue Hg in pond fish. To validate the model, historic fish Hg data (n=108) from North Carolina ponds were used (n=20). Predictions correlated linearly with an r² of 0.87. With limited user input, the web-based interface for MyFISH allows pond owners to estimate Hg in popular game fish from small South Carolina ponds.

Perfluorooctane Sulfonate (PFOS) and Other Perfluorinated Chemicals in Michigan Water Bodies

Presenting Author: Jennifer Gray

With the aid of a Great Lakes Restoration Initiative grant from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the Michigan Department of Community Health has been able to test fish samples (edible portions) from reference and potentially historically contaminated locations. Perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and other perfluorinated chemicals were found in edible portion samples from various water bodies in Michigan. Testing confirms that PFOS is the predominant perfluorinated chemical present in edible portion of fish and that perfluorinated chemical levels are high enough in some locations to warrant issuance of water body-specific fish consumption guidelines.

Toxics in the Saint Jones Watershed: Past, Present, and Future

Presenting Author: Richard Greene

Contributing Authors: John Cargill, Todd Keyser, Upal Ghosh, David Velinsky, Chris Sommerfield

The Saint Jones watershed (233 square kilometers) is located in central Delaware and drains through the state's capital of Dover on its way to the Delaware Bay. Fish consumption advisories have been in place in the watershed since 1988 due to PCBs, dioxins and furans, organochlorine pesticides, and mercury. Polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbon contamination is also significant in sediments. Local sources include NPL and other waste sites, NPDES wastewater discharge (past and present), in-place contaminants in sediments, atmospheric deposition, stormwater runoff, and exchange with the Delaware Bay. Monitoring and special studies have been performed to better understand the status and trends of toxics in this system. This poster highlights selected results from toxics testing of fish, sediment, and water samples collected from the Saint Jones watershed in the fall of 2013. Current conditions are placed into longer-term perspective by presenting data on toxics in radiodated sediment cores collected in fringing tidal wetlands of the Saint Jones watershed. Finally, this poster looks to the future of toxics mitigation in surface waters by presenting details from the Mirror Lake Remediation and Restoration Project. This project involved adding activated carbon to sediments with the intention of sequestering contaminants in place, thereby reducing bioavailability, toxicity, and bioaccumulation.

Architectural Design of the Michigan Fish Consumption Advisory Program

Presenting Author: Kory Groetsch

With support from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Great Lakes Restoration Initiative, the Michigan Department of Community Health (MDCH) has restructured the assessment and communication methods of the Michigan Fish Consumption Advisory Program. MDCH uses EPA risk assessment methods and ATSDR public health assessment methods to evaluate chemical contaminants found in edible portions of Michigan fish. The communication strategy involves message layering, generating public awareness, and encouraging information seeking behavior by individuals. This poster describes the program's architectural design including the program goal, design specifications, program elements, technical documentation, and communication strategy.

Use of Biomonitoring to Support Alaska's Statewide Mercury Advisory

Presenting Author: Ali Hamade

The Alaska Division of Public Health offers hair mercury testing through its Statewide Hair Mercury Biomonitoring Program to assess exposures to mercury among women of childbearing age. Over 1,000 eligible women have participated in this program. Hair samples are collected by health care providers or the individuals themselves, and analyzed by the Alaska State Public Health Laboratory. This program supports the Alaska Division of Public Health fish consumption recommendations, most recently updated in July 2014. Having their hair tested for mercury enables women to determine their own mercury levels, and learn whether dietary changes are needed to reduce their mercury exposure. The Division of Public health follows up with women whose hair mercury concentrations approach or exceed the state's hair mercury level of concern of 5 parts per million to identify sources of mercury exposure and provide the necessary fish consumption recommendations. This poster will present hair collection and analysis methods, hair monitoring data, and public health implications.

An Examination of Selenium-based Fish Consumption Advisories in the United States and Canada

Presenting Author: Ryan Holem

Selenium (Se) is an essential micronutrient naturally present in varying levels in food and readily available as a dietary supplement owing to its presumptive benefits to human health. Selenium has been shown to accumulate in tissues of fish when present at elevated levels in aquatic systems and as a result, Se-based fish consumption advisories (FCAs) exist at multiple locations in North America. Se-based FCAs have the potential to cause confusion amongst anglers and/or consumers given the existence of advice encouraging dietary intake of Se. Advocates of Se intake often recommend fish as a source of dietary Se, creating the potential for conflicting consumption advice in locations where Se-based FCAs have been issued. The objectives of this poster are to: 1) identify the North American locations where published Se-based FCAs are in effect, 2) compare the methods used to derive trigger levels for Se FCAs and corresponding fish consumption advice, and 3) discuss unique aspects of Se-based FCAs.

State-level Recreational Fishing and Fish Consumption Advisories in the United States: Identifying Opportunities for Improved Risk Communication

Presenting Author: David Love

Contributing Authors: Meagan Hawes, Jamie Harding

Over 30 million U.S. citizens participate in recreational fishing annually, and take about 400 million fishing trips a year to many regions of the United States. Subsistence fishers and their families, and women of childbearing age, infants, and young children, face disproportionate health risks from exposure to environmental chemicals that bioaccumulate in seafood. Recreational fishing is managed by states using public heath-based fish consumption advisories to reduce risks to humans from exposures to pollutants. In addition, states employ natural resource-based management of fish stocks to protect these natural resources. We examined the extent to which state regulatory agencies present recreational fish consumption and catch advisories together. State-level catch and consumption advisories were collected from 50 states in 2011 via the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency "Advisories Where You Live" website, and by searching state agency websites for the most current consumption advisories. Catch and consumption advisories within states were cross-referenced by fish species. State-level catch advisories were strongly predictive of state-level consumption advisories, by species (R2=0.87) or taxonomic family (R2=0.91). Within each state, however, fish catch and consumption advisories were presented together in less than half of fishing guides. Fish advisories are often produced by separate state regulatory agencies, indicating an opportunity for inter-agency collaboration to improve health communication messaging regarding recreational fishing and self-caught fish consumption. Adopting policies that require rigorous state-level interagency collaboration before releasing fish advisories to the public could better protect fishers and others from consuming contaminated seafood. These advisories must engage in risk communication that reaches the appropriate audience, in a readable language and literacy level, and with understandable metrics.

Outreach to Urban Anglers: Methods to Inform a Hard-to-Reach Population in Detroit

Presenting Author: Susan Manente

Contributing Author: Donna Kashian

Anglers fishing in Detroit and Saginaw, two impoverished urban areas in Michigan, are less likely to be aware of Michigan's fish advisories and eat more of the most contaminated fish. The Michigan Department of Community Health (MDCH) has provided fish advisory information to residents of Michigan since the 1970s. More recently, studies conducted by MDCH along the Saginaw River and the University of Michigan along the Detroit River (both designated Areas of Concern by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency) found urban shoreline anglers were more likely to be a minority population, have lower income and education levels, and tend to eat more servings of the most contaminated fish. They are also more likely to be unaware of the fish advisories. MDCH has conducted health education to Detroit and Saginaw area residents using unique methods to reach an urban population including employing River Walkers; men who visit anglers at fishing sites to provide in-person fish advisory information. MDCH has also developed area-specific materials such as signs and brochures with input from local anglers during focus group sessions. An evaluation of these outreach methods as well as an ethnography study profiling fish distribution methods, essentially tracking fish from the "river to the plate," were conducted in Detroit. This MDCH poster will describe the methods used to reach this hard-to-reach population and preliminary results of the evaluation and ethnography study. Providing health education to a unique population is challenging. Reaching out to urban anglers is complex and requires innovation, flexibility, and continued funding.

Mercury Concentrations and Stable Isotopes of C and N in Alaska Pacific Halibut Muscle

Presenting Author: Todd O'Hara

Contributing Authors: Rebecca Bentzen, Margaret Castellini, Bob Gerlach, Claude Dykstra

Pacific Halibut (Hippoglossus stenolepis) are one of the world's largest flatfish, and supports one of the most important commercial fisheries on the west coast of the United States and Canada, as well as popular recreational and subsistence fisheries. Halibut are an excellent source of lean protein, Omega 3 fatty acids, antioxidants, and vitamins. However, concerns about the health risks of mercury (Hg) have prompted many states and several federal agencies to advise the public, in particular women of childbearing age, to limit consumption of halibut since they accumulate monomethyl mercury (MeHg+) in muscle. We measured total Hg concentrations ([THg]) and $\delta 15N$ and $\delta 13C$ values in muscle of 693 halibut caught in commercial fisheries around Alaska between 2002 and 2011. The goals of this project were: 1) to evaluate whether $\delta 15N$ and $\delta 13C$ values varied with region, age, sex, and length of halibut; and 2) determine whether muscle [THg] varied with the relative trophic position of the halibut (e.g., $\delta 15N$ and $\delta 13C$ values) while accounting for sex, size, and region. Variation in [THg] was explained, in part, by feeding ecology of the halibut; [THg] increased with trophic position (increasing $\delta 15N$) for many regions sampled. The western Aleutian island region stood out from the rest of Alaska in that halibut were feeding at a lower trophic position (lower δ 15N values) but paradoxically had higher [THg] than did halibut in other Alaskan waters. This pattern has been observed in other biota and has been attributed to a northeasterly movement of mercury from Asia.

Status and Trends of Contaminants in Fish from Lake Erie, the Niagara River, Cayuga Creek, and Lake Ontario, New York

Presenting Author: Wayne Richter

Contributing Authors: Xiangrong Li, Lawrence Skinner

We analyzed over 600 individual samples from 16 fish species collected in 2010 through 2012 from the New York State waters of Lake Erie, Cayuga Creek, the Niagara River, and Lake Ontario for contaminants including mercury, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), chlorinated dioxins and furans, organochlorine pesticides, and polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs). Collections were typically 10 to 15 individuals per species at a site, with species selection dependent upon availability. We examined spatial patterns and compared the current data to historical results as far back as 1970.

Mean mercury concentration over all fish in the current sample was 0.16 ppm (range: 0.029 ppm to 1.09 ppm) with only one fish exceeding 1 ppm. Site and species specific mercury concentrations dropped between 1970 and the next sampling period beginning in 1988, but showed no change in subsequent periods up to the present. PCB and organochlorine pesticide concentrations were generally lower than recorded previously. PCB concentrations ranged from non-detect to 11.0 ppm, with 99% of fish below 2 ppm. DDT and metabolites were detected in most fish, though at low levels (range: non-detect to 0.73 ppm). Mirex concentrations, a primary cause of consumption advisories for the Niagara River and Lake Ontario, dropped considerably with most fish below the detection limit and only a single fish exceeding 0.1 ppm. Other organochlorine pesticides were generally detected in small numbers of fish and at low concentrations. With the exception of Cayuga Creek, all site and species combinations had a dioxin toxic equivalency (TEQ) below health advisory guidelines. PBDEs were found in all fish with an overall mean concentration of 29.0 ppb (range: 1.3 ppb to 122.6 ppb); about two-thirds of 47 analyzed PBDE congeners were detected. Based on the decline of contaminant levels in fish, the New York State Department of Health relaxed specific advisories for several important Lake Ontario and lower Niagara River fish species.

Trophic Ecology and Mercury Sources for Hawaiian Bottomfish

Presenting Author: Dana Sackett

Contributing Authors: Jeffrey C. Drazen, Anela Choy, Brian Popp, Robery Humphrey, Gerald Pitz

In Hawai'i, some of the most important commercial and recreational fishes are an assemblage of lutjanids and carangids called bottomfish. Despite their importance, we know little about their trophic ecology or where the mercury (Hg) that ultimately resides in their tissue originates. While some have suggested that the source of Hg in marine fish derives from freshwater coastal Hg methylation that is subsequently advected offshore, others have suggested there are major ocean sources of Hg methylation independent of freshwater and coastal ecosystems. Here we investigated these topics by analyzing muscle tissue samples for trace mercury content, nitrogen, carbon, and amino acid specific isotope ratios in five species of bottomfish distributed across different depths from the Northwestern Hawaiian Islands (NWHI) and the Main Hawaiian Islands (MHI). Species had significantly different sources of nitrogen and carbon, particularly shallow water species, which had isotopic values suggesting benthic food sources. High trophic level lutjanids that foraged in deeper water, benthic environments generally had higher Hg levels. These results suggested that benthic Hg methylation is an important source of Hg for shallow benthic feeders, while deepwater sources of methylmercury may be important for those with food derived from the pelagic environment. Despite the lack of freshwater sources of Hg methylation in the NWHI, Hg levels were higher in shallow species in the NWHI. Additionally, the nearly identical models explaining the variation in tissue Hg in the MHI and NWHI suggested Hg methylated in freshwater environments were not a major source of Hg in fish tissue.

Green Tea Increases Blood Concentration of Mercury from Fish

Presenting Author: Charles Santerre

Contributing Authors: Elsa Janle, Chris Manganis, Tzu-Ying Chen, Bruce Craig

Fish provides many health benefits but are also the most common source of dietary mercury, which can be detrimental to the developing brain during the early stages of life. The bioavailability of mercury in fish may be affected by other meal components. In this study, the effect of green tea on the bioavailability of mercury from a fish meal was studied in rats and compared to a control group and a group treated with meso-2,-3-dimercaptosuccinic acid (DMSA), a compound used medically to chelate mercury (n=5/group). Rats were given via gavage a 4g fish meal which delivered 5.24 μ g mercury/ kg body weight and one of the treatments: Control (water), green tea powder (357 mg/kg), and DMSA (120 mg/kg). Rats were given access to AIN-93M polyphenol-free chow for 3h at 12h intervals. Rats were dosed with each of the treatments at 12h intervals with each chow meal. Blood samples (5µL) were collected for 95h and analyzed for mercury by thermal decomposition-amalgamation/atomic absorption spectrophotometry. Green tea significantly increased the concentration of total mercury in the blood relative to the control whereas, DMSA significantly decreased mercury concentrations. In addition, meals were accompanied by a slight increase in blood mercury for several meals following the initial dose in all groups. These results suggest that the amount of mercury absorbed from a fish meal depends not only on the mercury content of the fish but also on the meal composition. The results also show that subsequent feedings where mercury was not consumed result in slight increases in blood mercury.

Trends of PCB Concentrations in Lake Michigan Coho and Chinook Salmon, 1975–2010

Presenting Author: Candy Schrank

Contributing Authors: Paul Rasmussen, Meghan Williams

The manufacture and use of polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) was banned in the United States in 1977 after it was determined that these compounds adversely affect animals and humans. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources has quantified total PCB concentrations in Lake Michigan chinook (n=765) and coho (n=393) salmon (Oncorhynchus tshawytscha and Oncorhynchus kisutch, respectively) filets since 1975. We analyzed these data to estimate trends in PCB concentrations in these fish (1975–2010). We used generalized linear models with a gamma error distribution and log link fit to the untransformed concentrations. Trend patterns were examined using graphical smoothing and generalized additive models. We identified a candidate set of models that included time trend and other predictor variables. Using the Akaike Information Criterion to select among models, we found the best models for both species included piecewise linear time trends, total body length, % lipid, and collection season as predictor variables. The intersection of the two trends was 1985 for chinook salmon and 1984 for coho salmon. PCB concentrations in both species increased with body length and % lipid, and were higher for individuals caught in the fall. Our data reveals a dramatic decline in PCB concentrations of -16.7% and -23.9% per year for chinook and coho, respectively, up until the intersection year, likely reflecting implementation of restrictions on Aroclor-based PCBs. After the intersection year to 2010, PCB concentrations declined at an annual rate of -4.0% (95% CI: -4.4% to -3.6%) and -2.6% (95% CI: -3.3% to -1.9%) for chinook and coho, respectively.

Assessment of Perfluorinated Compounds (PFCs) in Fish from U.S. Rivers and the Great Lakes

Presenting Author: Blaine Snyder

Contributing Authors: Leanne Stahl, John Wathen, Harry McCarty

The chemical structure of perfluorinated compounds (PFCs) gives them unique properties, such as thermal stability and the ability to repel both water and oil, which make them useful components in a wide variety of consumer and industrial products. Their high production volume led to widespread distribution in the environment, particularly in water where they are most readily transported. PFCs have emerged as contaminants of concern because they are broadly distributed, persistent in the environment, and linked to potential health effects. Recent modeling studies estimate that PFC contamination in food may account for most human exposure to perfluorooctane sulfonate (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoate (PFOA), with results from other studies suggesting that fish from contaminated waters may be the primary source of exposure to PFOS. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Office of Science and Technology (OST) within the Office of Water identified the need for a comprehensive characterization of PFC contamination in U.S. fish. OST conducted a national-scale study of urban rivers and a regional-scale study of the Great Lakes to evaluate the extent of PFC contamination in freshwater fish. Both studies were conducted under the framework of EPA's National Rivers and Streams Assessment and EPA's National Coastal Condition Assessment in the Great Lakes. Fish were collected for PFC analysis from 162 randomly selected urban river locations throughout the lower 48 states (2008 and 2009) and from 157 randomly selected nearshore locations in the five Great Lakes (2010). Fish fillet composites were analyzed for 13 PFCs including PFOA and PFOS. Six PFCs dominated frequency of occurrence in the fillet samples from both studies. PFOA had a low frequency of occurrence (detected in <12% of all samples); however, PFOS was present in 73% and 100% of fish samples collected for the urban river and Great Lakes studies, respectively. Probability-based results indicated that the median concentration of PFOS is 10.7 ppb in fish from U.S. urban rivers and 15.2 ppb in fish from the Great Lakes. The maximum PFOS concentration measured in fillet tissue was 127 ppb in urban rivers and 80 ppb in the Great Lakes.

EPA's Assessment of Contaminants in Fish from U.S. Rivers

Presenting Author: Leanne Stahl

Contributing Authors: John Wathen, Blaine Snyder, Harry McCarty

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Office of Water and Office of Research and Development are collaborating to conduct a national study of fish tissue contamination in U.S. rivers. This study provides data for human health applications related to fish consumption, adding to the core ecological assessments EPA is conducting under the statistically designed National Rivers and Streams Assessment (NRSA). Results from the 2008-2009 NRSA fish tissue indicator generated a national baseline for fish contamination data including mercury, PCBs, and contaminants of emerging concern (i.e., perfluorinated compounds and polybrominated diphenyl ethers) in rivers. EPA's inclusion of fish tissue analysis in the 2013-2014 NRSA will provide the first probabilitybased national fish contamination trends data for U.S. rivers. Sampling in 2013-2014 will involve the collection of fish tissue at a statistically representative subset of over 400 river locations (5th order or greater) assessed during the 2008-2009 NRSA. This subset provides sufficient sample size to develop national estimates of toxic chemical concentrations in fish with acceptable confidence intervals. Assessment of contaminants in river fish for this human health component involves collecting one fish composite sample from each of the river sites consisting of five similarly sized adult fish of the same species that are commonly consumed by humans. Fillet tissue from each 2013-2014 composite sample will be analyzed for mercury and 13 perfluorinated compounds (PFCs) including perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS). Samples will also be archived for potential future analysis of polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs) and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs). Sample collection is proceeding in 2013 and 2014, fish tissue analysis and data quality review will be completed in 2015, and EPA anticipates having results available to report in 2016.

An Investigation of Mercury Concentration Trends in Fish Tissue in the Ohio River

Presenting Author: Rob Tewes

Contributing Author: Jeff Thomas

The Ohio River Valley Water Sanitation Commission (ORSANCO) is a multi-state pollution control agency formed in 1948 and charged primarily with pollution abatement in the basin, criteria and standard development and issuance, and environmental and biological monitoring. ORSANCO has been collecting fish tissue contaminant data from the Ohio River since the 1980s. The six main stem states (Pennsylvania, Ohio, West Virginia, Kentucky, Indiana, and Illinois) have been using these data to issue risk-based fish consumption advisories since the 1990s.

A comprehensive analysis of mercury trends in fish tissue is warranted at this time as recent air emission regulations could ultimately be responsible for directing more mercury into waterways. Additionally, mixing zones for bioaccumulating contaminants of concern, like mercury, are in the process of being eliminated on the Ohio River, potentially affecting permit renewals for many Ohio River dischargers. In addition to fish tissue contaminant data that ORSANCO has gathered over the last three decades, we have also compiled contaminant data from other agencies from as early as 1972. We conducted a data quality review to qualify all data to be used in comparisons and trend analyses. All data used in this investigation were derived from fillets only (not whole fish), multiple fish composites (unless otherwise noted), taken from fish of average size (within angling regulations unless otherwise noted) and multiple trophic levels, and analyzed using comparable methods with accompanying QAQC documentation.

Data that fell within qualification parameters were analyzed spatially and temporally by species, taxonomic family, trophic level, and size range. We chose to compare mercury concentrations in individual species by river segment and by year to determine if concentrations were increasing or decreasing in any particular species in any river segment over time. Additionally we did a more gross analysis based on trophic level by river segment per year. We were able to determine the frequency and specificity of violations (>0.3 mg/kg) and denote differences in concentrations across species by river segment.

"All Things Fish" Informational Website: Conceptual Design

Presenting Author: Marcella Thompson

Contributing Authors: Amie Parris, Bruce Hooke, Robert Vanderslice

Goal and Objectives

- Create an informational website that provides "one-stop shopping" for recreational and subsistence fishers and their families.
- Provide information about the risks and benefits of eating Rhode Island fish.
- Unite sampling data from state, federal, and tribal agencies as well as research from academic institutions.
- Develop a sustainable and coordinated program for assessing and monitoring contaminants and nutrients in Rhode Island freshwater and saltwater fish.

Background

- Fish tissue analyses of mercury, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), and other environmental contaminants are collected sporadically by state, federal, and tribal agencies as well as academic institutions for research. These efforts are not coordinated nor are the data reviewed in toto.
- Web-based information about fishing and fish advisories are absent, outdated, or not linked. Fish advisories for mercury and for other contaminants such as cyanobacteria are not linked. The benefits of consuming Rhode Island fish have not been addressed.
- There is anecdotal evidence of subsistence fishing by low-income families, immigrants, and Native Americans.
- There is a need to consolidate information, update fish consumption advisories, and create one-stop consumer-oriented website.

Methodology

- Meet with state and federal regulators, tribal councils, and academic researchers to begin dialogue on comprehensive fish advisories. Completed.
- Establish Memoranda of Understanding to share fish tissue analyses data. Consolidate data and update fish advisories statewide. In Process.
- Create user-friendly and useful information for "all things fish." Beta-test among different subgroups.